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Chairman’s Statement
FTERES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of Directors (the “Directors”)
of K2 F&B Holdings Limited (the “Company”), and together with
its subsidiaries, | am pleased to share with the shareholders (the
“Shareholders”) the annual report of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023 (“FY2023").

As we reflect on the performance of our company over the past
year, it is evident that we have navigated through a period of
unprecedented volatility and unpredictability. The global landscape,
marked by a noticeable surge in inflation, has compelled major
central banks to implement multiple interest rate hikes in an
attempt to counter escalating inflationary pressures. These
economic dynamics have significantly impacted businesses across
various sectors, and the Food and Beverage (“the F&B") industry
has not been immune to these challenges.

Operational Review

Against the economic backdrop, the industry has since entered a
phase of subdued growth resulting from rising inflation, interest
rates and the growing market challenges. The Group emphasizes
efficient resource management and constantly evaluates its
operation strategies to optimise its assets and resources. With
these initiatives, the Group has delivered an improved set of
performances for FY2023. The Group's net profit after tax improved
by approximately 28.8% from approximately S$5.7 million in
FY2022 to approximately S$7.3 million for FY2023.

In March 2023, the Group undertook an asset enhancement
initiative for one of its property assets acquired in June 2022,
following the expiry of its existing lease. The shophouse was
renovated to align with current aesthetic trends, and the layout was
reconfigured to inject a new business readily.

Following the completion of the renovation and the property’s
reopening, the Group received several purchase offers. Eventually,
the property was sold, resulting in a net profit of more than S$1.0
million within a one-year holding period and lowered monthly
financing costs.

At the end of the year, the Group reevaluated its coffee shop
outlets and decided to lease out one of them. This brought the
Group greater returns when comparing the rental yield and cost of
self-operating. The manpower was redeployed and re-trained to
relieve short-staffed outlets.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

TREREE (B)

New Outlets

The Group continues to expand its presence through the opening
of new food outlets. In September 2023, the Group opened a
newly secured coffee shop outlet located at Punggol Drive.
Situated within a developing precinct, the Group focused on
providing quality, variety, and affordability to the community. The
space was thoughtfully planned and designed to invite customers
to enjoy nine different food options in a vibrant, aesthetic dining
environment. Aligned with the government's initiative to keep living
costs affordable, each food stall offers budget-friendly meal
options.

In the course of expansion, the Group also acted with prudence by
making consolidation efforts across our food stalls. During the year,
the Group opened more than 10 food stalls, marking its new
presence across five locations in Singapore. At the same time, the
Group closed underperforming food stalls to stem losses and
redeploy existing resources to newly opened stalls. We continue to
observe the evolving market and perform decisions based on
business sustainability and responsible growth strategies.

The Group is also pleased to announce that our new headquarters,
an 8-storey food factory, commenced construction and is expected
to be completed by the end of this year. The establishment of a
central kitchen enables the Group to venture into a new business
segment, supplying our own captive F&B outlets. Centralising our
purchase activities will also mean better pricing and economies of
scale for the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

TREREE (B)

Financial Review

For FY2023, the Group recorded consolidated revenue of
approximately S$55.7 million, representing an increase of
approximately 17.9% from S$47.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 (“FY2022"). The increase was mainly due to
higher revenue from the sale of cooked food, beverages and
tobacco products.

Notwithstanding the tough operating environment, the Group has
managed to control our costs well to achieve greater profitability.
The Group recorded a consolidated net profit after tax of
approximately S$7.3 million for FY2023, representing an increase
of approximately 28.8% from approximately S$5.7 million in
FY2022. The increase in the profit after tax was primarily
attributable to (i) higher revenue of approximately S$8.4 million; (ii)
increase in fair value changes of investment properties of
approximately S$4.1 million; (i) gain on disposal of a subsidiary of
approximately S$1.2 million; and partially offset by (iv) increase in
cost of inventories consumed of approximately S$3.2 million; (v)
increase in staff costs of approximately S$4.3 million; (vi) increase
in property rentals and related expenses of approximately S$0.8
million; (vii) increase in other operating expenses of approximately
$0.3 million; and (viii) increase in finance costs of approximately
$1.2 million.

The balance sheet of the Group remains healthy. The Group
generated cash from operating activities and investing activities of
approximately S$8.9 million and S$3.7 million, respectively. These
were offset by cash used in financing activities of approximately
S$11.1 million, resulting in a net increase in cash and cash
equivalents from approximately S$1.4 million as at the beginning of
the year to approximately S$7.4 million as at 31 December 2023.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

TREREE (B)

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group endeavours to foster a corporate culture that promotes
integrity, accountability, effective communication, teamwork, and
innovation. Furthermore, the Group aspires to be responsible
corporate citizens and active participants in the communities where
the Group operates, contributing through charitable donations and
volunteer initiatives.

In Singapore, community centres (“CC") serve as public hubs
where community members come together for group activities,
social support, public information dissemination, and various other
purposes. The Group actively participates in CC-hosted events
annually, such as the festival light-ups, fostering a sense of
communal spirit. The Group maintains ongoing collaborations with
CCs to offer community scholarships and distribute food vouchers
to underprivileged households identified within the community.
Additionally, apart from our engagements with CCs, the Group
extends its support by donating to registered Institutions of Public
Character, contributing to the welfare of the less privileged. One
such donation was made during the year to sponsor an ambulance
for a centre providing for the less-privileged.

Outlook

Being in the F&B industry, the Group utilises significant manpower
relative to our scale of operations. The Group anticipates that the
industry’s manpower shortage will continue, and despite our
proactive efforts to recruit new staff and retain current employees,
we acknowledge that this will pose a challenge in the foreseeable
future. The Group has been adjusting remuneration packages to
stay competitive in the recruitment and retention of employees and
expects that labour costs will continue to increase, albeit at a
slower rate.

Geopolitical tensions and persistently high inflation have kept
interest rates elevated throughout the year. The Group managed to
secure and structure certain loans at low fixed rates previously,
which delayed the impact of higher interest rates on the Group.
Nevertheless, some of these loans were repriced during the year,
and more are due for repricing in the coming year, which has had
and will continue to result in higher financing costs for the Group.
We will closely monitor the development of interest rates and their
impact on the Group’s loans to minimise the impact on profitability.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

TREREE (B)

The Group also had to grapple with rising utility costs, rental, costs
of inventories and construction materials during the year. Subdued
consumer spending amidst an increasing number of competitors
has also presented formidable challenges to the Group, as
consumers are spoilt with choices from many food establishments
offering a wide range of cuisines and dining experiences. While the
Group is hopeful that the rising rate of operation costs will slow
down in 2024, our experienced operations team and the Group will
continue to enhance its costing strategies to achieve sustainable
operational expenses without compromising on quality.

Despite these challenges, | am proud to report that our company
has remained resilient in the face of adversity. Through prudent
financial management, strategic decision-making, and unwavering
dedication from our team, we have managed to mitigate the impact
of the economic headwinds to a significant extent.

Moving forward, we maintain a cautious yet optimistic view of the
prospects of the F&B sector. We acknowledge that uncertainties
persist, and the road to a more stable global landscape may be long
and arduous. However, we are committed to adapting to shifting
market dynamics while remaining steadfast in upholding our core
values and strategic goals. We will continue to adapt, innovate, and
explore new avenues for growth, strategic investments and
venturing into new markets. We will focus on enhancing
operational efficiencies, optimizing our product offerings, and
strengthening customer relationships.

We are constantly reviewing and will dispose of underperforming
assets or businesses to free up capital, which may then be
redeployed for other growth opportunities. The Group will continue
to look for potential business opportunities in Singapore and
globally that could diversify our income streams and further
enhance value for our shareholders.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

TREREE (B)

In Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would also like to extend my sincere
thanks to the Directors, management and staff of the Group for
their dedication and hard work in moving the Group forward. In
particular, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
gratitude to my fellow Executive Director, Ms. Chu Pek Si, for her
immense contributions to the Group’s development. Throughout
her term, she played key roles in the Group’'s business
development and acquisitions. Ms. Chu was also responsible for
matters relating to investor relations as well as corporate
governance compliance. Her strategic vision and unwavering
commitment have been instrumental in navigating the challenges
the Group faced and seizing the opportunities that have come our
way.

To all our suppliers, customers, landlords, tenants, and other
stakeholders, | would like to express my appreciation for their
unwavering support and trust in us. Lastly, | would like to thank our
shareholders for their loyalty and confidence in the Group. We will
continue to work hard to drive shareholder value and achieve
sustained growth and success in the years ahead.

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)
Chairman

28 March 2024
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Directors and Senior Management

E=ZheREERE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhiqgiang) (4% 3%) ( “Mr. Chu”), aged
52, has been with the Group since 2004. He is the chairman of the
Board, the chief executive officer of the Company, an executive
Director, and the controlling shareholder of the Company (the
“Controlling Shareholder”), as well as a member of the
nomination committee of the Board (the “"Nomination
Committee”), a member of the remuneration committee of the
Board (the “Remuneration Committee”) and a member of the
internal control compliance committee of the Board (the “Internal
Control Compliance Committee”). Mr. Chu was appointed as a
Director on 13 March 2018 and redesignated as an executive
Director, the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of
the Company on 30 August 2018. He is primarily responsible for
the overall strategic planning, management and operation of the
Group. Mr. Chu is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Chu is an entrepreneur and has over 20 years of experience in
the food and beverage industry. Since May 1993, Mr. Chu has
been the sole proprietor of E Teng What Fisheries, a business
principally engaged in wholesale import, export and retail of fishes,
and he was primarily responsible for the overall management of
the business. Since July 2002, Mr. Chu has been working in Fu
Chan Food Paradise, a sole-proprietor business that is principally
engaged in food and beverage industry.

Save for being the spouse of Ms. Leow Poh Hoon (Liao Baoyun)
and the father of Ms. Chu Pek Si (Zhu Peishi), both executive
Directors, Mr. Chu does not have any relationship with other
Directors and members of the senior management of the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

sEhafhERE (&

Ms. Leow Poh Hoon (Liao Baoyun) (B % =) ( “Ms. Leow”),
aged 53, has been with the Group since January 2004 as
operations manager of Fu Chan F&B Pte Ltd. She was appointed
as a Director on 13 March 2018 and re-designated as an executive
Director on 30 August 2018. She is primarily responsible for the
day-to-day operation, budget and strategic planning and
administration of the Group. Ms. Leow is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Leow has over 20 years of experience in the food and
beverage industry. Prior to joining the Group, from October 1992 to
July 2000, Ms. Leow worked in E Teng What Fisheries as an
operation assistant, being primarily responsible for operation of
business. Since April 2003, Ms. Leow began working in Fu Chan
Food Paradise together with Mr. Chu, being primarily responsible
for operation of business.

Save for being the spouse of Mr. Chu and the mother of Ms. Chu
Pek Si (Zhu Peishi), both executive Directors, Ms. Leow does not
have any relationship with other Directors and members of the
senior management of the Group.

Ms. Chu Pek Si (Zhu Peishi) ( &%) ( “Ms. Chu”), aged 27, was
appointed as a non-executive Director on 30 August 2018 and was
redesignated as an executive Director on 10 October 2020. Ms.
Chu is the daughter of Mr. Chu and Ms. Leow, both executive
Directors. She is responsible for mergers & acquisitions and
property management initiatives of the Group. Ms. Chu is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Chu joined the Group in December 2012 and worked as an
administrative assistant until June 2017 during which she was
responsible for providing administrative support to the business
operations and assisting daily operation and co-ordination of the
food centres and food street. Ms. Chu rejoined the Group in April
2018 and has been working as a part-time administrative assistant
of the Group where she is mainly responsible for payroll and
operations.

Ms. Chu obtained a certificate in supervise construction work for
workplace safety and health (formerly known as building
construction supervisors safety course) and a diploma in civil
engineering with business, in January 2015 and March 2016, both
from Singapore Polytechnic. She also obtained a Degree of
Bachelor of Engineering with Honours in Civil Engineering in
September 2020 from the Singapore Institute of Technology.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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Save for being the daughter of Mr. Chu and Ms. Leow, Ms. Chu
does not have any relationship with other Directors and members
of the senior management of the Group.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Loke Tan ( “Mr. Wong "), aged 68, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 1 February 2019. He is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee, a member of the audit
committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”) and a member
of the Remuneration Committee. He is responsible for providing
independent judgment on issues of policy, accountability, resources
and standard of conduct.

Mr. Wong has over 30 years of banking experience. His experience
and expertise span across syndicated loans, project financing,
structured trade financing and mergers and acquisitions. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Wong worked in various international banks
including OCBC Bank where he worked from 1989 to 2003 and
was responsible for handling various portfolios of corporate clients.
From July 2003 to his retirement in June 2016, he worked at
Maybank, with his last position as senior vice president and head
of Singapore main branch business centre in the bank’s commercial
banking unit, where he built a strong SME portfolio consisting of
many established players in their respective industries in
Singapore.

Mr. Wong is an independent director of the following listed
companies:

(a)  Union Steel Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Mainboard of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
(the “"SGX-ST") (stock code: BLA.SI);

(b)  Adventus Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Catalist
board of the SGX-ST (stock code: 5EF.SI); and

(c) International Cement Group Ltd, a company listed on the
Mainboard of the SGX-ST (stock code: KUO.SI).

Mr. Wong is also the non-executive independent chairman of Koyo
International Limited, a company listed on the Catalist board of the
SGX-ST (stock code: KOYO.SI).

BAREERBR LT ZXRIN  RELLEAR
SEEMESRNSMEEKE YL BAEREE -

BYFHTES
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Mr. Wong is dedicated to contribute to civic organisations such as
the Saint Gabriel's School Management Committee in Singapore.
In 2018, he was awarded the silver medallion service award by the
Ministry of Education of Singapore in recognition of his
contributions and services.

Mr. Wong obtained his master of business administration degree
from Brunel University London in the United Kingdom in May 1996.
He later obtained an executive diploma in directorship from the
Singapore Management University and the Singapore Institute of
Directors in March 2013.

Mr. Mah Seong Kung (S # /) ( “Mr. Mah”), aged 56, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 1 February
2019. He is the chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. He is
responsible for providing independent judgment on issues of
policy, accountability and reporting, resources and standard of
conduct.

Mr. Mah obtained his bachelor's degree of accountancy from the
National University of Singapore in 1991. He is also a chartered
accountant of the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants.
Mr. Mah is currently an associate partner of Biztrack Consultants
Private Limited, a nominated advisor with the National Stock
Exchange of Australia (“NSX").

Mr. Mah is also an independent director of | M Quarries Limited, a
company listed on the NSX (stock code: NSX.IM1).

Mr. Mah has close to 30 years of industry experience by having
worked in managerial positions of an entertainment content
production company, licensed capital market services advisory firm,
public listed education provider and investment company, and as
an investment manager of private equity fund management
company.
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Mr. Ng Yong Hwee (E = #) ( “Mr. Ng”), aged 59, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 29 June 2021. He is
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Ng graduated from National University of Singapore with
bachelor’'s degree of economics and statistics in 1990 and
University of Warwick in the United Kingdom with master’s degree
of business administration in 2001. Mr. Ng is a member of
Singapore Institute of Directors (SID) and an SID Senior Accredited
Board Director.

Mr. Ng is seasoned professional with 30 years of work experience
and more than 15 years of CEO and Board experience. The first 15
years of his professional career were with leading global companies
(Esso, BASF and GE). The last 15 years were working for Temasek-
linked companies (City Gas and NetLink Trust) and family-controlled
businesses (Canadian Steamship Lines and Union Gas Holdings
Limited).

Mr. Ng has deep experience in the infrastructural segment which
included oil, gas, energy, utilities, desalination of seawater to
drinking water, petrochemicals and fibre broadband.

Mr. Ng is a specialist in business development, sales and
marketing, mergers and acquisitions, business integration, strategic
and corporate planning, financing and fund raising as well as supply
chain. Also, he has experience in listing companies on the SGX
Mainboard and Catalist, and as a Business Trust.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Man Yun Wah (X &%) ( “Mr. Man”), aged 41, was
appointed as the company secretary of the Company on 30
September 2020.

Mr. Man holds a bachelor’'s degree in business administration and
management and a master’s degree in corporate governance. He is
currently an associate member of both The Chartered Governance
Institute and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute. Mr.
Man has extensive experience in the company secretarial
profession.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yin Hongzhi (F4I#8) ( “Mr. Yin”), aged 45, joined the Group
in October 2021 as the financial controller. Mr. Yin is primarily
responsible for the overall accounting and financial management,
project management, strategic planning and internal control of the
Group.

Mr. Yin has more than 10 years of working experience in the
external audit. Before joining the Group, he worked in three
established Certified Public Accountant firms in Singapore. Mr. Yin
was in charge of the statutory audit of several the SGX-ST listed
companies, major subsidiaries of companies that listed in London
Stock Exchange and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and multinational corporations covering a wide range of industries.

Mr. Yin graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology, the
People’'s Republic of China with a bachelor’'s degree in civil
engineering in July 2002. He also obtained an Honors bachelor’s
degree in applied accounting of Oxford Brookes University in the
United Kingdom in July 2008. Mr. Yin has been the Chartered
Accountant of Singapore since 2014.

Ms. Koh Poy Poy (ZE &) ( “Ms. Koh”), aged 45, is the head of
food centre operations of the Group. She joined the Group in
February 2008 as an accounts assistant where she was initially
responsible for accounts related work and assisting in day to day
business operations. Ms. Koh was promoted to the position of
operation assistant in May 2015 and began also to oversee human
resources and operation matters of the Group. In June 2018, she
was further promoted to current position as head of food centre
operations of the Group. Ms. Koh is responsible for the overall
management and oversight of all food establishments, including
but not limited to setting up of new food establishments,
coordinating with all parties and monitoring compliance with
applicable laws, regulations and licensing requirements across the
Group.

Before joining the Group in February 2008, Ms. Koh worked in
various industries in Malaysia.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND PROSPECT

The core business and revenue structure of the Group remain
unchanged. The Group owns and operates food centres in
Singapore since 2004. The revenue of the Group is primarily
derived from the Group’s two main operating business segments,
being (i) the rental and outlet management operation which
involves the leasing of food establishment premises to tenants and
the provision of management, cleaning and utilities services to
tenants (the “Rental and Outlet Management”), and (ii) the food
and beverage stalls operation which comprises the retailing of
beverage, tobacco products, and cooked food directly to
consumers such as mixed vegetable rice, zi char, roasted meat and
chicken rice located in food establishments operated and managed
by the Group and third parties (the “Food and Beverage Stalls”).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group owned and managed 24 food
centres as follows:

FBoERRE

REBMZLEFRBEEBRIETE K
EEH2004FRRFIMNFEHER RKEFERF
Do REBMIRE X B RFNAEE /M E
EEEBHE BN ERMAREERES
whABEFPIRHER BRRABEERS
MEeREHEEEE((HEeR/EHEE])
AR BBURAEBRE=ZFEENREE
NRE([BEEMN) EERHEEETERRM
EHERLRAR (ZZD%E”‘ B EBERE
BR) BRI & 18

R2023F12A31H REBHEAE KREEI
T24fEEHRL

FY2023 FY2022
2023 T FE 2022 BA R F &

Food centres owned and/or managed  ANEBE %A & oS B H
by the Group ERAFL 24 23

The following sets forth the changes in the number of food centres
owned and/or managed by the Group under the Outlet
Management and Leasing Business for the year stated below:

TXHENAEBFAREHEEREEER
TH#ERR HEBRERFONBES

Number of food centres as at 1 January 2023 R2023F1 A1HNERFLEE 23
Number of food centres opened during 2023 R2023FHBHERFLEE 2
Number of food centres closed during 2023 R2023FHEEMERFLEE (1)
Number of food centres as at 31 December 2023 MR2023F 12 A3THWERFPLEE 24

The Group operated 63 food and beverage stalls as at 31
December 2023 as follows:

R2023F 128318 REE KL AT 630
BEIENL -

FY2023 FY2022

2023 E 2022 BA N 2

In owned properties BRAWE 17 21

In leased properties HEME 27 24
In food centres managed by RBYE=-7EEN

independent third parties ERHPM 19 17

Total B 63 62
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The following sets forth the changes in the number of food and
beverage stalls under the F&B Retail Business for FY2023 stated
below:

Number of food and beverage stalls as at 1 January 2023
Number of food and beverage stalls opened during 2023
Number of food and beverage stalls closed during 2023
Number of food and beverage stalls as at 31 December 2023

The operational landscape for food and beverage businesses in
Singapore continues to be difficult. In Singapore, our costs of
operations, including food, rent, utilities, and labour, have further
increased due to inflationary pressures. Concurrently, higher
interest rates have resulted in a significant increase in our finance
costs. However, despite these hurdles, the Group remains
committed to pursuing sustainable growth opportunities and
crafting responsive business strategies to adapt to the rapidly
evolving market landscape and trends, all while ensuring prudent
cost management. The Group's development initiatives will
prioritise the following areas:

° Dispose underperforming assets or businesses to free up
capital, which may then be redeployed into the F&B sector
and other related growth opportunities;

o Acquire promising F&B businesses and brands to enhance
our product offerings;

° Increase our presence in Singapore by opening new food
establishments; and

° Upgrading existing food centers to elevate the dining
experience for customers.

T&R#F2023 am&rw% KT
BRBUNBES

EXBTH

M2023F1 A1 HHERIENEZE 62
M2023 FHBHERIBAEE 13
R2023 FHEEMEBERIENHE (12)
2023412 A31 B BB 82 63

OB SRR VR L IRIBADABRIR - A0
®-ARBREND  RFANZEXNS 817
REm MHe KEBMEBEHHIKAME—F
SN o RAY - B AR R E BRI 0 B A5 AR
AREBEM- AT BEFEELER K
SENBANSKABEERRSIL HIEE
ERERNEBHRE  NERREZNTS
BREMBE RRERFEMOKANERE K
SERERET BB T E BIA T AR

e HERATEMBEEXEBUELE
T RRBEEHRLBIEREXLEHAM
MHEEREREES

o KBENSHNEREEMMmE LR
HAPTEE Gm A FE

o EBFRINEE UL R IR FIFEFT 0
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group recorded an increase in revenue of approximately S$8.4
million or 17.9% from approximately S$47.3 million for FY2022 to
approximately S$55.7 million for FY2023. The increase was mainly
due to higher revenue from sale of cooked food, beverages and
tobacco products.

The revenue generated from sale of cooked food, beverages and
tobacco products increased by approximately S$8.3 million or
23.4% from approximately S$35.6 million for FY2022 to
approximately S$43.9 million for FY2023, which was mainly due to
an increase in the number of food and beverage stalls during
FY2023 as compared to FY2022.

The revenue generated from rental income from lease of premises
to tenants and provision of management, cleaning and utilities
services remained largely unchanged.

20
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The following table sets forth the breakdown of revenue by the
three categories:

TREIIR=KBEHNE D H YA

FY2023 FY2022
2023 B F 2022 AR

S$$'000 % S$'000 %

F F hn g T % FHEINE T %
Sale of cooked food, beverages HEAR MK

and tobacco products BEEER 43,891 78.7 35,566 75.2
Rental income from lease of HHEMETHEEH

premises to tenants He WA 7,900 14.2 7,834 16.6
Provision of management, REERE - BFEAR

cleaning and utilities services NAEERY 3,949 71 3,890 8.2

55,740 100.0 47,290 100.0

Both revenue streams from lease of premises and provision of
management, cleaning and utilities services were under the
Group’s Rental and Outlet Management business segment, while
sales of cooked food, beverage and tobacco products was under
the Group's Food and Beverage Stalls business segment.

Fair Value Gain of Investment Properties

Fair value gain of investment properties depended largely on
economic conditions, property market sentiment and other factors.
The fair values of the Group’'s investment properties were
determined by direct comparison method. The assessment of fair
values of investment properties was carried out by Knight Frank
Pte. Ltd., an established independent qualified professional valuer
in Singapore having no connection with the Group, which
possesses appropriate qualifications and experience in valuation of
investment properties owned by the Group.

Other income, gains and losses, net

Other income, gains and losses, net, increased by approximately
S$1.0 million or 567.7% from approximately S$0.2 million in
FY2022 to approximately S$1.2 million in FY2023, which was
mainly due to the gain on disposal of a subsidiary which held the
property at 15 Crane Road.

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2023 £ %
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Cost of Inventories Consumed

The cost of inventories consumed increased by approximately
S$3.2 million or 21.0% from approximately S$15.5 million in
FY2022 to approximately S$18.7 million in FY2023, which was in
line with the increase in revenue from sale of the cooked food,
beverages and tobacco products. The cost of inventories consumed
increased at a slower rate as compared to sale of the cooked food,
beverages and tobacco products as a result of the cost control
strategy implemented by the Group and upward adjustment of
selling prices of cooked food, beverages and tobacco products to
cover the increasing costs and electricity tariffs. The cost of
inventories consumed primarily represents the cost of purchases
of food ingredients for its food and beverage retail business,
consisting of fresh and frozen meat, seafood, vegetables, eggs,
dried food, canned food, seasonings, beverages, coffee powder
and cigarettes.

Staff Costs

Staff costs were the second largest component of the operating
expenses and amounted to approximately S$12.7 million and
S$17.0 million for FY2022 and FY2023, respectively, which
accounted for approximately 26.8% and 30.4% of the revenue of
the respective periods. The increase of approximately S$4.3 million
or 33.9% was due to the increase in salaries and increase in head
count for new stalls opened during FY2023.

Property Rentals and Related Expenses

The property rentals and related expenses primarily represent the
rental expenses paid for leasing of properties from independent
third parties for the operation of short-term food and beverage
stalls and food centres. The property rentals and related expenses
increased by approximately S$0.8 million or 20.7% from
approximately S$3.6 million for FY2022 to approximately S$4.4
million for FY2023, which was mainly due to the opening of several
new stalls during FY2023.
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Management, Cleaning and Utilities Expenses

The management, cleaning and utilities expenses increased by
approximately S$0.6 million or 19.9% from approximately S$2.8
million for FY2022 to approximately S$3.4 million for FY2023. The
increase was mainly attributable to the opening of several new
stalls during FY2023.

Other Operating Expenses

The other operating expenses increased by approximately S$0.3
million or 9.1% from approximately S$3.8 million for FY2022 to
approximately S$4.1 million for FY2023. The increase was mainly
attributable to (i) higher administrative and service fees paid to food
delivery platforms arising from an increase in sales through such
platforms; and (ii) higher property taxes due to an increase in
valuation of our properties.

EE -BFRARLOASEEMAX

B BERRAHABEAYA20220REE
M42.8E EF B ITIEINA0.6 B B MK
T 19.9% £ 20230 R FENH34BEH
DI TT o BRIIE AN JH E B iR AR 2023 4
FERIRR T AT EAL -

H&Emx

Hi QST H2020 BERENLHI8ES
FNP A0 E EFH MNP LK% E
2023 N FERIAA1E B F I T - 30
DEBREAR)BBERBEET &K HEEH
m BHEINFZEFENTRERERS
BRm MIBRBEMOMEGELEN ¥
E b 3

2023 2022

2023 F 2022 F

S$$000 S$'000

FH M T T3 b T

Administrative fee THRER 979 619
Advertisement and promotion EEREE 169 199
Insurance Rb 34 36
Property tax and related costs SIEXISEEL DN 644 523
Repairs and maintenance HiERIRE 788 800
Legal and professional fee FEREEER 745 754
Telephone and communication ESEpS Sk 48 43
Donation B 419 519
Others H A 301 290
4,127 3,783
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Finance Costs

The finance costs increased by approximately S$1.2 million or
70.1% from approximately S$1.6 million for FY2022 to
approximately S$2.8 million for FY2022, which was mainly
attributable to higher interest rates on outstanding loans.

Taxation

The income tax expense increased slightly by approximately S$0.1
million or 21.3% from approximately S$0.5 million in FY2022 to
approximately S$0.6 million in FY2023. The increase was primarily
due to underprovision of tax in prior years.

Profit for the Year

The increase in the profit after tax was primarily attributable to (i)
higher revenue of approximately S$8.4 million; (ii) increase in fair
value changes of investment properties of approximately S$4.1
million; (iii) gain on disposal of a subsidiary of approximately S$1.2
million; and partially offset by (iv) increase in cost of inventories
consumed of approximately S$3.2 million; (v) increase in staff costs
of approximately S$4.3 million; (vi) increase in property rentals and
related expenses of approximately S$0.8 million; (vii) increase in
other operating expenses of approximately S$0.3 million; and (viii)
increase in finance costs of approximately S$1.2 million.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a capital commitment of
approximately S$6.8 million in relation to the redevelopment of the
property held by First Capital.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEN WA (8)

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 23
August 2023 in respect of the completion of disposal of the entire
issued share capital of FS 700 Pte. Ltd. to an individual and a
resident of Singapore, at a consideration of S$6.5 million.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

As all of the operations of the Group were located in Singapore, all
revenue from customers of the Group were derived from activities
in Singapore.

During FY2023, the Group did not experience any significant
difficulty or impact on its operations or liquidity due to fluctuations
in currency exchange rates. The management will continue to
monitor the foreign exchange exposure and take prudent measures
to reduce foreign exchange risks.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout FY2023. The finance department of the Group
was responsible for treasury management functions, which
include, amongst others, researching and evaluating investment
options for further consideration by the management and the
Board, and monitoring the investments on a continuous basis.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

During FY2023, the Group held no significant investment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group's key financial
position indicators as follows:

RBEERMBER

2023 F &2022F 12 A31H  AEEMNE
ZPBIRRIERAT

2023 2022

2023 F 2022

S$'000 S$'000

T Frhng T F N T

Current assets RBNEE 10,768 9,843
Current liabilities mENBE 20,378 14,929
Net current liabilities MEBEFE (9,610) (5,086)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ETERITER 90,653 95,910
Equity M 86,418 77,574

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had aggregate outstanding
bank borrowings of approximately S$90.6 million, which was a
decrease of approximately S$5.3 million or 5.5% from
approximately S$95.9 million as at 31 December 2022. The
decrease was mainly due to repayment of the loan for the property
at 15 Crane Road pursuant to the disposal of a subsidiary.

These bank borrowings consisted of term loans, secured mortgage
loans and working capital loan. The working capital loan, term loans
and secured mortgage loans related to financing for the purchase
of property, plant and equipment and investment properties were
secured by the respective assets, corporate guarantee provided by
the Company and its subsidiaries.

The Group had unutilised banking facilities of approximately S$18.3
million. The Group aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by
keeping sufficient bank balances and committed credit lines
available to manage its business in a manner consistent with the
short-term and long-term financial strategies of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEN WA (8)

GEARING RATIO

Gearing ratio is calculated based on the interest-bearing liabilities
divided by the total equity as at the respective year/period end and
multiplied by 100%. The Group's interest-bearing liabilities mainly
comprised bank borrowings for the purchase of the properties. As
at 31 December 2023, the Group’s gearing ratio was approximately
104.9%, decreased from approximately 123.6% as at 31
December 2022. The change in the Group's gearing ratio was
primarily due to a reduction in the Group's borrowings resulting
from the repayment of the loan associated with the property at 15
Crane Road following the disposal of a subsidiary.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 6 March 2019 for which the Company issued
200,000,000 new shares at HK$0.75 per offer share on 6 March
2019, as set out in the announcement of the Company dated 5
March 2019. After deducting related listing expenses, the net
proceeds of the Share Offer were approximately HK$110.0 million
(the “Net Proceeds”).

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 30
September 2022. In order to enable the Group to effectively
implement the business strategies to respond to the fast-evolving
market and trends, the Board changed the use of the remaining
Net Proceeds.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BIEE Mo ()

Up to 31 December 2023, the Group had utilised the Net Proceeds H 220235128310 AEEFBHHAER

as follows: HFE2BANT
Utilised Net Unutilised
Proceeds Net Proceeds
as at as at
Original Revised 31 December 31 December
Intended uses of the Net Proceeds allocation allocation 2023 2023
2023 F R2023 F
12A31H 12A31H
MEEA MR E A
RA S oH] FrigRIR B8
FeRBEFERTEAE iy il FE HEE
(HK$'000) (HK$'000) (HK$'000) (HK$'000)
(F#&m) (F&m) (F#&x) (F#&Rr)
To partly fund the purchase of ABEEZRPLRER
food centres HrE:
a. 101 Yishun a. 101 Yishun 34,760 - (34,760) -
b. 150 South Bridge Road b. 150 South Bridge Road 5,610 - (5,610) -
To purchase food centers BEERPL 35,530 - (35,530) -
To partially repay outstanding EESDH REENRT
bank borrowings EEN 11,110 - (11,110) -
To renovate existing food centres BHBBERDPL 5,610 4,567 (10,177) -
To upgrade IT infrastructure and Tz B R SR R i I
system ZH 6,270 (4,567) (1,703) -
General working capital —REEESD 11,110 - (11,110) -
Total f@ast 110,000 - (110,000) -
EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES BT REFMER

M2023F 12 A31H  AEBEEEFL412%
(20224 :373%) EL - NEBE M H M EE
HARBITMHEN - WRKER B TARE -
EREKBET ALEEEREETHFER
FHAR - ENEETITNHFHRESTE  E
N FRIBIEAL -

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 412 employees
(2022: 373). The Group’s remuneration policies were in line with
the prevailing market practice and were determined on the basis of
performance, qualification and experience of each individual
employee. The Group recognised the importance of a good
relationship with its employees. The remuneration payable to its
employees included salaries, allowances and performance
bonuses.

28 K2 F&BHOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUALREPORT 2023



Corporate Governance Report
PRERWMSE

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in
the annual report of the Company for FY2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high corporate governance
standards to safeguard the interests of Shareholders, enhance
corporate value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and
enhance its transparency and accountability. The Company's
corporate governance practices are based on the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG
Code"”) contained in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the "Listing Rules”).
During FY2023, the Company has adopted and, save for the
deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code as disclosed in
this report, has complied with all applicable code provisions as set
out in the CG Code. The Group will continue to review and enhance
its corporate governance practices to ensure its continued
compliance with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as
set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry with all the Directors and each of the Directors confirmed
that he/she had complied with the Model Code for FY2023.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the
“"Employees Written Guidelines"”) no less exacting than the
Model Code for securities transactions by employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information
of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Employees
Written Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TrEERRE (B

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising
the management of business affairs and overall and performance
of the Group.

The Board reserves its decisions for all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control systems,
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular those
that may involve conflict of interests), financial information, change
of Directors, ad hoc projects and other significant financial and
operational matters. The Board has the full support of the
management to discharge its responsibilities.

The day to day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to executive Directors and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the above
mentioned officers.

The Directors have full access to information of the Group and the
management has an obligation to supply the Directors with
adequate information in a timely manner to enable the Directors to
perform their responsibilities. The Directors are entitled to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company's expense.

In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to
the board committees of the Company. Further details of the board
committees of the Company are set out on pages 34 to 41 of this
annual report.

For FY2023, the Board has reviewed the above arrangements for
the delegation of responsibilities to the senior management and
considered it to be appropriate.

30

K2 F&BHOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUALREPORT 2023

EExg

BfE
EXESIEREERENEEAEEEBER
REERR -
EXeREBHARAMBERFTE ZRRE
BIEENE %—Xﬁﬁﬁﬁl REE  BERBL
%E%‘ 45* %U? %EE%MJL Ej(
R 5 (K hIZF 8 /*/F)SUF'J SHRZRSF)

BEK BEF2FE FREAUREMERXN
MBREESE ESQREEEE2NIXH
JBITHEE-

ARAAFER THEEEDZRIR THT

EEREREEE ZRBRELTIESEH
Wt S EBE R EMEARRSA

AEREMSEZSHE -

SEXEREHAKEMBEEN MEEESR
AEEMRRESRHADEN UEERE
THERR EFEREEEBRATISREL
BEXER BRBARREE-

N BEEENERLZEBE FARRES
LTEe -BHEARREZZESNE—FHF
15 R AFEREMEL1H -

K203 BFE BEEgCEZLRAE LM
BN SLEEEERBENTHES -



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEBERWNE (B)

Directors and officers’ liabilities

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnity the Directors for their liabilities arising from corporate
activities. The insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual
basis.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises six Directors, consisting of three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors
as detailed below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Leow Poh Hoon (Liao Baoyun)

Ms. Chu Pek Si (Zhu Peishi)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Loke Tan

Mr. Mah Seong Kung

Mr. Ng Yong Hwee

During FY2023, save as disclosed in this report, there was no
change in the composition of the Board.

The biographical information of the Directors is set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 11
to 17 of this annual report.

Ms. Leow is the spouse of Mr. Chu and Ms. Chu is the daughter of
Mr. Chu and Ms. Leow.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 11 to 17 of this annual report, the
Directors have no other financial, business, family or other material,
reference relationships with each other.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TrEERRE (B

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Under the current organisational structure
of the Company, Mr. Chu is the chairman and chief executive
officer. With extensive experience in the food and beverage
industry, the Board considers that vesting the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer in the same person is beneficial to the
business prospects and management of the Group. The balance of
power and authority is ensured by the operation of the senior
management and the Board, which comprise experienced and high
caliber individuals. The Board currently comprises three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors, therefore
the Board has a strong independence element in its composition.

Independent non-executive Directors

During FY2023, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of the
Board. These independent non-executive Directors are seasoned
individuals from diversified backgrounds and industries and one
member has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The independent non-executive Directors serve the relevant
function of bringing independent judgment and advice on the
overall management of the Company. They take the lead where
potential conflicts of interests arise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for
FY2023. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance
with the terms of the guidelines throughout FY2023.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years and will
continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other. The executive
Directors can only serve the termination notice after the initial fixed
term in accordance with their service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial fixed term
of one year and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than one month’s notice in writing by served by either party on the
other.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation). In accordance
with the Company's articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”), all the Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and any new Director
appointed to fill a causal vacancy shall submit himself for election
by the Shareholders at the first general meeting of the Company
after appointment and new Director appointed as an addition to the
Board shall submit himself for re-election by Shareholders at the
next following annual general meeting of the Company (the
“Annual General Meeting") after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, monitoring the appointment, re-election and
succession planning of Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspect of the Company’s affairs, the Board
has established four Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Internal Control Compliance Committee
(together, the “Board Committees”). The Board has delegated
responsibilities to the Board Committees as set out in their
respective terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 1 February 2019
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules and the CG Code as set out in Appendix C1 to
the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include
but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, approving
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and handling any question of resignation or dismissal
of that auditor;

° reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s
independence, objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with applicable standards and
discussing with the auditor the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations before the commercial of the audit;

° developing and implementing a policy on the engagement of
an external auditor to supply non-audit services;

° monitoring the integrity of the Company's financial
statements, annual report and accounts, half-year report and
quarterly reports, and reviewing significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them;
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discussing the Company's risk management and internal
control systems with the Company’s management to ensure
that it has performed its duty in having effective internal
control systems. This discussion should include the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function;

considering major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on
its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;

ensuring co-ordination between the internal and external
auditors, and to ensure that the Internal Audit Function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company, and reviewing and monitoring its effectiveness;

reviewing the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management in
respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and management’s response;

ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor's management letter;

reporting to the Board on the matters in the terms of
reference of the Audit Committee;

considering other topics, as defined by the Board;

acting as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices; and

establishing a whistle blowing policy and system for
employees and those who deal with the Company (e.g.,
customers and suppliers) so that they can, in confidence, to
raise concerns about possible improprieties in any matter
related to the Company and ensure that proper arrangements
are in place for fair and independent investigation of these
matters.
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The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Mah (chairman), Mr. Wong and Mr. Ng.

The members of the Audit Committee possess appropriate
professional qualifications and/or experience in financial matters.

The Audit Committee reviewed, together with senior management
and the external auditors, the financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2023 and for FY2023, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Company, statutory
compliance, other financial reporting matters, risk management and
internal control systems and continuing connected transactions of
the Company.

During FY2023, the Audit Committee held four meetings including
the interim results of the Company for the six months ended 30
June 2023 and the annual results of the Company for FY2022.
Details of the attendance of the members of the Audit Committee
in the said meetings are set out under the sub-heading
“Attendance Records of Directors and Board Committee
Members"” on page 43 of this annual report.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board (which
endorsed the recommendation) that, subject to Shareholders’
approval at the Company's forthcoming Annual General Meeting,
Fan, Chan & Co. Limited be re-appointed as the Company's
external auditors for the year 2024.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 1
February 2019 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The written terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The principal roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and
members of the senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure in the
development of a remuneration policy;

° making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of all individual executive Directors and members of
the senior management, including benefits in kind and
compensation payments;

° reviewing and approving the management’s performance-
based remuneration proposals by reference to the Board's
corporate goals and objectives from time to time;

° ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associate(s) is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration;

° making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;

° considering factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
directors, and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group
and desirability of performance-based remuneration; and

° reviewing and approving compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management of the Company for any
loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it
is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and
not excessive.

° reviewing and/approving matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director,
namely Mr. Chu, and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ng (chairman), Mr. Wong and Mr. Mah.

During FY2023, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting to
review terms of remuneration package offered to Directors and
senior management.

Details of the attendance of the members of the Remuneration
Committee in the said meetings are set out under the sub-heading
“Attendance Records of Directors and Board Committee
Members"” on page 43 of this annual report.

Details of the fees and other emoluments paid or payable to the
Directors and the five individuals with the highest emoluments are
set out in notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for FY2023 (the “Consolidated Financial
Statements”) respectively.

The remuneration paid to members of the senior management by
band during FY2023 is set out below:
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HWEREMFM2FHE  2RENEAEER
2023 T Eir A K ([ SREMBE®RE )
BIEE10 11 °

K203 HFE  BEFMEBEI D ZENE
REBEKRE 2 HMEIMT

Number of Individuals

In Singapore dollars ( “S$”) LA 3 o ([ %703 7o 1) & AE
0-200,000 0-200,000 2
Directors Remuneration Policy EEHMBECE

The Company has adopted a Director Remuneration Policy, it sets
out the general principles which guide the Group to deal with the
remuneration matters. This remuneration policy aims to provide a
fair market level of remuneration to retain and motivate high quality
directors, senior management of the Group and attract experienced
people of high calibre to oversee the business and development of
the Group.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 1
February 2019 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. The written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The principal roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include but are not limited to:

o reviewing the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
skills, knowledge, professional qualifications and industry
experience) of the Board at least on an annual basis and
making recommendations on any proposed change to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° identifying individuals who are suitably qualified to become
Board members and selecting or making recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

° assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company; and

° developing and reviewing the policy of the Board on diversity
and measurable objectives for implementing such policy from
time to time and adopted by the Board and reviewing
progress on achieving the objectives.
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The Nomination Committee consults the chairman of the Board
about his proposals relating to the process for Board appointments
and for identifying and nominating candidates as members of the
Board.

The criteria for the Nomination Committee to select and
recommend a candidate for directorship include the candidate’s
skills, knowledge, experience and integrity and whether he/she can
demonstrate a standard of competence commensurate with his/
her position as a director of the Company.

The Nomination Committee has also adopted a nomination policy
(the “Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria
and procedure of appointing and re-appointing a Director. Details of
the Nomination Policy are set out under the sub-heading
“Nomination Policy” on pages 46 to 47 of this annual report.

The selection criteria used in assessing the suitability of a candidate
include, inter alia, his/her academic background and professional
qualifications, relevant experience in the industry, character and
integrity and whether he/she can contribute to the diversity of the
Board as detailed in the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”). Details of the Board Diversity Policy are set out
under the sub-heading “Board Diversity Policy” on page 45 of this
annual report.

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director,
namely Mr. Chu, and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wong (chairman), Mr. Mah and Mr. Ng.

During FY2023, the Nomination Committee held one meeting to
recommend the Board on the re-election of Directors.

Details of the attendance of the members of the Nomination
Committee in the said meeting are set out under the sub-heading
“Attendance Records of Directors and Board Committee
Members"” on page 43 of this annual report.
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Internal Control Compliance Committee

The Company established the Internal Control Compliance
Committee on 1 February 2019 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code.

The principal roles and functions of the Internal Control Compliance
Committee include the following:

° monitoring and ensuring the Group's compliance with
Singapore laws, rules and regulations as applicable to the
Group’s operations;

° providing status reports to the Board on a regular basis;
° engaging external advisers where necessary; and

° taking all necessary measures as it thinks appropriate to
ensure the aforesaid measures are properly implemented.

The Internal Control Compliance Committee comprises one
executive Director, namely Mr. Chu, one independent non-
executive Director, namely Mr. Ng (chairman) and a member of the
senior management team, namely Mr. Yin.

During FY2023, the Internal Control Compliance Committee held
one meeting to review the Company's policies and practices on its
internal control and policies and practices and compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements.

Details of the attendance of the members of the Internal Control
Compliance Committee in the said meetings are set out under the
sub-heading “Attendance Records of Directors and Board
Committee Members"” on page 43 of this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code:

o developing and reviewing the Company’'s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

° reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and members of
the senior management;

° reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

° developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

° reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During FY2023, the Board had reviewed the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance issues, the Company’s
compliance with CG Code, the Company's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines,
the disclosure in the corporate governance report, and monitored
the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and members of the senior management.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND
BOARD COMMITTEE MEMBERS

& (8)

The attendance record of each Director at the Board, the Board
Committee meetings and the general meeting of the Company

EEREEZEEHEHELSE

BEFN20BFVREFRERBITNEFTE &
FRECERNARAMEAARNGZHFERLE

held in FY2023 is set out in the table below: HRTRK
Attended/ Eligible to attend
HEAE/ AERERRY
Internal
Control Annual
Audit Remuneration  Nomination ~ Compliance General
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
R
Name of Directors EEp? EZe ENZEE §MzEE R4ZEE LRZEE RRBEEAE
Executive Directors yES
Mr. Chu ik 44 - i - i i
Ms. Leow Bt 44 - - - - i
Ms. Chu xat 44 - - - - N
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Wong Wong 5 4 44 i i - 0
Mr. Mah D%k 44 4f4 1 1 - 1
Mr. Ng Epiks 4f4 44 11 1 " 17
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Newly appointed Director will be arranged a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction which includes provision of key guidelines,
documents and publications relevant to their roles, responsibilities
and ongoing obligations; a briefing on the Company's structure,
businesses, risk management and other governance practices and
meeting with other fellow Directors so as to help the newly
appointed Directors familiarize with the management, business and
governance policies and practices of the Company, and ensure that
they have a proper understanding of the operations and businesses
of the Company.

The Company will from time to time arrange continuing
professional development training for the Directors such as
internally-facilitated briefings and provision of reading material on
relevant topics to ensure the Directors keep abreast of regulatory
developments and changes in order to effectively perform their
responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. All Directors are also encouraged to
attend relevant training courses at the Company's expense.

The following Directors pursued continuous professional

EENREERERE
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EPHFEEEATARANERE - EBUR
ERREMERLERBEEE THART]
Ve B MRS

ARAB AR REELTHRHEEXERIT -
WA ED A S N IR AR R R B FE AR - B
REFZEZERRNEZUERLETH
B UHEAREAEMNBERATHESSFL
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THEEZETHEEEXRR  ARFBEM

development and relevant details are summarised as follows: aan R

Attended

services/ Reading

briefings materials
Name of Directors EEnA HERE BN RIEM B
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chu KAk Vv v
Ms. Leow B4 v Vv
Ms. Chu K+ v Vv
Independent non-executive Directors BIFHITES
Mr. Wong Wong &4 v v
Mr. Mah %4 Vv v
Mr. Ng A v v

a4
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted Board Diversity Policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity of the Board.

The Board sees diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. In designing the Board's composition,
the board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service and any other factors that the Board might
consider relevant and applicable from time to time. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee
will review annually the structure, size and composition of the
Board and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes
to the Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy and
to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth
and is also committed to ensure that recruitment and selection
practices at all levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately
structured so that a diverse range of candidates are considered.

At present, the Nomination Committee considers that the existing
Board Diversity Policy is sufficient to serve the purpose and will
review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its
effectiveness.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for
selection and appointment of Directors to the Nomination
Committee.

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy which sets out the
selection criteria and process and the Board succession planning
considerations in relation to nomination and appointment of
Directors and aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
Company and the continuity of the Board and appropriate
leadership at Board level.

The Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

° character and integrity;

° qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

° diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service;

° requirements of the proposed independent non-executive
Directors;

° independence of independent non-executive Directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules;

° directorship in other public companies and corporate
governance structure of these companies; and

° commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
Committee(s).
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The procedure of appointing and re-appointing a Director is
summarised as follows:

nomination and invitation of suitable candidates by any
member of the Nomination Committee or the Board;

° evaluation of the candidate by the Board based on all
selection criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy;

° performing due diligence in respect of each candidate and
making recommendation for the Board's consideration and
approval;

° in the case of the nomination of an independent non-
executive Director, assessing the candidate’s independence
under the relevant code provisions from the CG Code and the
Listing Rules;

° where nominating an independent non-executive Director for
election at general meetings, having due consideration of
matters under code provision B.3.4 of the CG Code;

° in the context of the re-appointment of retiring Directors,
reviewing the candidate’'s overall contribution and
performance and making recommendations to the Board and/
or the Shareholders in connection with his/her re-election at
general meeting; and

° convening a meeting of the Board to consider the
appointment or re-appointment of the candidate as a Director.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group on an on-
going basis and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and they can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company's strategic objectives, and establishing and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing the design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines with defined authority for
implementation by key business processes and office functions,
including project management, sales and leasing, financial
reporting, human resources and information technology.

All divisions/departments have conducted internal control
assessment regularly to identify risks that potentially impact the
business of the Group and various aspects including key operational
and financial processes, regulatory compliance and information
security. Self-evaluation has been conducted annually to confirm
that control policies are properly complied with by each division/
department.

During FY2023, the Board, through the Audit Committee,
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, including the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experiences, training
programmes, internal audit and financial reporting functions. In this
respect, the Audit Committee communicates any material issue to
the Board.
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The internal auditor is responsible for performing independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems. The internal audit function examined
the key issues in relation to the accounting practices and all
material controls and provided its findings and recommendations
for improvement to the Audit Committee.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee, as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings, reviewed the
risk management and internal control systems, including the
financial, operational and compliance controls, during FY2022 and
considered that such systems are effective and adequate. The
annual review also covered the financial reporting and internal audit
function and staff qualifications, experiences and relevant
resources.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for FY2023.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainty relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 122 to 128 of this
annual report.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY AND ANTI-
CORRUPTION POLICY

The Company has formulated whistle blowing policy that allows all
staff and independent third parties, including customers, suppliers
and contractors, to report any possible improprieties, misconducts,
malpractices or irregularities in matters of financial reporting,
internal control or other matters to the Board or the Audit
Committee anonymously. The Group will handle the reports and
complaints with care and will treat the whistle-blower’s concerns
fairly and properly. Any person who is found to have victimized or
retaliated against those who have raised concerns under this policy
will subject to disciplinary sanctions
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The Group has adopted anti-corruption policy on a zero-tolerance
basis for any form of corruption, including bribery and extortion,
fraud and money laundering, and promise to operate our business
in an honest, ethical and creditable manner. The policies are revised
in due course and all Directors and employees are reminded with
its requirement from time to time.

Please refer to the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
contained in this report for more details

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditors of the
Company, Fan, Chan & Co. Limited, in respect of services for
FY2023 is set out below:

AEBEERDEBHEEPR  HFRAES
EARANESTATRANRETHEE

YAEAHEAHRE AFBEBERTENTALE
BAMER - AEBERETZFER

THREMAESREEBTABMAE

FEHBR2HMAREARER
W] o

3

HEREA

2023 BF I JE h AR 7 B2 AT AR A B ANER AZ B
EBREETAIITER AT MBS 5 &m0
B

Fee Paid/Payable

ENER ENER

(S$'000)

Service Category Bk 75 28 Bl (F#rhni o)
Audit service ZE R

— annual audit services — FEZERTE 110

Non-audit service IEZE RS -

Total st 110

There was no non-audit service provided by Fan, Chan & Co.
Limited for FY2023.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged In.Corp Corporate Services (HK)
Limited, an external service provider, and Mr. Man Yun Wah has
been appointed as the Company’s company secretary. Mr. Man
Yun Wah's primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Yin
Hongzhi, the financial controller of the Company. He reports to the
chairman and/or the chief executive of the Company.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary on corporate governance and board practices
and matters.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company engages with Shareholders through various
communication channels and a shareholders’ communication policy
is in place to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure
its effectiveness.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolutions
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual Director. All
resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
general meeting.

Procedures for Convening an Extraordinary General
Meeting and Putting Forward Proposals at Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association, the Board may,
whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting.

Any one or more members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company’s company secretary, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The requisition must state clearly the name of the requisitionist(s),
their shareholding in the Company, the reason(s) to convene an
extraordinary general meeting, the agenda proposed to be included
and the details of the business(es) proposed to be transacted in the
extraordinary general meeting and signed by the requisitionist(s).
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiry to the Board, the Shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Unit 1307A, 13/F
Two Harbourfront
22 Tak Fung Street, Hunghom
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 3422 8030

Email: feedback@fuchangroup.com

For the avoidance of doubt, the Shareholders must deposit and
send the original duly signed written requisition, notice or
statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address
and provide their full name, contact details and identification in
order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with the Shareholders and in particular, through the
Annual General Meetings and other general meetings. At the
Annual General Meeting, Directors (or their delegates as
appropriate) are available to meet the Shareholders and answer
their enquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
communication policy for the Shareholders which aims at
establishing a two-way relationship, communicating between the
Company and the Shareholders and maintaining a website at
www.fuchangroup.com, where up-to-date information on the
Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are available for public access.

During FY2023, in view of the changes to Appendix A to the Listing
Rules, the Articles of Association were amended, and the adoption
of the second amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association of the Company (the “New Articles of Association”)
was approved by the Shareholders at the 2023 Annual General
Meeting. For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 28 April 2023 and 30 June 2023 and the circular of
the Company dated 28 April 2023. The New Articles of Association
is also available on the Company’'s website and the Stock
Exchange's website.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on payment of
dividends. The Company does not have any pre-determined
dividend payout ratio. Depending on the financial conditions of the
Company and the Group and the conditions and factors as set out
in the dividend policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared
by the Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a
financial year will be subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the
Annual General Meeting.
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The Directors present herewith their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for FY2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated and registered in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability on 13 March 2018. The Shares were
initially listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 6 March
2019 (the “Listing Date").

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 41
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for FY2023. During
FY2023, there was no significant change in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's revenue and contribution to the results
by principal operating activities and the Group's assets and
liabilities by reportable segments of operations for FY2023 is set
out in note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for FY2023.
All of the Group’s businesses were carried out in Singapore during
FY2023 and all of the Group's revenue from external customers
was generated in Singapore during FY2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group as at 31 December 2023
together with the future business development is set out in the
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 5 to 10 and pages 18 to 28
respectively of this annual report. A description of the Group's
corporate governance and the Group's risk management and
internal control system is provided in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 29 to 53 of this annual
report. A discussion on the Group’'s environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group are provided
in the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” on pages 73 to 121 of this annual report.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Consolidated Financial Statements are set out on pages 129 to
227 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
FY2023 (2022: S$Nil).

The forthcoming Annual General Meeting will be held on Friday, 28
June 2024. A notice of which shall be sent to the shareholders of
the Company in accordance with the Articles, the Listing Rules and
other applicable laws and regulations.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 25 June
2024 to Friday, 28 June 2024, both days inclusive, during which no
transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. To be eligible
to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar,
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited of 2103B, 21st Floor, 148
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 24 June 2024 or at another time and/or date
as advised.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during FY2023 are set out in note 16 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for FY2023.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during FY2023 are set out in note 15 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for FY2023. All of the Group’s investment properties
were revalued by independent professional property valuers as at
31 December 2023 using the direct comparison method.

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2023 £ %

FERKRE

AN HRRENAFERE129F 2278

AN
A% 2 (2022 4 :

% oh 2023 B B F B R (AL {7 R 2B
TENSIT) ©

EERRAFASER2024F6 8280 (£
HR) 897 - AR ABRIEME - ETRAIK
HEMERERMEREAR G RETEBA -

HEBFEE

AETRELFEZRERF RGNS
HWEMER  AREER2024F6 A258 (2
Hi—)ZFE 20246 A28 B (EHR) (BIEER
WB)LEEBPER  HEGITEPE AR
NABHDBEERL - AHAERERIRER
FREWNE LIKE - AN2024F6 A248
(BEH—) THFNUE=t+osEsMmEMmB
Mk /KEER BB BFERISEREH
IRE —HREARANBERNBFERL
“F%ﬁ%ﬁ FERBRAR MU AR
1t AERE 148572112 2103BE * U#ETE
a0 °

M BERXE
K203 BREFE - AEEME - BERZE

HE B EHN 2023 M FE A M IEmE
MIZE16 °

REWME
AEBREMER 20230 BEENE BB
HN 2023 B FEERAMBRKRME15 - R

2023F 12 A31H  NEERNMEKREDME
HHRE Y EEMEGEMERERZLEE -

55



Directors’ Report (Continued)
TEEoHE(8)

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2023 are
set out in note 26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for
FY2023.

SHARES CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company
during FY2023 are set out in note 29 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for FY2023.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company's reserves available for
distribution to equity holders comprising share premium and
retained earnings amounted to approximately S$16,576,000
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company during
FY2023 are set out in note 30 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for FY2023 and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 207 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for the pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis
to the existing Shareholders.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 228 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

DONATIONS

During FY2023, the Group donated approximately HK$2,442,000
(approximately S$419,000) to the recognised charities in Singapore.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For FY2023, the Company did not redeem any of its listed
securities, nor did the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase
or sell such securities.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during FY2023 and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Leow Poh Hoon (Liao Baoyun)

Ms. Chu Pek Si (Zhu Peishi)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Loke Tan

Mr. Mah Seong Kung

Mr. Ng Yong Hwee

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Ms. Leow Poh Hoon (Liao
Baoyun) and Mr. Ng Yong Hwee shall retire and being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each
of the independent non-executive Directors and, as at the date of
this annual report, still considers them to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and members of the
senior management are set out on pages 11 to 17 of this annual
report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company, under which they agreed to act as executive
Directors for an initial term of three years, which may be
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either the Director or the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for an initial term of one year,
which may be terminated by not less than one month’s notice in
writing served by the independent non-executive Director or the
Company. Under the respective appointment letters, each of the
independent non-executive Directors is entitled to a fixed Director’s
fee.

The appointments of the Directors are subject to the provisions of
retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles of
Association. None of the Directors has entered into a service
contract or appointment letter with members of the Group that
cannot be terminated by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed "Related Party
Transactions” in note 34 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for FY2023, no contract of significance was entered into between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling
Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during FY2023 or subsisted
as at 31 December 2023 and no contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a
Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries was entered into
during FY2023 or subsisted as at 31 December 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party
Transactions” in note 34 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for FY2023 contained in this report, no transaction, arrangement
and contract of significance to the business of the Group which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director or any entity connected with such a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31
December 2023 or at any time during FY2023.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2023, the interests or short positions of each
Director and the Chief Executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares of the company

Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest
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Number of shares Percentage of
held (Note 1) shareholdings (%)

FERBEE READL
EEpE B REME (Btat1) (%)
Mr. Chu Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 600,000,000 (L) 75.00%
KEE Ry EEkR (Hid2)
Ms. Leow Interest of spouse (Note 3) 600,000,000 (L) 75.00%
B+ Be B (F/a3)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(Continued)

Notes:
1. the letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the relevant Shares.
2. the entire issued share capital of Strong Oriental Limited (“Strong Oriental”)

is legally and beneficially owned by Mr. Chu. Accordingly, Mr. Chu is deemed
to be interested in 600,000,000 shares held by Strong Oriental by virtue of the
SFO.

3. Ms. Leow is the spouse of Mr. Chu. She is deemed to be interested in all the
shares in which Mr. Chu is interested or deemed to be interested by virtue of
the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company had any interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
sEE5gHE(8)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the following corporation (other than a
Director or the chief executive of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the Shares as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the company

Name of Shareholder Capacity/nature of interest

FERRRRADREERONES

R2023F 12 A31 B W TNEE (BEFHAR
AEBITHRABRIN RO HEELEERIR
BBEAENHEEHIE3B6IEATFEZER
MARMERSSARDT

REQNBDEBARNERE

Number of Shares Percentage of
held (Note 1) shareholdings (%)

FERGHE
RRERB B REME (Ftat1) IR T 2L (%)
Strong Oriental Limited Beneficial Owner 600,000,000 (L) 75.00%
EnHBA
Lee Kek Choo Interest in your spouse 49,020,000 (L) 6.13%
A B
Toh Soon Huat Beneficial Owner 49,020,000 (L) 6.13%

EnHBA
Note:

1. the letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no other
corporation which/person (other than a Director or the chief
executive of the Company) had any interest or short position in the
Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

His -

1. FRILIEZBALRED 2T

B EXFTH TSRS B2023F 128318
MEREMEE AL (BEEHARREBITR
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and members of the senior
management of the Group are decided by the Board by reference
to the recommendation given by the Remuneration Committee,
having regard to the Group’'s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five
highest paid individuals in the Group for FY2023 are set out in
notes 10 and 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for
FY2023.

For FY2023, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
Director or any of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the Directors has waived any emoluments for
FY2023.

Saved as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or
are payable, for FY2023, by the Group to or on behalf of any of the
Directors.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible persons,
including the Directors and employees of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that (i) will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares or (ii) require the Company to enter into
any agreement that will or may result in the Company issuing the
Shares were entered into by the Group during FY2023 or existed
as at 31 December 2023.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during FY2023 or as at 31 December 2023 was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt
securities including debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
sEE5gHE(8)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolution of the sole Shareholder passed
on 1 February 2019, the Company adopted a share option scheme
conditional upon the Listing (the “Share Option Scheme"”). The
Share Option Scheme became effective on the Listing Date. As no
share option has been granted by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme since the Listing Date, there was no share option
outstanding as at 31 December 2023 and no option was exercised
or cancelled or lapsed during FY2023.

(a) Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is enable the Board
to grant options to Eligible Persons (as defined below) as
incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group and to recruit and retain high calibre
Eligible Persons and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group.

(b) Eligible persons

The Directors may at any time and within a period of ten (10)
years commencing from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme at their absolute discretion and subject to
such terms, conditions, restrictions or limitations as they may
think fit offer, at the consideration of HK$1.00 per option, to
grant option to any person belonging to the following classes
of participants (the "Eligible person(s)”):

() any employee or proposed employee (whether full time
or part time, including any director) of any member of
the Group or invested entity; and

(i) any supplier of goods or services, any customer, any
person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support, any Shareholders or other
participants who contribute to the development and
growth of the Group or any invested entity.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(c)

(d)

64

Maximum number of Shares available for issue

(i) the maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be allotted and issued upon the exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company shall not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the total number of Shares in issue
from time to time.

(i) the total number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
not in aggregate exceed 80,000,000 Shares, being 10%
of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date of
this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible person

Unless approved by the Shareholders in general meeting and
subject to the following paragraph, no option shall be granted
to any Eligible Person if any further grant of options would
result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options granted and to be granted to such person
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in
the twelve (12) months period up to and including such
further grant would exceed 1% of the total number of Shares
in issue from time to time.

Where an option is to be granted to a substantial Shareholder
or an independent non-executive Director (or any of their
respective associates), and such grant will result in the
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company in the twelve (12) months period
up to and including the date of such grant: (1) representing in
aggregate over 0.1% of the total number of Shares in issue
at the relevant time of grant; and (2) having an aggregate
value, based on the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
each grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such grant shall not be
valid unless approved by the independent Shareholders in
general meeting.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
sEE5gHE(8)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Period within which the securities must be
exercised under an option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the
Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years from
the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination
thereof.

Performance target or minimum period for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised

There is no performance target that has to be achieved or
minimum period in which an option must be held before the
exercise of any option save as otherwise imposed by the
Board in the relevant offer of options.

Period for and consideration payable on acceptance
of an option

An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by an Eligible
Person within the date as specified in the offer letter issued
by the Company, being a date not later than twenty-one (21)
days inclusive of the date upon which it is made, provided
that such date shall not be more than ten (10) years after the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme or after
termination of the Share Option Scheme, and no such offer
may be accepted by a person who ceases to be an Eligible
Person after the offer has been made. The amount payable
by a grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance on
the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. Such
consideration shall in no circumstances be refundable.
Subject to the rules of the Share Option Scheme, option may
be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee at any time
before the expiry of the period to be determined and notified
by the Board to the grantee which in any event shall not be
longer than ten (10) years commencing on the date of the
offer letter and expiring on the last day of such ten (10) years
period.

B8 (&)

(e)

(f)

(9)

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2023 & =

HELARBRBRETENHED

BRETREZS R LETEWHRE AL
By 12 PR B AR ST 81 ORI T I - % B
BASE8ERLARETF AXA
RELIERERIRR -

BRERNETENNREEERL
ERE BTN

BIRERETEABAERIMERIRA
1% NEERBAERA N SE SR -
ExenNREBREZNTSITHEMNE
BRIN

ERERENIBRREZEMNBRE
HEMHAE

BREBRENENTTHAEERALTRA
RAMBEHEQRERT AN B PR
WmoAATERBENEL AR
—t-enR(BFE%A) EZABHT
SHRBRMIB I ERT 8 B B B AR
ERIENT0FR  ARMEHENR
THRAERALTHALHAAEAE
BEL - BIREARANE QB RER
HEAORENRARFNSRER1.008
TLe RRERTABER TN TRE -
RIFEBERT SRR - AFAATRE
=G ET KA AE A MR ATHE
W72 AP sk B0 0 BE A A - I i% BT B
AN R 2 A R B R 1 (10)
F o WARZT (10 FHKE—BEM °

65



Directors’ Report (Continued)
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Basis of determining the exercise price

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as determined by the Board, and shall be at least the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer
to grant an option (the "Offer Date”), which must be a
trading day, on which the Board passes a resolution approving
the making of an offer of grant of an option to an eligible
person; (i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share on the Offer Date.

Remaining life

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be
valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, after which
period no further option shall be granted.

COMPETING BUSINESS

During FY2023, none of the Directors, the Controlling Shareholders
or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had
any interest in any business (apart from the business of the Group)
that competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group other than being a director of the
Company and/or its subsidiaries.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Mr. Chu and Strong Oriental, each being a Controlling Shareholder
have entered into a deed of non-competition dated 1 February 2019
in favour of the Company (the “Deed of Non-competition”),
pursuant to which each of them had irrevocably undertaken with
the Company on joint and several basis (for itself and for the
benefit of each of the subsidiaries) that he/it would not, and would
procure that any of his/its associates (except any member of the
Group) would not, during the period from the Listing Date, to the
date when the Controlling Shareholders or their associates cease
to hold equity interest in the Company and they are not considered
as substantial Shareholders directly or indirectly, either on his own
account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or
company, among other things, carry on, participate or be interested
or engaged in or acquire or hold (in each case whether as a
shareholder, partner, principal, agent, director, employee or
otherwise) any business which is or may be in competition with
the business of any member of the Group from time to time.

The Company has received the confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders in respect of their compliance with the terms of Deed
of Non-competition for FY2023.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed and
confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders have complied with
the non-competition undertaking and the non-competition
undertaking has been enforced by the Company in accordance with
its terms for FY2023.

Saved as disclosed above, during FY2023, none of the Directors,
the substantial Shareholders or the management Shareholders or
any of their respective associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group or has any other conflict of interests with
the Group.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this report, the Company does not have any
other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of
the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the Directors’ service contracts and appointment
letters, no contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
was entered into or in existence as at 31 December 2023 or at any
time during FY2023.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Group was not involved in any material legal proceeding during
FY2023.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Due to the nature of business, the Group’s customers for the food
and beverage retail business were mainly individual customers who
patronise its food and beverage stalls, and customers for its outlet
management and leasing business were mainly stall tenants who
rent food stalls in the Group's food centres and food street. There
was no single customer that accounted for more than 5% of the
total revenue for FY2023.

Under the outlet management and leasing business, the Group
typically enter into tenancy agreements with stall tenants for the
rental of food stalls for terms ranging from one to five years.
Generally, such tenancy agreements the Group enter into with stall
tenants contain key terms such as the licence or lease period and
commencement date, the monthly licence fees or rental and the
minimum daily operating hours by the tenant.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Continued)

For FY2023, total revenue attributable to the top 5 tenants
amounted to approximately S$2.1 million, or approximately 3.8% of
the total revenue, with approximately S$0.5 million, or 1.0%
attributable to the largest tenant. For FY2023, purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately S$9.3
million, or 38.7% of the Group's total cost of inventories consumed
and property rentals and related expenses, with approximately
S$3.53 million, or 14.8% of the relevant cost from the largest
supplier.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), or any Shareholder
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the issued Shares) had any significant beneficial interest in the
Group's five major customers or the Group's five major suppliers.

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND GUARANTEES TO
AFFILIATED COMPANIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had not provided any financial
assistance and guarantee.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Sufficient resources and training have been allocated and provided
to ensure the on-going compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. During FY2023, the Board is not aware of any
incidence of non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group's business where the
Group is operating, and the Group has complied in material
respects in the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Group.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of the subsequent events are set out in note 42 to
Consolidated Financial Statements for FY2023.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company maintained the public float (i.e., at least 25%
of the Company'’s total issued Shares was held by the public) as
required under the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for FY2023
are set out in the note 34 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for FY2023, and none of the related party transactions constitutes a
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction subject
to independent Shareholders’ approval, annual review and all
disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed, with the management of the
Company, the Consolidated Financial Statements for FY2023, and
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance for enhancing the management of the Company as
well as preserving the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the CG
Code as its own code to govern its corporate governance practices.

In the opinion of the Directors, save for the deviations as disclosed
in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 29
to 53 of this annual report, the Company has complied with the
relevant code provisions contained in the CG Code during FY2023.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the
Company with an aim to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance.

Details of the Group's corporate governance practices can be found
in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 29
to 53 of this annual report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If the
Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in or exercising of any
right in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their
professional advisers.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director or other
officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages or
expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason
of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of their duties. The relevant provisions in the Articles of Association
were in force during FY2023 and as at the date of this annual
report.

Throughout FY2023, the Company has maintained appropriate
directors and officers liability insurance cover providing indemnity
against liability, including but not limited to liability in respect of
legal action against the Directors and officers thereby sustained or
incurred arising from or incidental to execution of duties of his/her
offices.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The auditors, Fan, Chan & Co. Limited, have indicated their
willingness to accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)
Chairman

28 March 2024
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R g NERARS

INTRODUCTION

K2 F&B Holdings Limited (the “Company”, and together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is based in Singapore with more than a
decade of experience in the ownership and operation of food
establishments. Currently, the Group's business operations include
(i) the leasing of food establishment premises to tenants and the
provision of management, cleaning and utilities services to tenants
(the "Rental and Outlet Management”), and (ii) the retailing of
beverage, tobacco products, and cooked food directly to
consumers in food establishments operated and managed by the
Group and third parties (the “Food and Beverage Stalls”). This
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “"ESG Report”)
summarises the environmental, social and governance ("ESG")
initiatives, plans and performances of the Group and demonstrates
its commitment to sustainable development.

The ESG Governance Structure

The Group has developed a core governance framework to ensure
the alignment of ESG governance with its strategic growth, while
advocating ESG integration into its business operations. The
structure of ESG governance is divided into the board of directors
of the Company (the “Board”), the senior management and
designated personnel from the business and functional
departments.
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The Board holds the overall responsibility for the Group’'s ESG
strategies and reporting, as well as overseeing and managing its
ESG-related issues. The Board reviews and confirms the Group's
ESG-related risks and opportunities, performance, goals and
targets, progresses made against ESG-related goals and targets,
management approach, and policies at least annually with the
assistance of the Group's designated personnel from the business
and functional departments. The Board also ensures the
effectiveness of ESG risk management and internal control
mechanism.

The Group's senior management facilitates the Board's oversight
of ESG-related issues. Their duties include but are not limited to
overseeing and reviewing the Group's ESG-related policies,
performance, management approach, risks and opportunities and
priorities. The Group’s senior manager holds meeting to report to
the Board at least annually on their findings, suggestions on the
Group's ESG performance and other material findings. They also
propose and recommend to the Board on the Group’s ESG-related
strategies, priorities, goals and targets. They also review the ESG
reports and make suggestion to the Board on approving the ESG
reports. The designated personnel from the business and functional
departments mainly executes ESG-related policies and practices,
and assists in data collection.
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SCOPE OF REPORTING

The Group’s senior management discusses, identifies and confirms
the reporting scope of ESG reports by considering the materiality
principle, the Group’s core business and its main revenue source.
The reporting scope is reviewed and approved by the Board.

Unless specified otherwise, the ESG Report covers the Group's
overall sustainability performance, including its food establishments
and food stalls, which represent the Group’s major sources of
revenue. The ESG key performance indicators (“KPls”) data is
gathered and included subsidiaries under the Group’s direct
operational control. The Group will extend the scope of disclosures
when and where applicable.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Reporting Guide") as set out in the Appendix C2 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”).
Information relating to the corporate governance practices of the
Group has been set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” of this annual report.
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The Group attaches great importance to materiality, quantitative
and consistency during the preparation for this ESG Report, the
Group has applied these reporting principles listed in the
aforementioned ESG Reporting Guide as follows:

Materiality: Materiality assessment was conducted to identify
material ESG issues, thereby adopting the confirmed material ESG
issues as the focus for the preparation of the ESG Report. The
materiality of the issues was reviewed and confirmed by the Board
and the senior management. Details will be mentioned in the
sections headed "Stakeholder Engagement” and “Materiality
Assessment”.

Quantitative: The standards, methodologies and applicable
assumptions used in the calculation of the ESG KPIs and relevant
data in the ESG Report were supplemented by explanatory notes
to establish benchmarks where feasible.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the preparation approach of
the ESG Report was substantially consistent with the year ended
31 December 2022 (“FY2022"). If there are any changes that may
affect the comparison with previous reports, explanations will be
provided for the corresponding data.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (“FY2023"), the Group
confirmed that it has established appropriate and effective
management policies and internal control systems for ESG issues.
This ESG Report has undergone the internal review process of the
Group and confirmed that the disclosed contents are in compliance
with the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide. This ESG
Report was approved by the Board.

REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG Report describes the ESG activities, challenges and
measures taken by the Group for FY2023.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
Dear Stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board, it is my pleasure to present the ESG Report
of the Company for FY2023, which provides an annual update on
the ESG performance of the Group.

Sustainability is a vital aspect of the long-term success of a
business. The Group has incorporated sustainable development
into its strategy and built an effective governance structure, namely
the Board and the senior management, to monitor and review the
ESG-related issues of the Group. The risk management and internal
control frameworks provide a structured approach for the Group to
formulate policies and ensure effective execution. More
information about the Group's governance structure is stated in the
section “"The ESG Governance Structure”.

The Group continuously communicates with its stakeholders to
understand their concerns and fulfil their expectations. In order to
identify and assess the material concerns of the Group's
stakeholders, the Group has conducted materiality assessment
surveys through stakeholder engagement. The assessment helped
the Group to determine the factors that have material impacts on
its sustainable growth and incorporated them in the development
of its ESG strategies and targets.

The Group also sets various ESG-related targets on relevant KPIs.
The environmental targets were approved by the Board and the
progress will be reviewed by the senior management annually. The
senior management makes full use of the available ESG data to
compare the performance between different years and report to
the Board at least annually. Aiming to achieve the targets, the
Group is committed to implementing various measures, which will
be mentioned in this ESG Report. The Board believes the ESG
related targets can enhance the Group's corporate social
responsibility performance as well as the ESG awareness of the
stakeholders. The reviews of the progress of ESG targets can be
found in the section headed “Environmental Target”.

In closing, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
utmost gratitude to my fellow management, staff and stakeholders
for their contributions and dedication to the Group’'s sustainable
development.

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)
Chairman
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values its stakeholders and their feedback regarding its
businesses and ESG aspects. In order to understand and address
their key concerns, the Group has maintained close communication
with its key stakeholders, including but not limited to employees,
shareholders and investors, customers and tenants, suppliers,
government and regulators, media, non-governmental organisations
("NGOs") and the public.

The Group takes stakeholders’ expectations into consideration in
formulating its businesses and ESG strategies by utilising
diversified engagement methods and communication channels.
The following table shows stakeholders’ expectations of the Group
and related communication channels.
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Stakeholders

Communication channels

Expectation

Employees ° Trainings, seminars and briefing ° Employees’ health and safety
sessions ° Employees’ development and
° Regular meetings trainings
° Performance reviews ° Compliant operation
BB o I e REHE e [EEREREZZR
e TEHEZ e  [EEHZHREKET
e BHEE e AaHEE

Shareholders and investors

BREEZEE

Customers and tenants

EFRBEP

Suppliers

HEn

Government and regulators

BT R B E

Media, NGOs and the public

il

REE - FFBFAB R AR

o Annual general meeting and other
shareholder meetings

° Financial reports

° Announcements and circulars

o Company website

e RRAFAGREMBREREZ

s  BIBHE

e  DNERAK

o NEl A uh

° Customer satisfaction survey

° Progress meetings

| 3
el
X
OH]
It
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o Supplier management meetings
and events

° Supplier audit

o HEEETEEZNED

o MEREET

o Site visits

o Financial reports

° Announcements and circulars

e  EMEXR

o UG

o  DEREM

° Company website

° ESG reports

o NGIE SR

e IRE -HERERRE

o Compliant operation
o Anti-corruption

o Food safety and quality

o Quality of products and services
provided

° Protection of customers’ and
tenants’ privacy

o Compliant operation

e RmLEREE

e FiRHEMMRBHES

s REFPRHEFPILE

s EHEE

° Fair and open procurement
° Sustainable development of supply
chain

LI NG e

o HESEHNAFEER
o Anti-corruption

o Compliant operation
o Payment of tax

s REF
. AMEE
. @

o Transparent information disclosure
° Community service

s FHAMEEEE

o MER®

The Group aims to collaborate with its stakeholders to improve its
ESG performance and create greater value for the wider
community on a continuous basis.
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The management and staff of the Group's respective major
operations have participated in the preparation of the ESG Report
to assist the Group in reviewing its operations and identifying
relevant ESG issues and assessing the importance of related issues
to its businesses and stakeholders. With the assistance of the
Group’s management, the Group identified the list of material ESG
issues with consideration of its business operations, the ESG
Reporting Guide and industry standards. To prioritise the identified
material ESG issues, the Group conducted a materiality
assessment survey. Management and employees of different
business units and departments were invited to evaluate the
significance of the identified ESG issues to the stakeholders and
the Group's business. Based on the results of the survey, the
Group compiled the materiality matrix. The Group reviews and
confirms the material ESG issues annually to ensure its materiality
ESG issues can reflect its business development and industry
standards. Considering there is no material change in the
development of the Group’s business and its industry, the
materiality assessment results in the previous year will be applied
in FY2023. The following matrix is a summary of the Group's
material ESG issues included in the ESG Report:
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CONTACT US B B 3% M
AEEBOBHERHERLRERZ - HEA
3% 3B %% % B 3 & feedback@fuchangroup.com
RESHERE HgkERREXTEEHT
AREERITEMNRANEEER -

The Group welcomes stakeholders to provide their opinions and
suggestions. They can provide valuable advice in respect of the
ESG Report or its performance in sustainable development by
email at feedback@fuchangroup.com.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL A. RE

Environmental Target REBEE

Aspects Environmental targets Progress/review
=] RIRER ER

Greenhouse gases
("GHG") emissions

RERE(NEERE])
BEDX

Non-hazardous waste

EEREREY

Energy consumption

RETROH#E

Water consumption

KR H #E

Gradually reduce GHG emissions intensity (tCO,e/S$ million
revenue) by the year ending 31 December 2026 (“FY2026"),
using the year ended 31 December 2021 (“FY2021") as the
baseline year. (FY2021: 70.79 tCO,e/S$ million revenue)
NEZE2021F12A31 BFE ([2021 MREE ) (EAEEF -
FEZE2026F12 A31 HFE ([2026 B F B |) & &R
EREFREE (M_S/cikgE BB mETka) o (2021
BIEE : 707988 — A LixE 8 /85 B o ikas)

Gradually reduce the total non-hazardous waste intensity
(tonnes/S$ million revenue) by FY2026, using the FY2021 as
the baseline year. (FY2021: 0.31 tonnes/S$ million revenue)
ABIZE 2021 T EEREESF - 52026 B B FE & FFE
EEEEYEE W/ B8HmErls) - (2021 HRFE :
0.31 W, B &# T ilizs)

Gradually reduce the total energy consumption intensity (MWh/
S$ million revenue) by FY2026, using FY2021 as the baseline
year. (FY2021: 186.18 MWh/S$ million revenue)

ABIZE 2021 TG EEREESF - 52026 M B F E&E FFE
BERERERE KRR "B &M Tias) o (2021 MERFE :
186.18 JK FLBF, /B B i T i 25 )

Gradually reduce the total water consumption intensity (m®/S$
million revenue) by FY2026, using FY2021 as the baseline year.
(FY2021: 4,744.01 m3/S$ million revenue)

B E 2021 TR F B ERELEF - 52026 T FEE FRRIE
IKRERERE (LK BEHME L) o (2021 MEREFEE :
4,744.01 275K,/ B BRI T )
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A1.

Emissions

The Group has integrated the “Green Environment”
into its decision-making process and embraced the
responsibility to create an environmentally sustainable
business. To enhance its environmental governance
practice and mitigate the environmental impacts
produced by its operations, the Group has complied
with the requirements of all relevant policies in the
Singapore’s food industry, and is committed to the
social responsibility of protecting the environment.
Considering the Group's business nature, it has taken
measures to facilitate the environmental friendliness of
its business and operation in terms of energy, water
and resources saving. In the long run, it will continue to
enhance its environmental management strategies and
minimise the environmental impacts brought by its
operations.

During FY2023, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with the relevant
environmental laws and regulations in Singapore,
including but not limited to the “Environmental
Protection and Management Act” of Singapore, that
has a significant influence on the Group's operations.

Exhaust Gas Emissions

The Group's businesses focus on the provision of food
and beverage, with limited use of motor vehicles for
travelling. Hence, the Group generates limited exhaust
gas emissions during its operation and regards exhaust
gas emissions as immaterial or insignificant to its
operation. It has adopted the following measures to
mitigate exhaust gas emissions:

° Remind employees to turn off engines for idling
vehicles; and

° Encourage the use of public transportation for
business commuting purposes.
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GHG Emissions

The Group is committed to reducing GHG emissions
through more efficient use of resources in all areas of
the business, where possible. With the aim to lower the
GHG emissions, the Group has installed appropriate
equipment, such as energy saving equipment, and they
are regularly inspected, maintained and repaired.

Due to its business nature, the principal direct GHG
emissions of the Group are generated from
consumption of fuels for kitchen operations and motor
vehicles (Scope 1). The principal energy indirect GHG
emissions of the Group are generated from purchased
electricity (Scope 2).

In order to achieve the target on reducing GHG
emissions, the Group has adopted the following
measures to mitigate the GHG emissions in its
operations:

° Appoint head chefs to supervise the staff to turn
off gas stoves, cooking appliances and water
heaters when not in use;

° Clear and defrost unwanted materials and thick
ice regularly from refrigerators;

° Install energy-saving cooking facilities and
equipment in the food centres; and

° Actively adopt environmental protection and
energy-saving measures, which will be mentioned
in the section headed "“Energy Consumption”.
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During FY2023, the intensity of GHG emissions of the
Group was approximately 51.60 tCO,e/S$ million
revenue, the intensity of GHG emissions in FY2023 is at
a similar level as FY2022. The Group will continue to
monitor its GHG emissions and implement
abovementioned relevant measures, reduce its GHG
emissions intensity progressively and aim to achieve
the target on reducing GHG emissions by FY2026.

The summary of GHG emissions and its intensity are as
follows:

R2023BEE  AEBERERE
REEHERRE AHI51.6008 — &1t
EE/5 85T
03 B FEEBEEREHNEE
12022 BN F EABA - AEE 15
BEEINERZREBHRELE
M ARSI E S RERE
REBHEREE  HFR20265 K
FEEBERBEREHEKREEZ-

MERBHNE AR EHE M
T

Indicator’ Unit FY2023 FY2022
B By 2023 BEE 2022 HEFE
Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) tCO,e 472.69 368.97
HEEAZREHNE (FE) WA b E S
Energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) tCO,e 2,401.26 1,968.75
EREERERBHNE (HEE2) WS EE
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1and 2) tCO,e 2,873.95 2,337.72
BERBHEREE (HE1M2) W_E{thEE
Intensity tCO,e/S$ million revenue? 51.60 49.42
BE W_E{thEE

BB T2
Note(s): Btat -
1. GHG emissions data are presented in terms of carbon dioxide

equivalent and are based on, but not limited to, “The
Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standards” issued by the World Resources Institute
and the World Business Council for Sustainable Development,
the latest released emission factors of Singapore’s power grid,
"Singapore Energy Statistics 2022"” and “Singapore Energy
Statistics 2023" issued by the Energy Market Authority of
Singapore, “How to prepare an ESG report — Appendix 2:
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock
Exchange, “Global Warming Potential Values” from the IPCC
Fifth and Sixth Assessment Report.

2. For FY2023, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
S$55.7 million (FY2022: approximately S$47.3 million). Unless
specified otherwise, the data is also used for calculating other
intensity data.
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Sewage Discharge

During the daily operation, the Group generates
domestic sewage mainly in the course of food
preparation and cleaning. The Group has rigorously
monitored the disposal of sewage, and complied with
relevant laws and regulations to meet Singapore
government’s sewage discharge standards. Since the
Group’s sewage is discharged through the sewage pipe
network to the water reclamation plants, its sewage
discharged amount is considered as the water
consumption amount. Hence, the performance of
sewage discharged will be disclosed in the section
headed “Water Consumption”.

Waste Management
Hazardous waste handling method

Due to the Group's business nature, it does not
generate material amount of hazardous waste during its
operation. Nonetheless, it has established guidelines
governing the management and disposal of hazardous
waste. In case there is any hazardous waste produced,
it must engage a qualified chemical waste collector to
handle such waste, in compliance with the relevant
environmental regulations and rules.

Non-hazardous waste handling method

The major non-hazardous wastes generated during the
Group's operation are food waste and paper waste. The
Group maintains a high standard in reducing waste,
educates employees on the importance of sustainable
development and provides them with relevant support
to improve their skills and knowledge in sustainable
development. To minimise the non-hazardous waste
production, measures adopted will be mentioned
below.
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Food Waste

The Group's waste mainly come from Food and
Beverage Stalls, including non-hazardous waste such as
leftover or unconsumed food. With the aim of
minimising the environmental impact of non-hazardous
waste generated from its business operations, the
Group has implemented guidelines for food ordering
and processing in the Code of Practice in the Employee
Handbook and training manual. The Group’s employees
are aware of food waste reduction and related
concepts. With the controls over food ordering and
processing, the Group is able to reduce food waste
effectively and avoid excessive food waste. The Group
has set up an area in each of its food establishments for
qualified contractors to collect and dispose used
cooking oil and grease trap waste. In a long run, the
Group will strive to streamline its processes for its Food
and Beverage Stalls, and to use resources in a more
efficient manner.

Paper Waste

Printing of documents in the head office is the main
source of paper waste. The Group encourages all staff to
reduce paper usage by duplex printing and adopting
electronic information systems for sharing information or
internal administration documents. It has implemented
the following procedures to encourage employees to
share the responsibilities in waste management,
minimise waste generation and promote recycling:

° Utilise electronic media for communication;
° Avoid single-use disposable items; and

° Place “Green Message” reminders in office and
food establishments.
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A2.

During FY2023, the intensity of non-hazardous waste
generated by the Group was approximately 0.30
tonnes/S$ million revenue, the intensity of non-
hazardous waste in FY2023 is at a similar level as
FY2022. The Group will continue to monitor the amount
of non-hazardous waste it generates and implement
abovementioned relevant measures, reduce its non-
hazardous waste intensity progressively and aim to
achieve the target on reducing non-hazardous waste
intensity by FY2026.

The summary of non-hazardous waste generated and
its intensity are as follows:

R2023BFE - AEBEAR
BEREEYRE AARL030W, B
BTk 0 2023 BUEE
EEREEYRE H20220 FE
B REEGEBEENEEL
MEEZEZEVHEL T i LA
Bk BTREEEEENE
& W R20268 F 8 EIRE
EREZEYEEEEZ -

MELNEZTERVBERET
EREMT

Type of non-hazardous waste Unit FY2023 FY2022
EEBREYER B 2023 EE 20228 R E
Food waste Tonnes 16.22 13.12
Y 4 A

Paper Tonnes 0.54 0.50
#Hok 198

Total non-hazardous waste Tonnes 16.76 13.62
BEREYHRE Mg

Intensity Tonnes/S$ million revenue 0.30 0.29
BE g, E B AN T Uk

Use of Resources A2. ERERA

As a sustainability-oriented corporation, the Group
places great emphasis on environmental protection and
the efficient use of energy and resources. The Group
strives to optimise resources consumption by taking
initiatives to introduce measures and policies on
promoting resources efficiency towards different
stakeholders and adopting eco-friendly approaches in its
operations.

ER—RKUAHBEERA/EAH
AR AKRETDERRERE
EBERMNBERIEER - NEHE
HARBILERER  LHH T
[ #5 10 % £ B BREUHE B B BOSR DA
REERARINEETRAR
RIGOE ©
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Energy Consumption

Consumption of fuels for kitchen operations and motor
vehicles and purchased electricity are the major sources
of energy consumption by the Group. To minimise
environmental impact in its operations, the Group has
promoted energy saving with various energy-efficient
measures and related policies. Regular review is
conducted on its energy objectives and targets to seek
continuous reduction in the Group’s energy usage.

The Group has implemented monthly monitoring of the
usage of electricity, water and other resources.
Unexpected high consumption of electricity or water
will be investigated to find out the root cause and
preventive measures will be adopted. In order to
achieve the target of reducing energy consumption
intensity, the Group has implemented the following
measures to reduce energy consumption:

° Turn off gas stoves and water heaters when not
in use;

° Switch off idle lightings during non-office hours;

° Set air-conditioners at a comfortable temperature
of 25 degree Celsius; and

° Install light emitting diode light fittings in offices
and food establishments.

During FY2023, the intensity of the Group’s energy
consumption is 138.72 MWh/S$ million revenue, the
intensity of energy consumption of FY2023 is at a
similar level as FY2022. The Group will continue to
monitor its energy consumption and implement
abovementioned relevant measures, reduce its energy
consumption intensity progressively and aim to achieve
the target of reducing energy consumption intensity by
FY2026.
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The summary of energy consumption and its intensity EREELREEREMEZNT
are as follows:

Type of energy® Unit FY2023 FY2022
BERIE AL By 2023B1BUFE 2022 B E
Liguefied petroleum gas MWh 1,500.38 1,118.79
BALE R KRB

Town gas MWh 553.06 382.73

R JKFL B

Charcoal MWh 48.80 80.94

NEK JKF B

Petrol MWh 59.67 52.71

YU Ik F B

Diesel MWh 16.05 13.00

Seom JK R B

Direct energy consumption MWh 2,177.96 1,648.17

BERRERE KR B

Purchased electricity MWh 5,548.82 4,701.78

EEEEN JK LB

Indirect energy consumption MWh 5,548.82 4,701.78

EEREREH BB

Total energy consumption MWh 7,726.78 6,349.95

RRHEHAE K B

Intensity MWh/S$ million revenue 138.72 134.25

BE BB BN T ik s

Note(s): Biat -

3. The calculation of unit conversion is based on, but not limited to, 3. BAEBBRNIEELE  BTRRE
the Energy Statistics Manual issued by the International Energy Bl aeRB R MR BR G F M) -
Agency.

Water Consumption IR H

Water consumption of the Group is mainly for daily AEERKEERARBBEE -

operations, including food preparation, cooking and BIEEHERY  BARRBEREA -

cleaning of kitchen utensils. To encourage water REBEAORK REEB®T

conservation, the Group has identified water saving BnokE e WHER A SIKEE F A

initiatives and has adopted water-saving production NEBURADRAKE - KEERE

methods and equipment to reduce water consumed. It IREFEMPELEREERLIET

has also assigned its head chefs and outlet managers to ERAKe I REED FE 4

ensure that there is no unwarranted use of water. 1BIKE R KIS A BRBE R B4 -

Furthermore, the Group has conducted regular AR IETRK » RE B — & jisg H

maintenance of water pipes and repaired any defective BEKEEIBEBMEE - LEARE

components to prevent leakage of water. The Group ErrFEERERE T ARE B -

has been strengthening its wastewater treatment
practices and programmes to align with the Group's
sustainability management approaches.
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To increase water efficiency, the Group has implemented
the following measures:

o Reduce water pressure to the lowest practicable
level;

° Install self-closing taps where practicable; and

° Fix dripping taps to avoid leakage and wastage.

During FY2023, the intensity of water consumption of
the Group was approximately 3,547.29 m?®/S$ million
revenue, resulting in a decrease of approximately 16%
compared to FY2022. The total water consumption of
the Group is at a similar level as FY2022. However, as
the revenue of the Group used as the intensity base
increased in FY2023, the intensity of water
consumption in FY2023 was lower than in FY2022. The
Group will continue to monitor its water consumption
and implement abovementioned relevant measures,
aiming to achieve the target on reducing water
consumption intensity by FY2026.

BRESHAKAE KEECEEH
AT 6 -

o FIKEREZKERTTAKE:

e REUMTHWEBEATZKEDH
P7KEERR - I

o EIEEKHIKEERE  AER
BIRERE

20238 EF E - A EBEIKFEH
BBE A#3,547.29 /KA
BT ik s - 82022 81 B
FER D 4916% ° 7N 52 @ & 48 FE 7K
EH20228 BFEAEH - AT
AR AEEREKXKRERRED
e AP 2023 BF BUAF S 38 hn - 2023
FHEFEMNKEEREZERR
2002 BFE - REBFEEE
BEAKEWE M Ll AR i
BLREXKEEERE  HFR
2026 8 By [E B IR KRB FEAH 8
BiZo

The summary of non-hazardous waste generated and RKREREHENT :

its intensity are as follows:

Water consumption Unit FY2023 FY2022
IR FE B 20230 BFE 2022 HFE
Freshwater m? 197,583.79 199,152.89
K M 5K

Intensity m?/S$ million revenue 3,547.29 4,210.42
BnE MR E BN T

Due to its operating locations, the Group has not
identified any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose.
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Use of Packaging Materials

As the Group’s main business is food and beverage,
one of the main services provided to customers
includes take-away. Plastic bags and containers are the
major packaging materials used in its business
operation. To minimise the usage of packaging
materials, the Group has set out guidelines for staff to
use packaging materials reasonably.

During FY2023, the Group consumed approximately
93.39 tonnes of packaging materials, resulting in an
increase of approximately 64% compared to FY2022.
The change was mainly attributable to the expansion of
the Group's food and beverage stall, resulted in more
packaging material consumed for take-away.

The summary of packaging materials consumption and
its intensity are as follows:

BEMBER

RRARENTEXZBLER
WREPREMES —HETER
BEREENE BHRXERBE/HE
EBLEMANIZEREME -
REERVBEMBOER &K
SEEARBETIAEERBEMH
BIEES

R2023FEE - AEBEER
M R4 933908 - #2022 B A
EHIN464% - E—RILETEZ
AR AREBEREMER %
HEEZARINENBEME -

BRI ABEHENT

Indicator Unit FY2023 FY2022
BE B 2023BBUFEE  2022BT L E
Packaging materials Tonnes 93.39 56.88
CETES Mg

Intensity Tonnes/S$ million revenue 1.68 1.20
nE Wi, B N3 T &
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A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

Upholding its on-going commitment to corporate
sustainability, the Group recognises the importance of
minimising the potential negative environmental
impacts of its business operations and maximising
resources efficiency and waste management. The
Group regards environmental protection as part of the
Group’s business goals and strategies. The Group
strives to raise awareness of environmental issues at
work and in life amongst staff through education and
training, and encourages employees’ engagement in
improving the Group’s environmental performance. The
Group regularly assesses the environmental impacts of
its businesses, and supports community activities in
relation to environmental protection and sustainability. It
is also devoted to achieving sustainable development
for generating long-term value for the community and
its stakeholders.

Sustainable Ingredients

The Group is aware of the influence of the selection of
food sources on sustainability. There is rising concern
about the selection of sustainable food sources in the
community. As a corporation promotes sustainability
and environmental protection, the Group does not serve
any endangered animals in its dishes, such as shark
fins.
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A4. Climate Change

Climate change is one of the most important
contemporary challenges faced by the world. The Group
recognised the importance of the identification and
mitigation of significant climate-related issues, and
therefore, strives to make continuous efforts to assess
the financial implications of climate impacts and to
address the potential risks while capturing gold
opportunities for transitioning towards a low-carbon
economy.

The Group has integrated climate-related risks into its
internal control and enterprise risk management
systems, and conducted a climate change assessment
to identify and mitigate various climate-related risks. In
addition, the Board meets regularly and cooperates
closely with the senior management to identify and
evaluate the climate-related risks, so as to formulate
strategies to manage the identified risks.

Climate-related Issues

Physical Risks

Changes in rainfall patterns and rising ambient
temperature may significantly affect the quality and
quantity of raw food materials, which threaten the food
security and increase the cost of food. In addition, the
increased frequency and severity of extreme weather
such as intense storms, flooding and prolonged droughts
may also disrupt supply chains, interrupt business
operations, and damage the Group’s assets. Concerns
about the volatility and uncertainty of operating costs are
thus arising. In order to manage the related risk, the
Group priorities cooperating with suppliers who possess
high environmental consciousness, increasing food
supply chain diversification, and continuously seeking for
building long-term relationships with first-tier suppliers,
so as to build a more climate-resilient and green supply
chain.

A4.
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Transition Risks

The Singapore government has set a target for
achieving net-zero emissions. The Group anticipates
that the climate legislations and regulations will become
more stringent in view of the vision of decarbonisation.
From a listed company perspective, the Group
acknowledges the increasing requirements regarding
the disclosure of climate-related information. For
example, the Stock Exchange has required listed
companies to enhance the climate-related disclosures
in their ESG reports. If the Group failed to meet the
compliance requirements of the regulations as
applicable to its businesses, its business operation may
face material impact. Negative publicity may also arise
due to failure in meeting the compliance requirements,
thus increasing the Group’s cost in capital investment
and compliance. In view of the policy and legal risks, as
well as the reputation risks, the Group regularly
monitors the current and future trends, policies and
regulations regarding climate to be prepared for prompt
response in climate-related measures when necessary,
so as to avoid non-compliance fines, cost increments or
reputational risk.
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B. SOCIAL

B1.

Employment
Employment and Labour Practices

Human talent is the foundation for the Group's
continued success. Therefore, employment policies
relevant to health, safety and welfare were established
to underpin the Group’'s responsibility towards
employees. The Group is strictly in compliance with
various laws and regulations, and also seeks to
implement strict health and safety standards throughout
the Group.

During FY2023, the Group was not aware material non-
compliance with employment related laws and
regulations in Singapore, including but not limited to the
“Employment Act” of Singapore, that would have a
significant impact on the Group.

Remuneration and Dismissal

To attract and retain talent, the Group strives to provide
an equal working environment for its employees. The
Group has developed a set of sound employment rules
and regulations and made clear provisions of the rights
and obligations of employees in the Employee
Handbook.

The Group highly appreciates the contributions of
employees to its development and has developed a
comprehensive remuneration package for them. The
Employee Handbook clearly states the obligations and
benefits for all employees, such as daily working hours
and annual leave entitlements. In addition to offering
competitive remuneration packages, discretionary
bonuses and share options may also be granted to
reward employees based on individual performance. A
long-service award is also set up to appreciate
employees who have worked for the Group for more
than 5 and 10 years.
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Moreover, the Group is aware of the importance of
education and the potential financial burden it poses.
Thus, it has set up the Fu Chan Education Fund for
qualified employees to reduce their financial burden on
the education of their offsprings. During FY2023, 23
employees received financial support from the Fu Chan
Education Fund.

In the event of misconduct or contravention of the
express or implied terms and conditions of
employment, the Group will only dismiss employees
after due process. The dismissal process will only be
carried out on a reasonable basis, and dismissal will be
notified in writing when the employee has persistently
committed the offence and has not improved after
repeated warnings.

Recruitment and Promotion

The Group adheres to the principles of openness and
fairness when recruiting and considers candidates
based on their merits instead of age, gender or ethnic
background. Candidates are assessed based on their
suitability for the position and potential to fulfil the
Group's current and future needs.

The Group offers promotion and development
opportunities that is equally applied to all employees.
Through an open and fair assessment system, eligible
employees are offered the opportunity of promotion to
develop their careers and encourage good performance.
Staff performance reviews are carried out regularly to
ensure that all employees can be recognised by the
Group with respect to their efforts and contributions.
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Diversity, Equal Opportunity and Anti-
discrimination

The Group appreciates the importance of cultural
diversity and is committed to providing an inclusive and
collaborative work environment that is free from
discrimination, and physical or verbal harassment on the
basis of race, religion, ethnic origin, gender, physical or
mental disability, age, marital status and sexual
orientation. The Group seeks to establish necessary
procedures to ensure all employees are treated equally
and the employment is in compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 412
employees (as at 31 December 2022: 373). The details
of the Group's employees are as follows:
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HZE2023F12 8318 KREEH
B412%EE (BLE2022%F12 A8
318 :373%) - AEBENESF
BT

Number of Employee FY2023 FY2022
EEHE 2023 N EE 2022 BN E
By Gender BB 82

Male B 245 205
Female el 167 168
By Age Group BRERAERE S

18-30 years old 18-30 5% 88 75
31-40 years old 31-40 3% 75 59
41-50 years old 41-50 5%, 59 57
51-64 years old 51-64 5% 110 99
65 years old and above 65 5% & A 80 83
By Employment Type REBERES

Full-time ok 372 349
Part-time iy 40 24
By Geographical Region Zith IR B Bl 5

Singapore?* N 4 412 373
Note(s): B 5

4. As at 31 December 2023, 187 (as at 31 December 2022: 160) 4. HE2023F12A31H  EFMET

employees worked in Singapore are foreign workers.

{ERI187 4 (HE 2022412 A318 :
160%)BEAINETA °
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During FY2023, the Group's overall turnover rate® was
approximately 32.27% (FY2022: 20.34%). The
employee turnover rate by gender, age group, and
geographical region are as follows:

R2023BFE - NEBHEE
RS R4 532.27% (2022 Bf Br 4
€ :20.34%) &R - Fie4a R
MBI E DM ES KA R

wmr

Turnover Rate® FY2023 FY2022
k&S 20238 BEE 2022 HEE
By Gender R R &5

Male B 31.32% 18.52%
Female e 33.53% 22.50%
By Age Group BRERAR S S

18-30 years old 18-30 5% 35.76% 25.00%
31-40 years old 31-40 5% 35.04% 19.30%
41-50 years old 41-50 5% 31.86% 27.72%
51-64 years old 51-64 5% 25.00% 12.77%
65 years old and above 65 5% & A 36.05% 21.71%
By Geographical Region Zith E 8l 2

Singapore g 32.27% 20.34%
Note(s): Btat -

5. The employee turnover rate (by category) is calculated by 5. (REEFIB D) 8 B K R I

dividing the number of employees leaving employment (by
category) during the financial year by the average number of
employees (by category) at the beginning and the end of the
financial year x 100%.

K2 F&BHOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUALREPORT 2023

FEANRENE D) HRER A
BB DARF IR F E A 40 ] R (3R 4R R
D) F1EB ABRIA100% 5t

i



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BRI fwekEnms (8)

B2. Health and Safety

Health and safety of employees in the working
environment is always the utmost concern of the
Group. To ensure a safe workplace for its employees,
the Group has established safety policies and guidelines
which set out the safety procedures and promote safety
at work sites stipulated by the relevant laws and
regulations. The Group is dedicated to providing a safe
working environment and will continue to invest in
resources and devote efforts to reduce the risks
involved in health and safety.

During FY2023, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with health and safety-related
laws and regulations in Singapore, including but not
limited to “"Workplace Safety and Health Act” of
Singapore, that would have a significant impact on the
Group.

Reinforcing employees’ safety awareness is of crucial
importance to the Group. All newly hired operational
employees are required to participate in training on
occupational safety and health hazards during their
orientation. To encourage and support newly recruited
employees, training buddies are assigned to them to
ensure they are able to adapt to the new working
environment smoothly and follow safety measures. The
Group has also purchased work injury compensation
insurance and foreign worker medical insurance for its
staff. The measures for fire emergency are embodied in
policies and guidelines to assist employees in taking
sensible immediate action should fire accidents occur.
The related occupational health and safety measures
are reviewed regularly to ensure their effectiveness.

B2.
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B3.

Aiming to consistently lower the lost days due to work-
related injury, the Group will further improve the quality
of its health and safety-related training programmes.
During FY2023, there was no case of work-related
injuries reported to the Group nor lost days of work due
to work-related injuries (FY2022: 3 work-related injuries,
45 lost days of work). Besides, the Group did not record
any cases of work-related fatalities in the past three
years, including FY2023.

Development and Training

The Group recognises the valuable contribution of its
talent for the sustainable growth of its business.
Nurturing talent and polishing the skills of its human
capital is crucial in striving for excellence. It is
committed to inspiring its employees to continue
learning and improving their knowledge and job skills in
relation to food preparation and preservation, customer
services and quality control in different aspects of the
operation. This is achieved through the development of
training strategies and policies that focuses on creating
values and serving the needs of its customers, its
talents and the society.

The Group understands the importance of keeping its
employees abreast of the changing work environment,
job requirements as well as all other safety and
environmental practices at the workplace. Hence, apart
from on-the-job training, the Group also provides
training offered by professional training institutes or
experts to its employees.
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To ensure its employees have good knowledge about
correct equipment utilisation and temperature control in
food preparation, the Group has arranged training on
food safety and hygiene, proper temperature regulation
of food and ingredients, factors contributing to
outbreaks of foodborne illnesses and practices to
maintain good personal hygiene to all operational staff.
The Group engages food hygiene training providers
approved by the National Environment Agency and
Skills Future Singapore to conduct these training
courses.

In addition, the Group also facilitates seminars and
training programmes for selected staff in safety
awareness and restroom cleaning to improve their
awareness in safety and hygiene standards.

The Group ensures that there is at least one supervisor
in each outlet to strictly implement food safety and
hygiene requirements during food processing. The
Group’s employees receive training in alignment with
their job nature and requirements. The Group continually
assesses the training needs of its staff and emphasises
the importance of continuous learning to enhance their
competency and development.

During FY2023, the Group recorded approximately
6.69%°5 of trained employee (FY2022: approximately
1.35%), with an average of approximately 0.80 training
hours’ per trained employee (FY2022: approximately
0.07 hours).
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The percentage of trained employees and the average
training hours per employee, by gender and employee
category are shown below:

Percentage of Trained
Employees® (%)

RIERIFE THEE D OZIIE
BNt MEEREANTFHIE

A BT AR -

Breakdown of Trained Average Training Hours™

Employees® (%)

(hours)

FHEEE A (%) ZIEE D (%) EIEAGE (D)
FY2023 FY2022 FY2023 FY2022 FY2023 FY2022
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Categories Bl BREE HREE HBREE HEEE HREE HBEE
By Gender BRIE S
Male B 2.54% 1.25% 22.22% 50.00% 0.35 5.33
Female gL 12.56% 1.47% 77.78% 50.00% 1.43 533
By Employee Category Z{EEERIE S
Management EIEE 16.67% 15.00% 8.33% 50.00% 9.17 533
General staff —H®ET 6.35% 0.71% 91.67% 50.00% 0.51 533
Note(s): Hfat -
6. This percentage is calculated by dividing the total number of 6. ZEALNEVRFEARNNZIIE

10.

trained employees during the financial year by the total number
of employees during the financial year, including the employees
who left the Group during the financial year and multiplying by
100%.

The average training hours per employee is calculated by dividing
the total number of training hours during the financial year by the
total number of employees during the financial year, including
the employees who left the Group during the financial year.

The percentage of trained employees by category is calculated
by dividing the number of trained employees in the specified
category during the financial year by the number of employees
in the specified category during the financial year, including the
employees who left the Group during the financial year and
multiplying by 100%.

The breakdown of trained employees by category is calculated
by dividing the number of trained employees in the specified
category during the financial year by the total number of trained
employees during the financial year and multiplying by 100% .

The average training hours by category is calculated by dividing
the number of training hours for employees in the specified
category during the financial year by the number of trained
employees in the specified category during the financial year,
including the employees who left the Group during the financial
year.
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B4. Labour Standards

Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited in the
Group as defined by laws and regulations. The Group is
committed to eliminating all forms of forced labour and
supporting the effective abolition of child labour. The
Group is fully in compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations related to prevention of child labour and
forced labour.

During FY2023, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with child and forced labour-
related laws and regulations in Singapore, including but
not limited to “Employment Act” of Singapore that
would have a significant impact on the Group.

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group has established a complete recruitment
process to examine candidates’ background and official
reporting procedures to handle any exception. The
Human Resources Department of the Group collects
personal data during the employment process and
verifies identity documents of suitable candidates to
prevent recruitment of child labour. If any non-
compliance is found, the employment contract of the
employees involved will be terminated. To prevent
forced labour, working hours are clearly specified in the
Employee Handbook. If violation is involved,
punishment or dismissal of the related employees who
are responsible for the causes of such situations will be
conducted and the related information will be reported
to relevant governmental authorities.
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B5. Supply Chain Management

The Group highly values its relationship with suppliers
and places heavy emphasis on the management of the
potential environmental and social risks in supply
chains. The Group aims at creating a sustainable supply
chain and therefore expects all its suppliers and
business partners to uphold a similar standard in
respect of environmental issues and labour practices.
Hence, the Group has established the principle of
ethical business conduct that all supply chain partners
are required to uphold. To govern the supplier
assessment process, the Group has formulated the
relevant supplier management policy, reviewed on an
annual basis.

The Group carefully selects suppliers based on criteria
including but not limited to food quality, food safety
management, sources of ingredients, pricing, capacity,
availability, track record, reputation, payment method,
delivery options and schedules. During FY2023, the
Group has a total of 220 major suppliers (FY2022: 141),
which all suppliers are located in Singapore and have
engaged through its standardised supplier assessment
process.

To reduce the environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, all suppliers are evaluated carefully and
subjected to regular monitoring and assessment to
ensure their food ingredients meet the stringent
requirements on a consistent basis, including standards
on environmental and social performance. The head
chefs are responsible to check and inspect the
purchased ingredients and food items before they are
used. Meetings with food suppliers and other service
providers on a regular basis are set out to ensure the
provision of quality dining service to customers. In case
of non-conformity, the Group will reject and return the
ingredients and food items back to their suppliers.
Besides, the Group diversifies the sources of key
ingredients suppliers to ensure a continuous supply of
the critical resource.
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Additionally, the Group endeavours to promote
environmentally preferable products and support local
economies. Priority is given to the procurement from
local and regional suppliers to lower the carbon footprint
during transportation. The Group also prioritises
suppliers that use environmentally preferable products
and services during the selection process.

Through the above approaches, the Group strives to
minimise the potential environmental and social risks in
the supply chain. The Group will continue to review its
supply chain periodically with regard to the suppliers’
performance and environmental and social standards.

Product Responsibility

Being a part of the food and beverage industry, the
Group values the quality and safety of its food products
and aims to fulfil customers’ needs and expectations.
Through efficient internal control processes, coupled
with adherence to its policies and procedures to deliver
excellent customer services, the Group is committed to
improving food quality and services and satisfying its
customers’ expectations.

During FY2023, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations
in Singapore, including but not limited to the “Sale of
Food Act” and “Personal Data Protection Act” (“PDPA")
of Singapore, that have a significant impact on the
Group, concerning advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.

Food Safety and Quality

The Group recognises the importance of achieving and
maintaining high food quality standard to the sustainable
growth of the Group. It is its responsibility to ensure
that the food ingredients are safe, fresh and in good
quality upon delivery, in storage and during processing.
All suppliers are evaluated carefully before selection,
and it maintains good relationships only with qualified
suppliers.

B6.
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To further enhance the quality and safety of food
products, the Group continuously improves its
procurement as well as the food production processes.
The Group attaches great emphasis on quality
management to maintain high product quality. Apart
from performing regular identification of hazards, the
Group also establishes critical control points and timely
implements effective control and monitoring measures.

The Group appoints head chefs and supervisors to
monitor quality at each of its food establishments. Their
responsibilities include inspecting the food and
beverage supplies and ingredients, overseeing the food
preparation process and monitoring the dining
environment and kitchen area. Each of the food
establishments are cleaned and sanitised by the
Group's staff in accordance with the policies and
procedures. During FY2023, there was no material
product recalled due to safety and health reasons
(FY2022: Nil).

Customer Services and Privacy Protection

To drive the Group’s continuous improvement, it has
established multiple feedback channels, including email,
social media and facsimile, to facilitate communication
with customers and to satisfy customers’ needs. The
Group has also implemented a set of procedures to
handle customers’ complaints. Complaints received will
be handled by relevant department and action will be
taken promptly to address the identified issues. During
FY2023, no material complaint was recorded regarding
the products and services (FY2022: Nil).

The Group takes protection of its customers’
confidential information seriously. The policies listed in
the Employee Handbook have been established in
accordance with the PDPA. It seeks to protect the
customers’ information by employing data security
measures such as firewalls and anti-virus software. The
Group's employees are prohibited to use the personal
information of its clients for purposes not related to the
business context, no matter during employment or after
termination of employment. The Group has carried out
regular review on the measures to ensure its
effectiveness.
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Protection of Intellectual Property (“IP”) Rights

The Group believes its brand and IP rights are critical to
the success of the Group. For any infringements of its
IP, the Group would not hesitate to take action against
the infringers through the appropriate channels.

Responsible Marketing

The Group prohibits the advertisements to disclose
descriptions, claims or illustrations that are not true. The
Group organises promotion campaigns and creates
advertising materials in compliance with the relevant
regulations and guidelines to ensure they are reliable,
reasonable, and not containing any deceitful details or
elements in order to protect consumers’ interests,
rights and benefits.

Anti-corruption

The Group believes that integrity and credibility of
employees are vital to the Group's sustainable
development. The Group has zero tolerance for any
corruption, fraud and other behaviour. It values and
upholds integrity, honesty and fairness in the way it
conducts business.

To achieve and maintain the highest ethical standards,
the Group has established a Code of Practice (the
“Code”) in compliance with related laws and
regulations to serve as the general guideline in
conducting business operations. The principles stated in
the Code highlight that all directors, officers and
employees must observe all anti-corruption laws, rules
and regulations that are relevant to the Group.

Recognising that anti-corruption training is essential for
creating a healthy corporate culture, the Group will
provide relevant training or training materials to directors
and employees at least annually. During FY2023, the
Group distributed anti-corruption training materials to
directors and employees for their self-study, which
allow them to familiarise with their corresponding roles
and responsibilities in anti-corruption and business
ethics.

B7.

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2023 £ %

RENBER(HNRERD

AEERE HmB RAHER
HAKENRNEREE - HR
ERRLEMNBEENTR A
SESINBEBEEREHRER
TTRERITTE

BEENTEEH

AEEZFESRETNERREM -
BRENAGH NEEEEBRZX
MM ESIABHERES NEIER
EMH UNEEREBAESE
BB & ] H5R 1E & 40 &6 3K

RN EE SRR
Rz -
RES

AEERE BRENBERESR
HAKENABEEREMEE
ARG B ST B BRRE R E A
TROTERR - AEEERLE
FrplfE - MERRAFRFARES -

REFRERRSBEREE K
SEEREMEBEREIRHEE
fisr R (TspRI)D) - RRARERE
BRE—RIES o TRIPTER A
BRAETREE SABENES
ABTHEEASEHABNORE
AR RAIRIER »

AEBERBRESHINE & &R
BEOEEXLERER YK
B-FEFRESEHMBHAE
HIEFNE R - R2023 FE -
AEBERNESFRERESHE
ERHEEESE BUMRATER
REBREFRERTENEERS
BREME-

107



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
iﬁiﬁ Z:I: = &kﬁ_\b\i&i(n\/\>

108

During FY2023, there was no concluded legal case
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group
or its employees nor any related impacts. The Group
was not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering in Singapore, including but not
limited to the “Prevention of Corruption Act” of
Singapore.

Grievance Channel

In order to further achieve and maintain the highest
standards of openness, probity and accountability, the
Group has established a whistle-blowing mechanism.
The Employee Handbook sets out internal control
policies and procedures to govern the investigation and
follow-up procedures of reported fraud incidents, and it
is mandatory for employees to report any actions or
behaviours of bribery or misconduct. Should the Group
receive any reports, it should carry out investigation and
manage the cases in accordance with the relevant
policies and procedures. If any kind of misconduct or
malpractice is found after investigation, disciplinary
actions, straight dismissal or report to relevant legal
authorities may be taken. The employees reporting in
good faith under the whistle-blowing mechanism can
be assured of protection against unfair dismissal or
victimisation, even if the reports are subsequently
proved to be unsubstantiated. To ensure the
effectiveness of the mechanism, review is conducted
regularly.
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BS. HE®RE

B8. Community Investment

The Group believes that giving back to society through
social participation and contribution is a form of
responsible corporate citizenship. It also sees the
potential to nurture a caring corporate culture and
inspire its employees towards social concerns as part of
work life. By participating in activities that contribute to
the community, it can enhance the civic awareness of
its employees.

The Group mainly focused on helping the needy in
society. In FY2023, the Group donated approximately a
sum of S$419,000 to different organisations and
charities. The details of some of the beneficiaries are as

$%lmﬁLﬂﬁQ%ﬁ&E%
OHtER—RBAEELEELR
FWMER - AEENEREH
FIELEATEEHAENDEEX
b R Z B R B iRt & MR8 &
he-BB2MEHRARBNE
B ASENNEREENLAR
e

$%l$z&ﬁm AEpHe ts
TE AT R2023BEE K
SEMTFRMAM RS KERE
T #1419,000 ¥ N TT © FH

follows:

Organisation/Activity
Wig EE

AFBWOT -

Focus area

-9z i)

Cheng Hong Welfare Service Society
ML EA e

East Asia Humanistic Studies Pte. Ltd.
REANHELABRAF]
LOVE-Link Service Society
LOVE-Link AR 754

St. Gabriel’s Secondary School
ESMIERTIEE

St. John Singapore

RN E L

TOUCH Community Services Limited

United Overseas Bank Limited Chinese New Year
Charity Donation
RERITHEMESEN

Community welfare
= A2 A

Education

BE

Elderly welfare

Z AN@7|

Education

%A

Community health, young leadership
R - BERM
Community welfare
At [ 48 A

Community welfare

ERASERBERN —FD
AEEHNERERNERILER
HERLRESECEEGERET -

The Group is committed to developing long-term
relationships with all stakeholders and sustaining its
corporate social responsibility as a part of the strategic
development of the Group.
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B L RREAE

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

BEWERE

ERBESXZMARATDNCRE -
HEREAREEIDABRRLIX

Section/Declaration

Z268, /89

Governance Structure

The ESG Governance Structure, Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

Reporting Principles
s RA
Reporting Boundary
HhEHE

Subject Areas, Aspects,

RIE -HENEREARE  TREMS

Reporting Framework

WEER

Scope of Reporting

WEEE

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
TEHE  EFH-
—REBERBRERES it = 3:i ) 1
Aspect A1: Emissions
EBEAT: By
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
—RREE BRERIAE RN - mKR T PEn
BT BERBEEEVNEESH
@) WK K
(b)) BTHETABEAXZENIEH
ER RO ERS o
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective Emissions — Exhaust Gas Emissions

RS AE DR IR AL

emissions data.

PP iE SR R ARRE BE R BUR -
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Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration

TEHE EE -
—REBRBRENES it 889
KPI'A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect Emissions — GHG Emissions

R AE IR IR A2

KPI'A1.3

AR B BUIEIZ A3

KPI'A1.4

BRI IEIEAT 4

KPI'A1.5

RS AE R IEIR A1 G

KPI'A1.6

RS AERIEIR A6

(Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

B (BE) RERERE (BE2) AR
RESHEE (AT E) &k (@) B/
(WA EEEM - GEKMBTHE) ©

Total hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
FIEEBEREEYEE (BEETE) k(1A
HR)EE (WASBES B - §IERE

S
FrE) o

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
FrEAREEREYASE (AETE) k(11
BR)BE (WMASESEMN - BIARE

HE) -

Description of emissions target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.
RV E B R R AETEL
B {ZFTERER A 2P B o

Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled, and
a description of reduction target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.
HEREEERBEEENN L Rk
PRI L HV R EE B IR R R ERE LR
TEPTERER ) 2P ] o

HER) — R E RN

Emissions — Waste Management

) — EERYER

Emissions — Waste Management

B — EEMERE

Environmental Targets,
Emissions — GHG Emissions
RIEEE B — REREHEW

Environmental Targets,
Emissions — Waste Management

RIREE ) —EEDERE
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BRI e keEnms (8)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
TEEHE - EH -
—REERARENER

Description

i

Section/Declaration

;-1

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
EEA2: EREA

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI'A2.1

RSB IR IR A2.1

KPI'A2.2

R AE IR IRA2.2

KPI'A2.3

RRAEMIEIRA23

KPI'A2.4

RARAERIEIRA2.4

KPI'A2.5

RASRAERIEIRA2.5

112

Policies on the efficient use of
resources, including energy, water and
other raw materials.
BREBER(BIERIR
A BIEUR -

KR EAMR

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type (e.g. electricity,
gas or oil) in total (kWh in "000s) and
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
T BEE S EE R SBEER (N
~ﬂ&&%ﬁﬁgu$l¥ﬁkﬁ%)
EERE(WMASESEMN - BRKME

st
= o
o

Water consumption in total and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility).
i@ﬁm;&%ﬂ*(ﬁm EEEf T
T E

Description of energy use efficiency
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them

IR FTET BB IR A s B IR R B3
F 5 L B 1R P ERERHY 2P BR -

Description of whether there is any
issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.

el SR ERGE AR 7KOR Rl BRI RE - A
RETEISLH RK e B IR RO E S| 5 &
B 1R P ERER ) 25 B -

Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

BN MATAREMENEE (UEFTE
R (WER) BEEBIEE -
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Use of Resources

BIREH

Use of Resources — Energy
Consumption

BIRER — ERB#E

Use of Resources — Water
Consumption

BIRER — KRB

Environmental Targets,

Use of Resources — Energy
Consumption

RBAR

Environmental Targets,
Use of Resources — Water
Consumption

REER BREMA

Use of Resources — Use of
Packaging Materials
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BRI fwekEnms (8)

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs Description
TEHE EE -

—REBRBRENES it

Section/Declaration

-1

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHEA3: BERIXRER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s
significant impacts on the environment
and natural resources.

—MRHE BIRBITABRIBERRAREREKEKR
FENBER
KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of

activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

FAREBIERE A3 L EBEBEIRIFE R AR ERNER
FERECERNEREBZENITE -

Aspect A4: Climate Change

[EHEA4 : RIZE1E

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation
of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer.

— MR Bl REHE LK ﬁﬁéiﬁéﬁm‘gi
TENBEARKEFETENBE

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-
related issues which have impacted,
and those which may impact, the issuer,
and the actions taken to manage them.

RS AE IR IR A4 BB KA GHBEITAEETLEDN
BARKNEEEE  RELHITE -

The Environment and Natural
Resources

REMKABIR

The Environment and Natural
Resources

REMKABIR

Climate Change

Climate Change

RIREL
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Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPls Description Section/Declaration

FEHE - EBH-
—REERBRERIER

i

;-1

Aspect B1: Employment
BB : EE

General Disclosure

—MRIXE

KPIB1.1

RS A IR 1R B

KPI'B1.2

RS AR ANIE1R B1.2

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits
and welfare

EATWERE  BRREA - TIER

oRE - TERE  Fub - REBR

AR E MBS REN

(@) BE: K

(b) ETFHETABEAZEHNIEH
ER KRB ERS o

Total workforce by gender, employment
type (for example, full- or part-time), age
group and geographical region.

IR EREER (nEB Rl  F
AR KRB S HIEE B -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age
group and geographical region.

ZIER - FERARI R R E S8 EE R
SRELE o
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
TEEHE - EH> -
—REERARENER

Description

#

e

Section/Declaration

-1

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EWB2: BREHEZZE
General Disclosure

—REE

KPI'B2.1

BB 4B IR B2.1

KPI'B2.2

RA S AR MIE1R B2.2

KPI'B2.3

RARAE ISR B2.3

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working
environment and protecting
employees from occupational

hazards
EHRELZE2THERRRREESE 2
BEEEED !
@) BUE: K

b) ETHETABERTZEHEH
EREBBIER

Number and rate of work-related
fatalities occurred in each of the past
three years including the reporting year.
BEZF (BEERFE)BFAITH
B ABUR L -

Lost days due to work injury.

HIGHEEAIIERE -

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

AP ER M B R R 2 245 - A
MABBABMITRERGE -
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Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPls Description Section/Declaration
TEHE  EH-
—REERARENER it =4 1

Aspect B3: Development and Training
BEB3: #REKIEZI
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ Development and Training
knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training
activities.
— MR EE ERRARE BT TIEBE MM IR R R IEH
BERVISER - HAUENES -

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by Development and Training
gender and employee category (e.g.
senior management, middle
management).
R4 B HETE B3 BURIRESERN (S REERRE - R KI5
REERE) S >NXIEEBDL -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed Development and Training
per employee by gender and employee
category.

R B IE1E B3.2 RUERREERMNED - BRESTK EES=El

Sl I 8L o
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
TEEHE - EH> -
—REERARENER

Description

#

e

Section/Declaration

-1

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
EmB4 - & T XA
General Disclosure

—RWE

KPI B4.1

RASR AR IR 1R B4

KPI B4.2

RS AR IE1R B4.2

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour

BHAGIEET S EHBTH :

@) BUR: &

(b) BEFHBETABEAXENEHA
EREREBINER -

Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.

iR B Ef R AR RET R
SRS T .

Description of steps taken to eliminate
such practices when discovered.
TR B IR R B R E R A BB T
FREREY 5K o
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Labour Standards

L TR

Labour Standards — Prevention of
Child and Forced Labour

BTRR — UL T RBHIST

Labour Standards — Prevention of
Child and Forced Labour
BTARA —PjIEET K&K T
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Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs  Description
TEHE - EE -

—REBRBRENES g

Section/Declaration

;-1

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEB5 : HEHEERE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and
social risks of the supply chain.

—MREE ERHEEENRIE R GRREBUER -

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical
region.

RS2 4E WIE 1R BE.1 i E D HEREE -

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to

engaging suppliers, number of suppliers
where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored

BASE4E IE1R B5.2 BB AMERNED - mERTT
BRABOINHEREE - U RBEHT
REERTTE -

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B4R A IE1E B5.3 LB R EE T IR R IRIE &
tEREAEN  URBBERTRER
Tk e

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to

promote environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting
suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

RSB IR 1R B5.4 A EREREARRERESZBRRE®D
KIRISEER] - AR ARBATT R EERTT
Ao
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Mg R

Supply Chain Management

HEEER

Supply Chain Management

HrEREE
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BRI fwekEnms (8)

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs Description
TEHE EE -

—REBRBRENES it

Section/Declaration

-1

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6: EmEE
General Disclosure Information on:
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.

— MW= BEFREERNRENEELEZ 2 -
EE - ZHRABEE AR ERN
(@ X &

b) BTHETABEAFZEHEM
EREBOINER -

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.

RS2 4E MIE 1R B6.1 PEHCEXEREST R T HER
BhEmMARKN A D -

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are
dealt with.

RSB IETR B6.2 BEBNERRRBHRFEE ARE
HHE -

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to

observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

RS 4E MIETR B6.3 B R R ABEE G EED -

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process
and recall procedures.

RS2 4E IR 1F B6.4 HilE SRTEBIENREREBIZT

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection

and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

R4 IR B6.5 MU BEERRERALBEE - AR
MHERITRERTE -

Product Responsibility

At
20
il
[=R)

Product Responsibility — Food Safety
and Quality

EREF—RmLelEE

Product Responsibility — Customer
Services and Privacy Protection

EREE —BFPRBELLERE

Product Responsibility — Protection
of Intellectual Property (“IP") Rights

EmBEE — RENIERE ([HNBE
1)

Product Responsibility — Food Safety
and Quality
EmEEt—RmxahEE

Product Responsibility — Customer
Services and Privacy Protection

EREE —BPRELALERE
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
TEEHE - EH -
—REERARENER

Description

i

Section/Declaration

;-1

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EmB7 : RES
General Disclosure

— R E

KPI B7.1

RSB IR IR BT

KPI'B7.2

AR B BIEIEBT7.2

KPI'B7.3

FAS AR MIETIR B7 .3

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering

BRI LR - 9% - BEFREREN

@) B &

(b)) BTHETABEAXZENIEH
ER KRB ERS o

Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERARNHETASHESERLDLE
BRNESFHFARMOEE RFRGER -

Description of preventive measures and
whistleblowing procedures, how they
are implemented and monitored.

Ht By # 5 5 R R WAR T - A R AR
TRERFE-

Description of anti-corruption training
provided to directors and staff.

AmESTRE TRENRESHE -
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Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPls

FEHE - EBH -
—REERBRERIER

BEameE ()

Description

i

Section/Declaration

-1

Aspect B8: Community Investment

EEBS: tERE
General Disclosure

—RWE

KPI B8.1

RASR 4R 1515 BB

KPI B8.2

A5 A5 1R BB.2

Policies on community engagement to
understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’
interests.

BN RB2ERTREEMEMTRE
ENEREFXZEHEEELEF RN
B -

Focus areas of contribution (e.g.
education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).
ETEREE (NHE  REEH &
IHEK -2 ik 8BF) -

Resources contributed (e.g. money or
time) to the focus area.

EFIRBMBAER (WEELERE) o
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Community Investment

HEERE

Community Investment
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Y& 3 17 B AID

Rooms 1007-1012, 10/F.
K. Wah Centre
191 Java Road

6 IR 3t ER AT A TR 5]

ab
Gl=:!
BEE 1915

Fan, Chan & Co. Limited  North Point ZEEERL
Hong Kong 1072 1007-1012 %

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of K2 F&B
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 129 to 227, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)

B 2B RS (8)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

BRESER

BREAFTESREESSNERHE  RA
RESZHAYENGAVBEBRERBRT RS
EENFEH BFHEURAMBRMABREE
TEZAUREERERSEELEEE M
TERLFFRBREBNER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Key audit matter

HEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEBERNMEERRENSEE

Valuation of investment properties:

REMEMLE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to the inherent level of complex
and subjective judgements and estimates required in
determining the fair values.
HREEATFEAGNEREETEAFELFHAEG R
HEESERREMEMERN AARETTSIE -

The Group's investment properties portfolio comprises
food courts located in Singapore and is stated at fair
value of approximately S$132,750,000, accounting for
approximately 67.0% of the Group’s total assets as at
31 December 2023 with a fair value gain on investment
properties of approximately S$6,320,000 recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended as
disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.
EEENREMFEHGBBEUNRIIENEZRES
Thie A F{E49132,750,000 ¥ K o iR - 16 E&E
202312 AT HM B EEKNGT.0%  REMER
F1EWE 476,320,000 F IKE T EREZZ B IEFEH
FEERREMEEKRERARR (REEMB®RE
BizE15) °

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of
investment properties included:

FEEHRAMEREETHRFEHE

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and
objectivity of the Valuer and obtaining an
understanding of the Valuer's scope of work
and their terms of engagement;

o FHAEMERAES N REEM - W T ARG
ERM ) TVE#E B R Z IR

o Evaluating the appropriateness of the Valuer's
valuation approaches to assess if it meets the
requirements of the IFRSs and industry norms;

e  HEMERMHEEIRNESHEE  UFTHER
BRE BRI ®EER RITEEOIHRE

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2023 % 1§ 123



Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)

BN AR E (8)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HEETER

EEESEE (A)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEBERNMEERRENSEE

Valuation of investment properties: (Continued)

BREWEMGE (8

The Group's investment properties are measured using
the fair value model based on a valuation performed by
an independent qualified professional valuer (the
“Valuer”). As disclosed in notes 4 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements, in determining the
fair values of the Group's completed investment
properties, the Valuer has applied valuation techniques
for the respective properties, which involved, inter-alia,
judgements and use of certain estimates, including
market transactions of comparable properties.
EXENREMEDNREBE IS ERFEEMEM ([
BR ) ETHMHE RAQATEEXGE - HWEE
M mAMTARNGHEE  REF EXEEEX
wEMEZ ATEE  HEMSZRSWEERNBR
FEREERNM - §F Rk (KR aE) 2 REAAL
BMECTHRH2E T e
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Challenging the reasonableness of the key
assumptions and appropriateness of valuation
models applied based on available market data
and our knowledge of the property industry and
whether the assumptions and methodologies
are consistent with those used in prior year;
BRERETISHBERESHYETENRR
IBEETEREMEEMRAEABEELNE
BN URBEREEFZESHEBEFEM
P& B

Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs
used in the valuation, on a sample basis, by
checking to the publicly available information
on comparable market transactions; and
BERBREAHASHAILEMERZER - H
Bt ERERN T EHBRRASE AR
54

Checking arithmetical accuracy of calculations.
BEEMTER D ERER -
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BN AZ B RS (58)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Bz B ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Fan, Chan & Co. Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Leung Kwong Kin
Practising Certificate Number P03702

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meEBEmEMEER G

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

2023 2022
2023 2022 F
Notes S$$°000 S$'000
b= FHME T  FEMET
Revenue Was 6 55,740 47,290
Fair value gain of investment REMERNFERE
properties 15 6,320 2,230
Other income, gains and losses, net  EfbUg A - Wz & B8 550 7 1,242 186
Cost of inventories consumed FTBFET R (18,732) (15,486)
Staff costs BIHA 9 (16,964) (12,665)
Property rentals and related expenses ¥ %74 LB X (4,362) (3,615)
Management, cleaning and B BRERLAAEERAY
utilities expenses (3,403) (2,838)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - R REEITE
equipment 16 (2,028) (1,220)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE 17 (2,977) (2,283)
Other operating expenses HEgEmsy (4,127) (3,783)
Finance costs B 75 A AN 8 (2,790) (1,640)
Profit before tax Rx Bt AR R 9 7,919 6,176
Taxation 1A 12 (609) (502)
Profit for the year FEER 7,310 5,674
Other comprehensive income H b2 E =
Item that will not be reclassified to BTEEH DB BmEE
profit or loss:
Gain on revaluation of properties EHWE W 1,534 -
Total comprehensive FEXHEHKRAHE
income for the year 8,844 5,674
Earnings per share BREF
Basic and diluted (in Singapore cents) — E 7K & # 58 (7 hnig L) 14 0.91 0.71
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR

As at 31 December 2023 120234 12 A31 H

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
Notes S$$000 S$'000
M T Fhn T T IT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties "EME 15 132,750 113,130
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE KEHE 16 43,473 57,428
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 17 9,158 8,521
Deferred tax assets EEIREE 28 51 69
Deposits paid BiZe 20 1,182 1,091
Investment in an associate R—EBE A aRE 23 4 -
Financial assets at fair value through R A FEFF ABHR
profit or loss THREE 21 743 733
187,361 180,972
Current assets RBEE
Inventories T8 18 219 234
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E b el s s 19 526 505
Prepayments and deposits paid ENREREMNES 20 1,574 1,159
Financial assets at fair value through £ A F{EZT ABZHH
profit or loss SHREE 21 48 984
Pledged bank deposits BEHEFIRITER 22 1,015 1,015
Cash and cash equivalents BeMASEEY 22 7,386 5,946
10,768 9,843
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables E 5 ENFIE 24 3,273 2,893
Accruals, other payables and EEER - HtbENRIER
deposits received Bz & 25 6,033 4,232
Borrowings BN 26 7,106 4,811
Lease liabilities HEaE 27 3,353 2,446
Tax payables FERELIE 613 547
20,378 14,929
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (9,610) (5,086)
Total assets less current liabilities #ZEERFBHERS 177,751 175,886
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

A PBIRAER (B)

As at 31 December 2023 120234 12 A31 H

2023 2022
2023 2022 F
Notes S$$°000 S$'000
b= FHME T  FEMET
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Borrowings & 26 83,547 91,099
Lease liabilities HEBE 27 6,459 6,400
Provision for reinstatement costs 1E1ER AN B 25 302 302
Other payables and deposits received  H b JE{ FAE Wi & 25 1,025 511
91,333 98,312
Net assets BEE 86,418 77,574
Capital and reserves IR 2 R {4
Share capital % 29 1,381 1,381
Reserves & 30 85,037 76,193
Total equity s 86,418 77,574
The consolidated financial statements on pages 129 to 227 were AFIFHEFEI129F 227 EWNGFR AW B HRER

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28
March 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)
KEREE
Executive Director

HITEE

2024 F 3 A28 HIEE £ & # f MR 5

YWAHATEETKREE

BE=&*
Executive Director

HITEE

Ms. Leow Poh Hoon (Liao Baoyun)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ReEm P B)R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %= 20234 12 A31 HiF F/Z

Other  Properties

Share Share reserve  Revaluation Retained Total
capital premium (note) reserve earnings equity
Hitfe A

Bx  BtaE (W) EfiE  REEN LY 5
$$/000 $$/000 $$/000 $$'000 $$'000 $$:000
THIMET TR THMET TR THMET THIET

t 1 January 2022 202F1 818 1,381 21,708 2,790 - 46,021 71,900
Profit and total comprehensive FEERHRZERR
income for the year @ - - - - 5,674 5,674
At 31 December 2022 #2022F12 4316 1,381 21,708 2,790 - 51,695 71,574
At 1 January 2023 2023F 1818 1,381 21,708 2,790 - 51,695 77574
Profit for the year EFRA - - - - 7,310 7,310
Other comprehensive income i 2Ela - - - 1,534 - 1534
Total comprehensive income 2ENELE - - - 1,534 7,310 8,844
At 31 December 2023 2023 12A31H 1,381 21,708 2,790 1,534 59,005 86,418

Note: The other reserve of the Group represents the reserve arising from M : AEEEMBEEEAEERERAABERATR
restructuring of the Group for initial public offering of the Company's shares. METEHEEENRE -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

/\‘/T\/\E/% \/ \ﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

2023 2022
2023 2022 F
S$'000 S$'000
FHEmH T  FEMHET
Operating activities REEE
Profit before tax B 11 Bl i A 7,919 6,176
Adjustments for: BATIEB fEL 3%
Depreciation of property, M BRERBETE
plant and equipment 2,028 1,220
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CAEEENE 2,977 2,283
Finance costs BT R 2,790 1,640
Exchange loss, net bE 5 BB 558 8 2
Interest income B A (3) (22)
Dividend income from financial assets & A F{ET Az
at fair value through profit or loss ([BAFETAEBREDHN
("FVTPL") TREEELNREKA (10) (41)
Fair value loss/(gain) of financial EAFEFABZHNEREE
assets at FVTPL NEEER (W) 10 (28)
Fair value gain of investment REMELNTEKE
properties (6,320) (2,230)
Gain on disposal of financial assets HEME - BERZREZ
at FVTPL Uz (30) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FEHB ARz (1,205) -
Gain on termination of lease contract AR IFFEA 42 Wz (4) -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HENE - BERERE
plant and equipment, net 518, (W) B 58 157 (37)
Operating cash flows before changes ¥ EE ¢ # B KE RS HRE
in working capital 8,317 8,963
Increase in trade and other receivables & 5 & £ th E U 7k 38
o (21) (157)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories HFERL(Em) 15 (68)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments Tﬁﬁ RIE B RS
and deposits paid (), m b (506) 106
Increase in trade payables B 5 IEE N 385 527
Increase in accruals, other payables EETEBR - HiEARER
and deposits received B U R 5 18 0 1,228 977
Cash generated from operating RETEBERS
activities 9,418 10,348
Income tax paid BEASFEH (525) (537)
Income tax refund FTiSBiR K - 19
Net cash generated from operating K& FE SRS FE
activities 8,893 9,830
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
meRensgExk (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %= 20234 12 A31 HiF F/Z

2023 2022
2023 2022 F
Notes S$°000 S$'000
M5 FHEmHIT  FEMET
Investing activities RETE
Interest income received BUF B HA 3 22
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  BERZE
equipment (3,567) (8,727)
Acquisition of a subsidiary g el i I E5NG] - (2,175)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—REMRB AR 36 6,271 -
Investment in an associate R—HEBEAFIRE (4) -
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL B EIZ AT EF AEBZED
TREE - (128)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWE - HENMEE
plant and equipment Fr 5 3k 38 35 -
Proceeds from disposal of financial HER AT ETAEED
assets at FVTPL TREERFTSHRIA 933 -
Dividend received from financial BEAFEFABEN
assets at FVTPL & RE E BRI IR B 10 41
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZEBHE (FiA) RE&FHE
investing activities 3,681 (5,967)
Financing activities il & ST B
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITIE KPS FRIE 2,800 6,000
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRITER (8,057) (7,190)
Finance costs paid EAS B SR AS (3,233) (1,795)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEARE (2,644) (1,850)
Net cash used in financing activities BE ZE AR LS HE (11,134) (4,835)
Net increase/(decrease) incashand HRERBREZEY
cash equivalents 2,/ i) BH8 1,440 (972)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FHARERASEEY
beginning of the year 5,946 6,918
Cash and cash equivalents at FREERRESEEY
the end of the year 7,386 5,946
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e U RR T

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

GENERAL INFORMATION

K2 F&B Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law as an
exempted company with limited liability on 13 March 2018.
Its parent company is Strong Oriental Limited which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company is Mr. Chu Chee
Keong, who is also an executive director of the Company.
The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board (the “Main Board"”) of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 6 March 2019. The
registered office is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.
The headquarters and principal place of business of the
Company in Singapore is located at 51 Ubi Avenue 1, #02-
17/18 Paya Ubi Industrial Park, Singapore 408933.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the leasing, outlet and
stall management of food establishment premises and
operation of food and beverage stalls. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars
("S$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.
All values are rounded to the nearest thousand (“S$$'000"),
except when otherwise indicated.

—REH

K2 F&B Holdings Limited ([~ 2 & |) 7
2018F3A1BERBAAEER &
SEFAMKIREREERAGF - HERQ
7] & Strong Oriental Limited * 322 &) %
RERZBESHEMAY -  MARRZ&
BRI AR AR NITER RERL
o RRFIRMDEN2019F3 A6 HE
BEEBERGMBRAR (IHRAA]) *
WRATER]) £/ e s M#=EMLR
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands ° A< A ) &9 48 30 & H 7
R EELEMEALRNL1 Ubi
Avenue 1 #02-17/18 Paya Ubi
Industrial Park, Singapore 408933.

KRR AE—EREERAGT - EfBA
RIETZEKARBSHNEE - JEHEX
BABENREREBELLE - 8075
R TIAFT IS T ([ l) 25
W ARRBHINEER - % S5 H758H
SN MBEBEEREEREALE TN ((TH
migxl) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %= 20234 12 A31 HiF F/Z

2.

136

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and amendments to IFRSs issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB") that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group:

° IFRS 17 (including the June 2020 and December 2021
Amendments to IFRS 17), Insurance Contracts

° Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2,
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

° Amendments to |AS 8, Definition of Accounting
Estimates

° Amendments to IAS 12, Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

° Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two model Rules

Except for the amendments to IAS 12, Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction, and
except as disclosed below, the application of other
amendments to the standards listed above in the current year
has had no material effect on the Group's financial
performance and positions for the current and prior year and
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

In accordance with the guidance set out in the amendments,
accounting policy information that is standardised information,
or information that only duplicates or summarises the
requirements of the IFRSs, is considered immaterial
accounting policy information and is no longer disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements so as not
to obscure the material accounting policy information
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR RN (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exemption such that it does not apply to transactions that
give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences on
initial recognition such as leases and decommissioning
liabilities. For leases and decommissioning liabilities, the
associated deferred tax assets and liabilities are required to
be recognised from the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as
an adjustment to retained earnings or other components of
equity at that date. For all other transactions, the
amendments are applied to those transactions that occur
after the beginning of the earliest period presented.

Impacts of application of amendments to IAS12
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction on the
consolidated financial statements

Prior to the amendments, the Group did not apply the initial
recognition exemption to lease transactions and had
recognised the related deferred tax, except that the Group
previously determined the temporary difference arising from
a right-of-use asset and the related lease liability on a net
basis on the basis they arise from a single transaction.
Following the amendments, the Group has determined the
temporary differences in relation to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. The change primarily impacts
disclosures of components of deferred tax assets and
liabilities in note 28, but does not impact the overall deferred
tax balances presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position as the related deferred tax balances qualify
for offsetting under HKAS 12.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI HRERMEE (8)

™IN (4

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %= 20234 12 A31 HiF F/Z

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. FERHITREETERMEHRE
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING 2R ([EBR B R E2ER ) ()
STANDARDS (IFRSs) (Continued)

Impacts of application of amendments to 1AS12 FERBEBREERE 125 (BT 4)
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities HE-RZEENEERAEERB
arising from a Single Transaction on the WIEEB EHSEMERRNEE
consolidated financial statements (Continued) (&)
The Group has not applied the following new and AEE M RN ZELFE M HRERERU
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet TEBMERES BRI ERS
effective in these consolidated financial statements. AEBI| K BIBR B TS sR 5 HEANB AT AR o
Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUAT A B 2%
e & &t B AR

° Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
BRI S RE LR E 1057 RER @t ERIE 285 (BFAIAX) - REZHABE L A] HE
AEELREANEELEXTE
° Amendments to IFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
BRI AR E LR E165% (BRI A) - EEMOWHERE 20241 A1H
° Amendments to IAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current 1 January 2024
RENEAEVRUERIR) HEBSBEARBDHIERE 20241 RA18
° Amendments to IAS 1, Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
B ERFE 15 (BRIR) - WERALFnBER 2024F1R1H
° Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7, Supplier Finance Arrangements 1 January 2024
B GERAE 7R RERMBRELNETR (BIIR) REFHELH 20241 A1H
° Amendments to IAS 21, Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025
Bt ERFE 215 (BFTAR) - S Al 2 1% 20256 1A 1H
The Group has already commenced an assessment of the E B B AR % T ET BB B 7 3R
impact of these new and amendments to IFRSs but is not yet HAER R BB RS NS R AN &2
in a position to state whether these new and amendments to 2 M R BE R R RZ ST AT BIBR B B TR
IFRSs would have a material impact on its results of HFEAREERGBREEETAgR
operations and financial position. HHESBEEERUBRAEEERTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI HRERKNEE (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable IFRSs issued by IASB. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (”Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for investment properties and
certain financial assets which are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group's current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by S$$9,610,000. Having
considered the Group’s internal resources, cash flows from
operations and unutilised banking facilities amounting to
approximately S$18,250,000 as at 31 December 2023, the
directors of the Company have, at the time of approving the
consolidated financial statements, a reasonable expectation
that the Group has sufficient financial resources to enable the
Group to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future, Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &%= 20234F 12 A31 HiF F/Z

3.

140

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For investment properties which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs are to be
used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition
the results of the valuation technique equal the transaction
price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

l\‘/T\

B ERRNE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significant of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Basis of consolidation
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &%= 20234F 12 A31 HiF F/Z

3.

142

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group which qualifies as
business combination, except for those acquisitions which
qualify as a common control combination and are therefore
accounted for using the merger accounting.

Under the acquisition method of accounting, subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange and, all acquisition-related costs are
expensed. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI HRERKNEE (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue and other income recognition

Under IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
("IFRS 15"), the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group performs;
or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:
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3.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue and other income recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Food and beverages income

Revenue arising from the sale of food and beverages is
recognised in profit or loss at the point of sale to
customers. Revenue is after deduction of any sale
discount.

Rental income

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

Provision of management, cleaning and utilities
services

Revenue from the rendering of outlet management
services and utilities services to the tenants are
recognised over time.

Revenue from provision of cleaning services is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
service agreements upon rendering of services.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) of the asset.
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l\‘/T\

B ERRNE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases
The Group as lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of food centres that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption for
lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.
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3.

146

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value
at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognizes
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for
a lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-
use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of lease

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. WWhenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term except for
investment properties measured under fair value model.
Variable lease payments for operating leases that depend on
an index or a rate are estimated and included in the total
lease payments to be recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income when they
arise.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease
components, the Group applies IFRS 15 to allocate the
consideration under the contract to each component. Non-
lease components are separated from lease component on
the basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the consolidated
entities, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At each reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to
an expense item, it is recognised as profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. \When the
grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as profit or loss in
equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related
asset.

When the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the
asset and the grant are recorded at nominal amounts and
released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a
pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset
by equal annual instalments.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits
Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group makes contributions to the Central Provident Fund
("CPF") scheme in Singapore, a defined contribution pension
scheme. These contributions are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they become payable in accordance
with the scheme. CPF is a compulsory comprehensive social
security system for working Singapore Citizens and
Permanent Residents to reserve funds for retirement.
Employers must pay a monthly contribution calculated at a
range of 7.5% to 17.0% of the employee’s monthly salary,
depending on their age group and capped at S$6,300 per
month. The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

(a) Current income tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “Profit before tax”
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

(b)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and their respective tax bases used
in computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through
sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group
first determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. The Group recognises a
deferred tax asset related to lease liabilities to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised and a deferred tax liability for
all taxable temporary differences.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)
(b) Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

(c) Goods and services tax (“GST")

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of
the amount of GST except where the GST incurred on a
purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from
the taxation authority, in which case the GST is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
or as part of the expense item as applicable.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of
GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to,
the taxation authority is included as part of other
receivables or payables in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production
or supply of goods and services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Freehold land is stated at cost and not depreciated.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Buildings in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management, including costs of testing whether
the related assets is functioning properly and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.

The property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 30 to 50 years

Furniture and fittings 3 years
Food establishment and office equipment 3 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “right-of-use assets” in
the consolidated statement of financial position except for
those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease building
element and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold
land, the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

If a property becomes an investment property because its
use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation,
any difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the
property, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained profits.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items over
their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of
their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

If a property becomes an owner-occupied property because
its use has been changed such that the property ceases to
meet the definition of investment property and the change in
use is evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation,
the fair value of the property at the date of change in use is
considered as the deemed cost for subsequent accounting of
the property as property, plant and equipment.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU") to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average cost
basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Interest and dividend income which are derived from the
financial assets and shareholders’ rights are presented as
other revenue and other income.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not
part of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “Other
income, gains and losses, net” line item.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
loss ("ECL") on financial assets which are subject to
impairment under IFRS 9 (including trade and other
receivables, deposits paid, pledged bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial instrument.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting period.
Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting period as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually and/or collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification of financial liabilities or equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the reporting date, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money
is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group's executive directors, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purpose of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of the Group's various lines
of business and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, which are not restricted as to use.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

In the applications of the Group’'s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

The Group reviews its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets for indications of impairment at each
reporting period. In analysing potential impairments identified,
the Group uses projections of future cash flows from the
assets based on management’s assignment of a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Income tax expense

The Group has exposure to income taxes in Singapore. In
determining the income tax liabilities, management is
required to estimate the amount of capital allowances,
deductibility of certain expenses and applicable tax incentives.
There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recognised,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
income tax recognised in the period in which such
determination is made. The carrying amounts of the Group's
current income tax liabilities as at 31 December 2023 were
approximately S$613,000 (2022: approximately S$547,000).

4.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Income tax expense (Continued)

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on
the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account
all changes in tax legislations. Where the final tax outcome of
these transactions is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such difference will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the year in which such
determination is made.

No deferred tax asset in relation to unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position. In case where
taxable future profits are generated, an understatement of
current year accounting profit due to the unrecognised
deferred tax asset may arise, which deferred tax asset would
be recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the period in which such event
takes place.

Depreciation

Iltems of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of the assets, after taking into account
the estimated residual value. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation expense to be
recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives are
based on the Group's historical experience with similar assets
and taking into account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation expenses for future period are adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimates.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
management works closely with the qualified external valuers
to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
to the model.

Further information on the carrying amounts of these assets
and the valuation techniques and inputs are provided in note
15.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management’s purpose, the Group is organised into two
business segments, namely:

(a) Rental and outlet management

The business segment of rental and outlet management
operation is involved in the leasing of food
establishment premises to tenants and the provision of
cleaning and utilities services to tenants (the “Rental
and Outlet Management”).

(b) Food and beverage stalls

The business segment of food and beverage stalls
operation is primarily involved in the retailing of
beverage, tobacco products and cooked food directly to
consumers such as mixed vegetable rice, zi char,
roasted meat and chicken rice located in food
establishments operated and managed by the Group
and third parties (the “Food and Beverage Stalls”).

4.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

The two business segments described above are identified
as the operating and reportable segments of the Group for
financial reporting purposes. Inter-segment revenue from
service income and rental income are priced with reference
to prices charged to external parties for similar services or
premises, and inter-segment management fee revenue
included in service income is charged at a mark up
percentage over the staff costs.

Management monitors the operating results of its business
units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss
which in certain respects is measured differently from
operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial
statements.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’
emoluments, bank interest income and finance cost on
general working capital borrowings.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. R&EHIER (E)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023: HZE2023F12A31BLLEE :
Rental and Food and
Outlet Beverage
Management Stalls Unallocated Total
HeREHER B8N KOE @t
$$'000 $$'000 $$'000 $$'000
FHME T FHME T THMET T3 M
Segment revenue 2k
External revenue from contracts REEFPAENN
with customers ohER MR 3,949 43,891 - 47,840
External rental income ISk N 7,900 - - 7,900
11,849 43,891 - 55,740
Inter-segment revenue SR
— Rental and service income — e RRBUA 23,347 - - 23,347
Elimination Eakis (23,347) - - (23,347
11,849 43,891 - 55,740
Segment profit/(loss) AR/ (BE) 5,477 5,527 (3,085) 7,919
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023: (Continued)

REsHER (&)

HZE2023F12A31BLLEE : (&)

Rental and Food and
Outlet Beverage
Management Stalls Unallocated Total
HEeREHER BHER i o
$$'000 $$'000 $$'000 $$'000
FHME T FH Mz FHME T T3 M
Other segment information HittAHER
Included in the measure of segment R ENBEF/ (BE)
profit/(loss) and segment assets: RoHEERTA
W& :
Fair value gain of investment properties &M ¥ A FERE 6,320 - - 6,320
Finance costs BBKA (2,583) - (207) (2,790)
Addition to non-current assets (Note) FERDEERE (Fi1) 3,755 793 4,325 8,873
Depreciation of property, nE- BEREETE
plant and equipment (1,168) (551) (309) (2,028)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE (2,764) (213) - (2,977)
Staff costs EIKA (2,846) (10,544) (3.574) (16,964)
Property rentals and related expenses MERSRABRS (2,464) (1,898) - (4,362)
Note: Non-current assets included investment properties, property, plant and Mk : ERBDEEREREME WE - BERR

equipment, and right-of-use assets.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023: (Continued)

HZE2023F12A31BLLEE : (&)

Rental Food and
and Outlet Beverage
Management Stalls  Unallocated Total
HeREHER BHEN AAE @
$$'000 $$'000 $$'000 $$'000
FHMET — FTHMET FH MK T3 K
Reportable segment assets AHRELIBEE 157,358 14,018 35 171,411
Other financial assets HihepEE - - 791 791
Pledged bank deposits ERBRTER - - 1,015 1,015
Deferred tax assets ERTIEEE - - 51 51
Unallocated property, RAM WE
plant and equipment EE ST - - 24,861 24,861
Consolidated total assets GREERE 157,358 14,018 26,753 198,129
Reportable segment liabilities AHREFHEE 82,116 11,981 16,099 110,196
Tax payable eI - - 613 613
Unallocated accruals and AAMETERR
other payables Hh e[ 58 - - 902 902
Consolidated total liabilities RERBAE 82,116 11,981 17,614 111,711
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022:

REsHER (&)

HZE2022F 12 A31 HILFEE -

Rental Food and
and Outlet Beverage
Management Stalls Unallocated Total
HeRERER ZHIEAL AAE @it
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
FHME T FHE T FH M T FHME T
Segment revenue 2l
External revenue from contracts RERFAENM
with customers UG 3,890 35,566 - 39,456
External rental income HNERTE S U 7,834 - - 7,834
11,724 35,566 - 47,290
Inter-segment revenue o bk s
— Rental and service income — e RRBKA 20,216 - - 20,216
Elimination i (20,216) - - (20,216)
11,724 35,566 - 47,290
Segment profit/(loss) AR/ (BE) 2,623 6,960 (3,407) 6,176
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5.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. RK&ESHER (F)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022: (Continued) HE2022F12A31BILFEE : (8)
Rental Food and
and Outlet Beverage
Management Stalls Unallocated Total
HeREHER BHRIEN AOE @ar
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
FHmgET  FEET THmEL  FTEROET
Other segment information Hitt 5 BER
Included in the measure of segment R ERTRF/ (EB)
profit/{loss) and segment assets: R EEERA
UT&HE
Fair value gain of investment properties & ¥ £ A FEU 2,230 - - 2,230
Finance costs PR (1,543) - (97) (1,640)
Addition to non-current assets (Note) ERPEERE (M) 9,359 782 15,799 25,940
Depreciation of property, nE - BERSENE
plant and equipment (460) (503) (257) (1,220)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE (1,270) (1,013) - (2,283)
Staff costs B IR (2,447) (7,422) (2,796) (12,665)
Property rentals and related expenses M1 %74 RIBHERR % (2,681) (934) - (3,615)

Note: Non-current assets included investment properties, property, plant and

equipment and right-of-use assets.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. RKR&ESHER ()
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022: (Continued) HE2022F12A31BILFEE : (8)
Rental Food and
and Outlet Beverage
Management Stalls Unallocated Total
HeREHERE BHRIEN AOE @ar
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
FHmET  FEET THmMET  THMOET
Reportable segment assets AHREIBEE 154,507 12,579 62 167,148
Other financial assets HithepEE - - 1,717 1,717
Pledged bank deposits EERBRTER - - 1,015 1,015
Deferred tax assets ERTIEEE - - 69 69
Unallocated property, AAEWE  BER
plant and equipment B - - 20,866 20,866
Consolidated total assets GEEERE 154,507 12,579 23,729 190,815
Reportable segment liabilities AHREIHEE 89,353 7,333 15,250 111,936
Tax payable B HIE - - 547 547
Unallocated accruals and AOMETERR
other payables Hih e I8 - - 758 758
Consolidated total liabilities GeRRLE 89,353 7,333 16,555 113,241
Information about major customers EHFXEEFHNEHR
No single major customer contributed more than 10% of the MEE —FERXFEASERAREBA

WD mREZNE PR -

Group's total revenue. The revenue is spread over a broad 10% e
base of customers.
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5.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. RK&ESHER (F)
(Continued)
Geographical information HEER
The Group operates mainly in Singapore with revenue AEEFZERINEEE - WRIRH
generated in, and non-current assets situated in, Singapore. bﬂi)j‘iﬁiﬁfﬁiﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’\%ﬁﬂﬂﬁ At -
Accordingly, an analysis of revenue and non-current assets of MEZ5) RS HHREE KRR RE
the Group by geographical distribution has not been EDHT e
presented.
REVENUE 6. W=
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
S$$'000 S$'000
F 53 T TR M
Revenue from contracts with customers FEF & # Wz
Sales of goods, recognised on point BEEM  RE—RHEERER
in time basis
— Sales of cooked food, beverage and —HEAR - RBREEER
tobacco products 43,891 35,566
Services income, recognised on over BRAGUTA + X — ER B [ A TR
time basis
— Provision of management, cleaning —REFPRHER - BERK
and utilities services to tenants NREERY 3,949 3,890
47,840 39,456
Revenue from other sources B KRRz
Rent from leases of premises to tenants mAFEESwHHES 7,900 7,834
55,740 47,290
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7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 7. HtWA  WKWBEREEFHR

2023 2022
2023 & 2022
S$'000 S$'000

FHIFEIT — TEIMET

(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BERZED

plant and equipment, net (E518) W= %% (157) 37
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 36) & — KB Q&) W (K 5E36) 1,205 -
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HERQFEGTABREN

FVTPL TRVEE WS 30 -
Gain on termination of lease contract IS 4 -
Exchange loss bE i &8 (8) (2)
Interest income B A 3 22
Dividend income from financial assets BAFEGAERRN

at FVTPL TREEELNREKA 10 41
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets & A F{EzT ABZEH

at FVTPL CRHEEQATE (BB, (10) 28
Sundry income HIEWA 165 60

1,242 186
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BI#MA
2023 2022
2023 & 2022 &
S$°000 S$'000

FHIFET — THEIMET

Interest on borrowings EREF S 2,933 1,623
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENTE 300 272
3,233 1,795
Capitalised interest in relation to BRAWE T RFAEKER
acquisition of land and B AR E
development cost (443) (155)
2,790 1,640
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI HRERMEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %= 20234 12 A31 HiF F/Z

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. PBRBLANGEF
2023 2022
2023 & 2022
S$'000 S$'000

FHIFEIT — TEIMET

Profit before tax is arrived at after BRBLRDE M TR IR AT
charging the following items: FBIRRER
(a)  Staff costs (including directors’ (a) BIXKN(BREESEME)
emoluments)
Salaries and benefits (Note) e REF (K 16,149 11,935
Contribution to defined TE BB RGET SR
contribution plans 815 730
16,964 12,665
(o)  Other items (b) HAIEE
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B R 357 B
— annual audit services — FEEZRG 110 105
Expenses relating to B HHER AN
short-term leases 4,362 3,615
Direct operating expenses arising FARAEEAHEESWAR
from investment properties REMEEZLERE
that generated rental income
during the year 368 423
Note: For the year ended 31 December 2023, manpower related government Mzt : B ZE2023F 12 A3 BLLFEE - ANHEBEH
grants or assistance amounted to S$643,000 (2022: S$1,230,000) have K T #8 B 342 Bh 643,000 # i3 7T (2022 4F -
been offset against staff costs. 1,230,000 ¥ pn¥oe) B E TRCA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e R RNEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

10. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS 10. EEE £
Details for the emoluments of each director of the Company ARRZEESRBREHANETENFB I
during the reporting period are as follows: o

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZ203F12A31HLEE

Contributions
to defined
contribution Other
Directors’ Discretionary retirement  short-term
fees Salaries bonuses plan benefits Total
R

BIRGTE Hit
Ezhe i RfERA MR EHEA @zt
$$'000 $$'000 §$'000 $$'000 $$'000 $$'000
FHMET FHMWET  FHORT  FHORT FHRORRT FHORR

Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Chu Chee Keong REREE

(Zhu Zhigiang) (“Mr. Chu") ([REE]) - 660 247 19 - 926
Ms. Leow Poh Hoon BExZT

(Liao Baoyun) ("Ms. Leow")  ([BZt]) - 240 140 19 - 399
Ms. Chu Pek Si RFt

(Zhu Peishi) ("Ms. Chu") ([%k&t)) - 120 50 19 - 189

Independent non-executive BIFHTEES .

directors:
Mr. Wong Loke Tan Wong Loke Tan %t £

(“Mr. Wong") ([Wong %4]) 30 - - - - 30
Mr. Mah Seong Kung DR S A

("Mr. Mah") (B%%]) 36 - - - - 36
Mr. Ng Yong Hwee BRERE

(“Mr. Ng") ([Exx]) 30 - - - - 30

96 1,020 437 57 1,610
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e SR (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % 2023 12 431 HIF EE

10. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 10. EEM < (88)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE202F12A3181L5E

Contributions
to defined
contribution Other
Directors’ Discretionary retirement  short-term
fees Salaries bonuses plan benefits Total
EREMR

RN Aty
EZHg i BT MR EHEN @5t
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S5$000
THMET THIOET  THIRT  THMET THMRT THIRT

Executive directors: YTEE:
Mr. Chu Chee Keong rEREE

(Zhu Zhigiang) (“Mr. Chu") ([R%EE]) - 550 229 18 - 797
Ms. Leow Poh Hoon BRR&T

(Liao Baoyun) (“Ms. Leow")  ([B&L]) - 150 50 18 - 218
Ms. Chu Pek Si PN

(Zhu Peishi) ("Ms. Chu") (T&&t)) - 98 76 19 - 193

Independent non-executive BIFHTEES:

directors:
Mr. Wong Loke Tan Wong Loke Tan % £

("Mr. Wong") (TWong %4 1) 27 - - - - 27
Mr. Mah Seong Kung DR EE

("Mr. Mah") (D% 33 - - - - 33
Mr. Ng Yong Hwee BRELE

("Mr. Ng") ) ¥%3) 27 - - - - 27

87 798 365 55 - 1,295
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A

e BERRMNE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 10. EEM S (])
The remuneration shown above represents remuneration ENFTRNeEREEEUDRIERR
received and receivable from the Group by these directors in EEEESNE/ IARNRREEFH
their capacity as employees to the Group and/or in their 7 B AN 5 (B A &= 2023 F [ 2022 F 12
capacity as directors of the Company during the years ended A3MBIEFERREEWAINE - RF
31 December 2023 and 2022 respectively. None of the N BRESERERRRCHRRENM
directors agreed to waive or waived any emoluments during % (2022 FF : TIFMNFEIT) © FIRAAR
the year (2022: S$Nil). The Company's executive directors’ REMITEEHESFEIEAEETEAR
emoluments shown were mainly for their services in NARAEE 2 EHEBRIE 2B -
connection with the management of the affairs of the EXAFIRARARBIIERNITEENIE
Company and the Group. The Company’s independent non- FTEREBEEEARATESMR -
executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services as directors of the Company.
11. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 11. & & N
Five highest paid individuals TEBREFMAL
The five highest paid employees during the year included 3 RAFE AEGEauWEED R BE
(2022: 3) directors and details of whose emoluments are set 3% (2022 :3%)EF - BEHME
out in note 10 above. Details of the emoluments of the FEIEHRN EXMIE10 RAFE T
remaining 2 (2022: 2) highest paid employees who are not a 2% (2022 : 3&) =B BES (W3
director during the year are as follows: EF)MMEFBOT
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
S$'000 S$'000
FHEmE T  FEMET
Salaries, other allowances and e EMRREYRET
benefits in kind 485 410
Discretionary bonuses BIEIELT 50 27
Contributions to defined contribution TE R FURIRET B A9 3R
retirement plan 26 42
561 479
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fra g ERRME (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %= 20234 12 A31 HiF F/Z

11. EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
emoluments fell within the following bands is as follows:

EE%M (nﬂ)
TEREHFMA L ()

FHEATHENFEERSFHIMES
ABIATE

2023 2022
2023 2022 F
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 8702 1,000,000 7T
(equivalent to Nil to S$168,930) (FBERNZZE168,930 %1 113 7T) 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 87T £ 1,500,000 %5 7T
(equivalent to S$168,930 to S$253,395)  (HEZ 1 168,930 F Il T &=
253,395 #7004 7T ) - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 78 7T & 2,000,000 %5 7T
(equivalent to S$253,395 to S$337,860)  (HHZ 253,395 ¥ i L =
337,860 #7013 7T ) - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7T & 2,500,000 7 7T
(equivalent to S$337,860 to S$422,325) (M1 337,860 F Al T &=
422,325 ¥ N3 oT) 1 1
2 2

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
(2022: S$Nil). None of the five highest paid individuals have
waived any emoluments during the year (2022: S$Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RR W (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

12. TAXATION

No provision of taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the
Group’s income neither arises in, nor derived from, Hong
Kong.

The Singapore Corporate Income tax (“CIT”) rate was 17%
(2022: 17%) during the year. Income tax expense for the
Group relates wholly to the profits of the subsidiaries, which
were taxed at 17% in Singapore. Major components of
income tax expense for the year are:

B

HARASEERAL FEREBE LK
BEB  BMERTAVAFELERE -

RAFEE  FTNEEEMESHR ((EA
BB RAE17% (2022F : 17% ) > K
EBMAEHBAT T2 EMB QRN
FERE  ZEWEBRRRIINLIZ17%
R - NFENMESHASIEE
WD A

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
S$'000 S$'000

FHIFET  TEMET

Current tax: BVERRR 1S -
— Singapore CIT — N ERISH 281 515
— Under provision in respect of — BEFERENR
prior years 310 9
591 524
Deferred tax IERERL IR 18 (22)
609 502
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PBHRRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %= 20234 12 A31 HiF F/Z

12. TAXATION (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate for the country in which the
Company'’s subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at
the effective tax rate, is as follows:

12. #H1E (&)

BARBINE QR FER ZOAE &R B
ERBEHANEN T ENR AR BIZE
BRREFENHBEREERET

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
S$'000 S$'000

FHMFEIT  TERIET

Profit before tax B 75 B A 7,919 6,176
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 17% WRTERER17% (20225 1 17%)

(2022: 17%) FTEEIA 1,346 1,050
Non-deductible expenses Rl 416 172
Non-taxable income mEATRA (1.261) 417
Effect of tax exemption and tax relief HIERE LB BERENTE (258) (355)
Utilisation of tax losses previously LRI RERH AR AT IBEHE

not recognised (17) (23)
Effect of temporary differences REREREZENTE

not recognised 73 66
Under/(over) provision in prior years BAEFEBETR(BERE) 310 9
Taxation charge MIE 609 502

The Group has unused tax losses of S$1,495,000 (2022:
S$1,684,000) that are available for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.

13. DIVIDENDS

The Directors of the Company do not recommend the
payment of any final dividend for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022. No interim dividend was declared
during 2023 and 2022.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A

e BERRMNE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

15.

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year of approximately S$7,310,000 (2022:
approximately S$5,674,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue during
the year of 800,000,000 shares (2022: 800,000,000 shares).

No adjustment is made in arriving at diluted earnings per
share as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue for

14. EREF

ERELABAMNDERFE R
7,310,000 7 103 7T (2022 4F © 495,674,000
M TT) RARARAFEEBEITE
Bz hn#E 39 2800,000,000 A% (2022
£ 1 800,000,000 i) 5+ & ©

HRZMEFEYEEMEHTEES
R R B A E B R B A A

both years. HEE .
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWE
S$'000
F I T
Fair value A¥EE
At 1 January 2022 720221 H1H 136,100
Transferred to property, plant and equipment R EYE BB N (25,200)
Net gain arising from change in fair value of REMERNTFEESHEAN KR FEE
investment properties 2,230
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 2022912 431 H X% 2023F1H1H 113,130
Transferred from property, plant and equipment — EEEW¥ « FHE LR E 13,300
Net gain arising from change in fair value REYENFELZHEENKEFEA
of investment properties 6,320
At 31 December 2023 202312 A31H 132,750

The investment properties of the Group consist of 9 (2022: 8)
food centres that are held under leasehold interests, 1 (2022:
1) food centre that is held under freehold interests and 1
(2022: Nil) industrial building to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation as at 31 December 2023 and 2022, all of which
are located in Singapore. The investment properties are
stated at fair value. Fair value is estimated by the
management of the Group with reference to valuation report
provided by an independent valuer, Knight Frank Pte. Ltd.
(2022: Knight Frank Pte. Ltd.), who holds a recognised and
relevant professional qualification and has recent experience
in the location and category of the investment properties
being valued. The fair value measurements of the investment
properties are categorised as Level 3 valuation. The Group's
investment properties’ fair values are determined using
comparable sales method.

20234 22022612 H31H » A& E
K% &Y 3 B IE9E (2022 4F - 81&) PA
HEERFSENERES 1E (2022
G fE) AR A EREFREE K1 E (2022
FoE) ITEZEVIERDRBED &
EEXRFEREHNERF DL  2ELR
o c WEMETIARFETE - A
FEDAAEBEREBK2EB Y GE
B Knight Frank Pte. Ltd. (2022 4 :
Knight Frank Pte. Ltd.) I2t M(EEHR &
hEHEH - ZBIL B EMFBARATN
HEEEEE  WREHBEREWEM
e B R TR R A L B - IR E
MENANTFEFAEDERE-—RMHE-
REBEMKEMELNFEDKRANEL
BIHEAETE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R EE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 &%= 20234F 12 A31 HiF F/Z

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The valuations that have been arrived at using comparable
sales method were determined by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in similar
locations and conditions. The key input of unit sale rates are
determined after taking into account of the transaction time,
location, and individual factors, such as size, age, floor, flow
of people and frontage. There was no change in the valuation
technique used to determine the fair values of each of the
respective investment properties in 2023.

The fair values of the investment properties were derived
using valuation technique with unobservable inputs being
used which could result in significantly higher or lower
amounts of the fair values being measured, hence are
categorized as Level 3 valuations.

In estimating the fair value of investment properties, the
highest and best use of the Group’s investment properties is
their current use.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, two investment
properties with carrying values of approximately
S$25,200,000 were transferred to property, plant and
equipment (note 16) upon the change in use of the properties
such that the properties were no longer held by the Group to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation. The transfers were
made upon the commencement of the Group's occupation of
the properties for its own food and beverage stalls operations
during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ﬁﬁ#&%ﬁﬁ HE (n\/\>

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

A

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, two investment
properties with revalued amounts of approximately
S$13,300,000 were transferred from property, plant and
equipment (note 16) upon the change in use of the properties
such that the properties were held by the Group to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation. The transfers were made
upon the end of owner-occupation during the year.

BRED o

HE2023F12A31MBILFE EFE&
B4 5 #913,300,000 7 003 T ) W18 15 &
MERMERGCEEREREWE - K
EREE (Hix1e)  UWBAEEZE
ZEWMEUFEA SR IEEREE - %
CEBEDAEERTATHEREETAA

Relationship of
Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs
Type of building and key inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
THRERAYBHE
BFER HEERMREEGAEE EATHHERARE AVEZBE
Shop units of Direct comparison method 2023: 2023:

industrial building
2023: S$2,300,000
2022: N/A

TEREMHHEN

2023 :
2,300,000 %7 i3 7T

2022 : MEA

The key input is:
(i) unit sale rate

BEREBE

TEHAHEA:
() BNEE

Unit sale rate, taking into account
differences in the transaction
time, location, and individual
factors, such as size, age, floor,
flow of people and frontage,
between the comparables and
the property, ranging from
S$7,700 to S$10,800 (2022:

S$Nil) per square meter on gross

floor area basis for properties
2023 :
BEUEE(GHARITELREFE

MEZEOR FERE - B K

miE Bk BE ARERE
HWREMANRENZR)
NEGE R KT I0F R TE

10,8002 3% 7T (20224 : TN
Wor) LR F R

An increase in the unit sale rate
used would result in an
increase in the fair value
measurement of the
investment properties by the
same percentage increase, and
vice versa.

2023 ¢
FABMEELMEERRED
EMATENERBRNED
LI IET  R2 A
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %= 20234 12 A31 HiF F/Z

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Relationship of
Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs
Type of building and key inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
THRERAYBHE
BFER RERNREERABE EXTUBRERAYE AVEZBE
Shop units of Direct comparison method Unit sale rate, taking into account  An increase in the unit sale rate

commercial building
2023: S$25,150,000
2022: S$23,600,000

HEETHHBEN
2023 :
25,150,000 7 113 7T
2022
23,600,000 #7113 7T

Public housing food centres
2023: $$105,300,000
2022: $$89,530,000

AEEEERPL

20234 :
105,300,000 # 13 T

2022
89,530,000 7 13 7T
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The key input is:
(i) unit sale rate

BEREBE

ITEHAEEA:
) BfEE

Direct comparison method

The key input is:
(i) unit sale rate

BREBE

TERARER
() BAEE

differences in the transaction
time, location, and individual
factors, such as size, age, floor,
flow of people and frontage,
between the comparables and
the property, ranging from
S$16,000 to S$85,000 (2022:
S$12,000 to S$166,000) per

square meter on gross floor area

basis for properties.

ENEE(EHERTELBETE

MEZENR FERE - B R

miE Bk BE ARERE
HHASANEZNZEINT
FEFK16,000F K TE

85,000 714 7T (2022 4 : 12,000

HTIIR T & 166,000 37 MK 7T) 2
RLRDEELERETE -

Unit sale rate, taking into account
differences in the transaction time,

location, and individual factors, such

as size, age, floor, flow of people
and frontage, between the
comparable and the property,
ranging from S$21,000 to
S$100,000 (2022: S$21,000 to
S$69,000) per square meter on
gross floor area basis for properties.
B EREEHRATELRETH
MEZBORSHRE - IR
EF B BE - ARERME
HHASENERNEZR)NT
i%ﬁ*mom%Mﬁﬁi
100,000 7 A3 7T (2022 F -
21,0007 I3 7T & 69,000 ¥ A%
70 2B TRERERETE -
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used would result in an
increase in the fair value
measurement of the
investment properties by the
same percentage increase, and
vice versa.
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HEINEST RZAR

An increase in the unit sale rate
used would result in an
increase in the fair value
measurement of the
investment properties by the
same percentage increase, and
vice versa.
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e BERRMNE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group's policy is to recognise transfer between levels of
the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in

AEBNBRAERBREHRRAFEBR
MEAERNSEREBERE - 522023

which they occur. There were no transfers between levels
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The investment properties of the Group with a carrying
amount of S$121,750,000 (2022: S$113,130,000) have been
pledged to secure borrowings of the Group (see note 26).
The Group is not allowed to pledge these assets as security
for other borrowings or to sell them to another entity.

At the reporting date, the details of the Group's investment

FR202F12A3NBUHEFE  FRF
EERMIL I -

A& & BR 18 A 121,750,000 37 H1 3% 7T
(20224 :
BYEDIER  UIERAEEMNE
(FHizE26) °
ABEMEFNERIGEHETS —F

g ©

113,130,000 %7 A0 3% 7T) B9 #%

AEETERZEEEF

RS BH - NEBEREYMENFEN

properties are as follows: T
Location Description/existing use Tenure
A= Hit RERE FH
220 Orchard Road #B1-10/11 Midpoint Two strata-titled retail units Freehold
Orchard, Singapore 238852 (food centre)
“ESEFETEEM(ERPL) KAKHE

Block 631 Bedok Reservoir Road
#01-982, Singapore 470631

Block 744 Bedok Reservoir Road
#01-3019, Singapore 470744

101 Upper Cross Street #01-02/
A/B/C/E, #01-04A, #01- 05A/B/C/P,
People’s Park Centre, Singapore 058357

Block 134, Jurong Gateway Road,

#01-309, Singapore 600134

Block 139, Tampines Street 11,
#01-08, Singapore 521139

A coffee shop with living quarters
(food centre)

RAERRAOMTEE (KRB L)

An eating establishment with
living quarters (food centre)

BRREFRORE(ZRFD)

Nine strata-titled shop units
(foodcentre and retail shop)

NESEES (ERTLERZEE)

An eating house (food centre)

REZERDL)

An eating house with living
quarters (food centre)

BRREEROER (ZRFD)

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2023 £ %

Leasehold 88 years commencing
from 1 October 1993
MERE 19934610 A1 HiEst 884

Leasehold 90 years commencing
from 1 August 1995
ME®AE1995F8 A1 A 0F

Leasehold 99 years commencing
from 2 June 1970
HE#B197056 A2 AR5 994

Leasehold 91 years commencing
from 1 April 1993
MERB 199364 A1 B9 F

Leasehold 90 years commencing
from 1 July 1993
ME®BE1993F7 A1 A 904F
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eI HRERMEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %= 20234 12 A31 HiF F/Z

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. REWE (&)
Location Description/existing use Tenure
A= W BERE FH
Block 145, Teck Whye Avenue An eating house (food centre) Leasehold 92 years commencing
#01-151, Singapore 680145 RE(ERBDL) from 3 July 1992

HE#B1992F7 F3F R 02E

200 Jalan Sultan, #01-05, Textile Two strata-titled shop units Leasehold 99 years commencing
Centre, Singapore 199018 (food centre) from 2 June 1970
—EnrERERREL(RRPL) MERE1970%6 A2 A 995

Block 171, Yishun Avenue 7, An eating house (food centre) Leasehold 93 years commencing
#01- 781, Singapore 760171 from 1 January 1994
RE(ERFL) ME®E1994F1 A1 AR 935F

At the reporting date, the details of the Group's property, plant and equipment reclassified as investment properties are as
follows:

REERH  AEEDBANE  BEMRENREDEOFFNOT

83 Genting Lane, #08-00, Genting The 8th Storey of the Freehold
Building, Singapore 349568 industrial building
SEIXEEY KAKERE
Block 491, Jurong West Avenue 1, An eating house (food centre) Leasehold 88 years commencing
#01-173, Singapore 640491 from 1 December 1996
RE(ERFDL) MAEEE1996F 12 A1 Bt 884F
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. ¥ - BMEKRRE

Food
Leasehold establishment
Freehold land and Furniture and office Motor  Construction
land buildings  and fittings equipment vehicles  in progress Total
BELH
KAEBLH kEF BAREE  BOERR RE ERIR &t
S$'000 S$'000 $$/000 $$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
g FTEMET O FTENET 0 T THMER TENET FENET
Cost BA&
At 1 January 2023 #2023E1 818 20,095 34,274 218 4,483 316 956 60,342
Additions HE - - - 795 282 4,020 5,097
Transferred to investment ERENEER
properties (1,510) (10,220) - (414) - - (12,144)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 36) it} & — M B2
R (4,085) (854) - (201) - - (5,140)
Disposals £ - - - - (65) - (65)
Written off i - - - (295) - - (295)
At 31 December 2023 12023128318 14,500 23,200 218 4,368 533 4,976 41,19
Accumulated depreciation 2itE
At1 January 2023 R0BEI1A18 - 614 218 1997 % - 291
Charge for the year ERTH - i - 1222 89 - 2,028
Transferred to investment ERENEER
properties - (228) - (150) - - (378)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 36) it — i B2
(B 36) - (36) - (38) - - (74)
Disposals e - - - - (47) - (47)
Written off i - - - (121) - - (121)
At 31 December 2023 120235128318 - 1,067 218 2910 127 - 4,322
Carrying value REE
At 31 December 2023 12023128318 14,500 22133 - 1,458 406 4,976 43473
Cost BE
At 1 January 2022 M202%F1718 1,510 8220 218 2,729 252 - 12,929
Additions AE 4,085 854 - 2,398 200 956 8493
Transferred from investment SR ENEER
properties - 25,200 - - - - 25,200
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—RlE AR
(Note 35 (B3 35) 14,500 - - - - - 14,500
Disposals e - - - - (136) - (136)
Written off HisA - - - (644) - - (644)
At 31 December 2022 120225128318 20,095 34,274 218 4,483 316 956 60,342
Accumulated depreciation RitiE
At 1 January 2022 1202251718 - 386 218 1,688 166 - 2458
Charge for the year ERZM - 228 - 937 55 - 1,220
Disposals e - - - - (136) - (136)
Written off Hi3H - - - 628) - - (628)
At 31 December 2022 R2022512531A - 614 218 1,997 85 - 2914
Carrying value BEE
At 31 December 2022 120225124318 20,095 33,660 - 2,486 231 956 57428
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %= 20234 12 A31 HiF F/Z

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

190

Notes:

(a)

(c)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, additions of property, plant
and equipment of S$5,097,000 (2022: S$8,493,000) comprised of
capitalized interest of S$443,000 (2022: S$155,000) and purchases of
property, plant and equipment of approximately S$4,654,000 (2022:
$$8,338,000), which was settled by deposit paid of approximately S$Nil
(2022: $240,000), trade-in of vehicles of approximately S$Nil (2022:
$53,000) and bank borrowing of approximately S$Nil (2022:
S$4,318,000), with approximately S$1,087,000 (2022: S$Nil) unsettled
at the end of the reporting period, the remaining balance of
approximately S$3,567,000 (2022: S$3,727,000) was paid by the Group
in cash.

As at 31 December 2023, property, plant and equipment with net
carrying amount of approximately S$33,484,000 (2022: approximately
S$40,490,000) comprising freehold land of carrying amount of
approximately S$14,500,000 (2022: S$20,095,000) and leasehold land
and buildings of carrying amount of S$18,984,000 (2022: $20,395,000),
were pledged as security under mortgage loans as below mentioned in
note 26.

As at 31 December 2023, leasehold land and buildings with remaining
land lease period of 30 to 62 years and net carrying amount of
S$$22,133,000 (2022: S$30,839,000) include both leasehold land and
building elements of properties. The consideration paid by the Group
and fair value at date the properties were transferred from investment
properties for the acquisition or transfer of these properties could not
be allocated reliably between the non-lease building element and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, hence the balances
of the entire properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.
The remaining carrying amount of S$Nil (2022: S$2,821,000) relates to
building situated on freehold land.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was change in use of
two properties with carrying values of S$11,766,000 that the properties
would be held by the Group to earn rentals or for capital appreciation.
These properties were previously occupied by the Group for its own
food and beverage stalls operations. These two properties were
transferred to investment properties at their revalued amounts of
S$13,300,000 upon the change in use and a gain on revaluation of these
properties of S$1,534,000 was recognised in other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2023.

K2 F&BHOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUALREPORT 2023

B EE -

(a)

(c)

(d)

16. ¥ - BERHRE (&)

HE2023F12A31BLEEE  FEWE -
i 55 & =% £ 5,097,000 %1 in 3% Jr (2022 4 :
8,493,000 ¥ N t) (B IE & KL F B
443,000 %1 1132 7T (2022 4F : 155,000 7 A3
L) A REEME - BE &% #E# 4,654,000
#7903 7T (2022 4 + 8,338,000 7 Al # 7T) )
LB S & T3 miw (20224 ¢
240,000¥T N L) ~ AEAEBRIOT
3703 7T (20224 : 53,000 % M3 T) &
SRATIEFRA T # N T (2022 F : 4,318,000
ML) 8 RAREHAKREED
1,087,000 #r AN TT (2022 4F - TEANHT)
B 45 £ 493,567,000 %1 in 3% o (2022 4F ¢
3,727,000 ¥ 7t) - ERAEEUR S
fi e

AR R SCHY EE 26 BTt - A 20234F 12 A 31
B BREFE 4 533,484,000 37 40 3% T
(2022 4F : #740,490,000 ¥7 N3 TT) Eh )%
[ 5 K 3% 5 (B 45 BR TE {8 49 4 14,500,000 %7
b T (2022 4 ¢ 20,095,000 #7 AN L) K
AR ZERE 1 DA 2 BRTEE 40 45 18,984,000 %7
% It (2022 4F : 20,395,000 7 hl 3% 7T) #9
TE T RIET) HIARIBE RIERIR o

202312 A31H % T+ AE30E
62 K 85 M ${E 22,133,000 7 03 7T (2022
£F : 30,839,000 #7 M3 JT) M & L+ i R 42
FEEVENRET W REFTED - AEE
RUEREEXSEVELIAORBERAR
EYEESREDEEBNQAFEELIRER
HELHHNIIFRERFHD RADBER
2RISR AEITMENEHRES S
B BERSE - SR TEREET N
7T (2022 & : 2,821,000 7 A0 4% 7T.) B2 A7 A 5k
AEET N —RIEFHR -

HZE2023F12A31BLFE  FEEE
11,766,000 %1 N ST MIBYIE R B EE -
ZEMEBBEAEERS  UERESESR
TEE - ZEVELAEAERAREAR
EREMLE ZMBNEERETREY
¥ RNEFREREEMEEEA13,300,000
oo - B E2023F12 A3 B IEFE
BEZEWE MU 1,534,000 % hni TR
Hh 2 E R PR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
l\‘/T\ ﬁﬁ#&% M]L DE (ll\/\>

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. EREEE
Food centres/
Food stalls
ES L%
S$'000
T3 N T
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2023 720231 H1H 11,165
Additions NE 3,776
Modification [ETe (345)
Derecognition RIETER (495)
At 31 December 2023 202312 A31H 14,101
Accumulated depreciation B E
At 1 January 2023 20231 H1H 2,644
Charge for the year FAZM 2,977
Modification 1B (183)
Derecognition IR (495)
At 31 December 2023 7R2023F 12 A31H 4,943
Carrying values FREE
At 31 December 2023 R20234F 12 A31H 9,158
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2022 72022118 8,442
Additions NE 2,947
Modification [ETe (26)
Derecognition BRI ER (198)
At 31 December 2022 M 2022F12 A31 A 11,165
Accumulated depreciation AT E
At 1 January 2022 20221 H1H 559
Charge for the year FRZM 2,283
Derecognition BRI ER (198)
At 31 December 2022 7R2022412A31H 2,644
Carrying values BREE
At 31 December 2022 R20229F12A31H 8,521
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %= 20234 12 A31 HiF F/Z

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 17. EREEE (&)

2023 2022

2023 F 2022 F

S$$000 S$'000

FHmiEox  FEFMET

Expenses relating to short-term leases HEHRAEFENAY 4,362 3,615
Repayment of principal portion of EEHEAENAESIS

lease liabilities 2,644 1,850

Interest paid on lease liabilities HEBEBENENFE 300 272

Total cash outflows for leases for the year FARAEHELRLE 7,306 5,737

192

The right-of-use assets are rented from the Singapore
government and private entities. The lease terms of the food
centres or food stalls used by the Group in its Food and
Beverage Stalls segment range from 2 to 4 years (2022: 2 to
5 years). Leases contain terms requiring payments by the
Group of minimum monthly lease payments that are fixed
over the lease term and variable lease payments that are
based on certain percentages of the monthly gross sales
turnover if the variable lease payment exceeds the monthly
basic rent. No variable lease payment was paid or payable to
the lessors for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
S$Nil). Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of right-of-use assets over their expected useful lives using
straight-line method. When there is no reasonable certainty
that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term,
the assets are depreciated over the lease term.

The short-term leases relate to food centres and food stalls
which are rented from Singapore government and private
entities with the lease terms of 12 months or less.

The Group does not have the option to purchase the right-of-
use assets for a nominal amount at the end of the lease

terms.

Lease liabilities of approximately S$9,812,000 (2022:
S$8,846,000) are recognised with related right-of-use assets
of approximately S$9,158,000 (2022: S$8,521,000) as at 31
December 2023. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Lease assets may not be

used as security for borrowing purposes.

K2 F&BHOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUALREPORT 2023

{5 FAAE B BE T 60 37 D03 BT e FLA B B2
HE AEEREREL DI HAD
EFRPLARENHAENN T224F
(2022F : N F2%259F) - HERSE
FAEBMREERAZFEERESA

MBS AR - LA i 7] 2 70 & < 5K
BBEsAENHES RIREEHEHEE

EEBENETE LTS EHAE
KB E2023F12A31BIEFE - #f
EEMREMNTHBEANTEEENR
(2022 4F : TFTMFETT) - FRHEEEMN
BERFATEBAIEAFHRGIRTE
LAMUSE B AR AS - 5 & B e E 5
EmEBESHER  MEETHRER
RITE °

RHEERERPTONRIEHEE  JiE
MNEBRELABEER  HEHR
12{@ARERN -

AEEEECHENERNRARESER
FBEERREE -

MR2023F12A831H HEAEY
9,812,000 %7 hn# 7T (2022 4F : 8,846,000
rmEr) BEBEFAEEED
9,158,000 %71 i3 7t (2022 4F : 8,521,000
o) —HER - BREBEAREN
HEEEFRHNEREZRI  HEBZET
FEMERRE  HEEETSBEGR
FYHE AR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e R RNEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # = 20234 12 H31 HiIFF/E

18. INVENTORIES 18. &8
2023 2022
2023 £ 2022 £
S$'000 S$'000
FHEmyET  FEFMET
Raw materials and consumables R R X H FE SR 219 234
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. EFREMEWRIE
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
S$'000 S$'000
FHEmE T  FEFMHET
Trade receivables B 5 EWFIE 291 300
Other receivables H b e B 235 205
526 505
Ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables based on AEREZEAH AEERBRERROHE
invoice date as at the end of the reporting period is as SEBGRIBRROTIOT -
follows:
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 %
S$'000 S$'000
FHEMHE T  FEINET
0 to 30 days 0E 30K 267 274
31 to 90 days 31E2 90K 14 22
91 days to 180 days 91 £180K 10 4

291 300
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R EE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 &%= 20234F 12 A31 HiF F/Z

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of 7 days to its
customers.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
ECL which uses a lifetime ECL model. Trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the historical observed default rates adjusted by forward
looking estimates. Based on historical experience, majority of
trade receivables were settled within credit term and the
Group received certain deposits from these customers,
hence the expected loss rate of current trade receivables is
assessed to be immaterial, no loss allowance on trade
receivable was recognised during the year (2022: S$Nil).

A default on receivables is when the counterparty fails to
make contractual payments within 90 days of when they fall
due. Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing
to engage in a repayment plan with the Group and the
amount due is significantly larger than the deposit received
by the Group. The Group categories a receivable for write off
when a debtor fails to make contractual payments greater
than 180 days and the receivable is larger than the deposit
received by the Group. Where receivables have been written
off, the Group continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due. When recoveries are
made, these are recognised in profit or loss.

The carrying amount of trade receivables approximate their
fair values.
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19.

B2 K HEAEWRIR (&)
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AEBRBERYBREENEIR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e R RNEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

20. PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS PAID 20. ERREBRESHE
2023 2022
2023 & 2022 &
S$°000 S$'000

FHIFET — THEIMET

Prepayments SRS 337 148
Deposits paid (current portion) R (B ) 1,237 1,011
1,574 1,159
Add: Deposits paid (non-current portion) il : B3R & (GERVEAEL5) 1,182 1,091
2,756 2,250
As at 31 December 2023, deposits paid mainly represented MN2023F 12 A31H - 24T EiE
the amount of rental deposit of approximately S$$2,331,000 HERE L A2,331,000% 103 T
(2022: S$1,561,000). (2022 % : #91,561,000 ¥ i L) °
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W, N

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %= 20234 12 A31 HiF F/Z

21.

196

fra g ERRME (8)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

BRAVEHFSAESNEHMEE

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4
S$'000 S$'000
FHrmio  FEFMET
Financial assets mandatorily measured S8 #3Z A FEFAEBZTEN
at FVTPL: SREE -
Key management personnel life FEERBABASRE
insurance policies (Note (a)) (P 5% (@) 743
Listed equity securities (Note (b)) R EE S (FEE D) 48
791 1,717
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
S$'000 S$'000
FEmHEIT  FEFMET
Analysed as reporting purposes as: MIEBENITAT
Current assets MEVEE 48 984
Non-current assets ERBEE 743 733
791 1,717

Notes:

(a)

On 24 July 2017, a subsidiary of the Company has entered into life
insurance policies (the “Policies”) to insure the directors of the
Company, Mr. Chu and Ms. Leow. Under the Policies, the beneficiary
and policy holder is a subsidiary of the Company and the insured sum is
USD1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately S$1,319,000) for each of
the directors. The Group is required to pay an upfront deposit of
USD562,000 (equivalent to approximately S$741,000). The Group can
terminate the Policies at any time and receive cash back based on the
cash value of the Policies at the date of withdrawal, which is
determined by the upfront payments plus accumulated interest earned
and minus the accumulated insurance charges and policy expense
charge. The Group receives an interest at interest rates guaranteed by
the insurer.

Income arising from Policies is recognised as other income in the
consolidated statement profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The entire amount of the rights under the Policies is denominated in
United States Dollar.

The financial assets held by the Group are equity securities listed in
Singapore and their fair values are based on quoted market value as at
31 December 2023. The listed equity securities are accounted for under
FVTPL financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e R T (8
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/PLEDGED

22. BERREEEY CHEFET

BANK DEPOSITS

LEE
2023 2022
2023 & 2022
S$'000 S$'000

FHMET  THIOHET

Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS 8,401 6,961
Less: pledged bank deposits B BEREIRITER (1,015) (1,015)
Cash and cash equivalents RehkReFED 7,386 5,946

Cash and cash equivalents comprised in different currencies
are as follows:

HIAEEBEKNE e RREEFEDN
T

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
S$'000 S$'000

FHEMFEIT  TEROIKT

Singapore Dollar N T 7,376 5,873
Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD") Br(#Exl) 10 73
7,386 5,946

Pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rates of 1.0%
(2022: 1.0%) per annum as at 31 December 2023,
representing deposits pledged to banks for securing the bank
facilities granted by the bank to the Group and unutilised
banking facilities amounting to approximately S$18,250,000
(2022: S$15,750,000) as at 31 December 2023.

B 2023612 A31H @ EEIFREITFR
HEFEFEMEE1.0% (20224F 1 1.0%) -
57X 2023F12 A31 B AEUE R 1THE A
EEBEHRITHEMEEFRITNER
o R B) FE SR 17 B & #9 18,250,000 7 hn 3
7T (2022 4 : 15,750,000 ¥ AN 7T) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %= 20234 12 A31 HiF F/Z

22.

198

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS (Continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities:

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

22. RERRESEEY BEBEBT
7 (8)

METHELENEEYHR:

TRALASERETDEENAEE
B SRR LIRSEH -BELD
EEMBERRERELARKETRE
RARBGEERERERIBARER
BARRERENEIE -

Lease
Borrowings liabilities Total
&K HEaE BF
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000

THEMBT  TEETT O TEIMET

1 January 2022 20221 H1H 81,182 7,775 88,957
Changes from financing REBMERSRENESE :
cash flows:

Proceeds Frig5K18 6,000 - 6,000
Repayments ER (7,190) (1,850) (9,040)
Finance cost paid EATRE R (1,523) (272) (1,795)
Non-cash changes: RSB

Additions of mortgage bi-g=prplll 15,918 - 15,918
Additions of lease liabilities HEBFEEM - 2,947 2,947
Modification B3] - (26) (26)
Finance costs BE KA 1,523 272 1,795
At 31 December 2022 2022612 H831H 95,910 8,846 104,756
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
l\‘/T\ ﬁﬁ#&%ﬁﬁ (ll\/\)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/PLEDGED 22. RERBREEEY CHEABET
BANK DEPOSITS (Continued) R (E)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing METHEENEEHE (&)
activities: (Continued)
Lease
Borrowings liabilities Total
=N HEAE &5t
S$'000 S$000 S$'000

T Hr i T T #n3 T T # N3k T

At 31 December 2022 and R2022F12A318 K

1 January 2023 20231 H1H 95,910 8,846 104,756
Changes from financing REBMERESRENEE :

cash flows:
Proceeds Frig I8 2,800 - 2,800
Repayments B (8,057) (2,644) (10,701)
Finance cost paid EATBE R (2,933) (300) (3,233)
Non-cash changes: FEE&BE
Additions of lease liabilities HEBFEEM - 3,776 3,776
Modification &&T - (166) (166)
Finance costs BEKA 2,933 300 3,233
At 31 December 2023 202312 H31H 90,653 9,812 100,465
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %= 20234 12 A31 HiF F/Z

23.

200

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

23. R—EEEQLTRE

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
S$$000 S$'000
FHmix  FEMET
Cost of investment B AR 4 -
Movements during the year are as follows: FRNEEHAT :
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
S$$°000 S$'000
FHEmE T  FERMET
At 1 January R1A1H8 - -
Investment in a newly incorporated REFFMA L E QA RNEE
associate 4 -
Share of profit and other FEMR R I R E A 2 E
comprehensive income - -
4 _

At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, particulars of
the associate are as follows:

Share capital /

BARFBMT -

Proportion of

R2023% 12 A31H K&20229F12 4318 - B

Place and date Paid up ownership Principal
Company of incorporation capital interest held activities
BENTER MR RESR REABHEXR BFENEEAERLLH TEEB
20235 2022 F
2023 2022
Rasa Bagus Restoran Singapore Ordinary S$4,000 40% - Dormant
Pte. Ltd. 15 December 2023
Rasa Bagus Restoran sk Ea 40% - mpaw
Pte. Ltd. 2023F 12 1658 4,000 ¥ 103 7T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

24. TRADE PAYABLES

24, EZENRIE

2023 2022

2023 F 2022 F

S$'000 S$'000

FHmExT  FEMET

Trade payables B SR HIA 3,273 2,893

Trade payables are non-interest bearing. They are generally
settled within 15 days to 90 days credit terms.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, trade payables were

denominated in Singapore dollars.

Ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date as at

BHEMNFAB L - EHREMNRIA
BENEEE1BREQRALN o

R2023F K 2022F 12 A31H - E 5k

FRIATY AR IR TTRHE

ERNBZAH RESHRNEZEN

the end of the reporting period is as follows: FIRRER DT -
2023 2022
2023 £ 2022 F
S$'000 S$'000
F Frhn 3 T FE b IT
0 to 30 days 0ZE30K 3,270 2,879
31 to 90 days 31E290K 2 12
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 1 2
3,273 2,893
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %= 20234 12 A31 HiF F/Z

25. ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS 25. EstE R - HttEENRFERE W
RECEIVED, PROVISION FOR REINSTATEMENT HE - ﬂ%?ﬁﬁkﬂ-‘ﬁﬁﬁ
COSTS
2023 2022
2023 F 2022
S$$000 S$'000
FHMET  FEMET
Accrued operating expenses (Note (a)) FERT & ER S (H5E () 2,556 1,647
Other payables (Note (b)) H b < 5E (M 3 (b)) 2,172 1,400
Advances received (Note (c)) Bk (BFEE (c) 524 398
Deposits received (current portion) Bl (B EE 5 d)
(Note (d)) 781 787
6,033 4,232
Add: Other payables and deposits received Al : £ b &~ FIB & B YR &
(non-current portion) (Note (e)) (GERNERER ) (Bt =E () 1,025 511
Provision for reinstatement costs 1E1E R AR (B ()
(Note () 302 302
7,360 5,045

202

Notes:

(a):

(c):

(f):

As at 31 December 2023, accrued operating expenses mainly
represented the accrued staff costs of approximately S$2,262,000
(2022: S$1,307,000).

The balances represented the unpaid balance of costs for construction
work, property rents, utilities, clean services fees and property taxes.

The balances represented the balance of value cards issued to the
customers of food and beverage stalls.

The balances represented the customers’ deposits received from
tenants of the Group's investment properties.

The balances included customers’ deposits received of S$699,000
(2022: S$511,000) and retention payable for the costs of construction in
progress under property, plant and equipment of S$326,000 (2022:
S$Nil).

The Group recognises provision for reinstatement costs in relation to
the food courts that were leased by the Group as at the end of the year.
This provision is recognised for the expected costs for dismantling,
removal, and restoration of leased properties to their original state upon
expiry of the leases. In determining the amount of the provision for
restoration cost, estimates are made in relation to the best estimates of
the expenditure with reference to expenditures incurred or quotations
provided by third party contractor.
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(a) :

(c) :

M2023F12A31 0 @ & ERSZ T B
FE T B TR 7K 492,262,000 ¥7 A0 3% 7T (2022
11,307,000 37 b oT) ©

BRERETRKA WEEAD -
BRRISE R MEBE R B

KEE -

BHRERNERBLE S BTNEERGER

EHRERRAERDMASERENERSD
A -

4B IEIELE B /Y $ 699,000 3T I3 7T
(20224 : 511,000 N3 L) RWE - BE
REBETEERIRRANEMNRES
326,000 A3 7T (2022 6 « THFTANWIT) ©

FEBERNFREENERE
AR - ZBHDAEEYERBLER
BIFH  BREECEZEREREELNE
HIAEITHER - REBEBERABRBLH
W 2EBEAMSRE =T FREERHEN
HEMF N REBHEL G -

BHRIER
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

26.

BORROWINGS 26. f& ™
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
S$'000 S$'000
FHmigox  FEMET
Classification under contractual terms: BRBER TR -
Current portion BER IR &
Secured mortgage loans BEFIZIBER 2,827 3,343
Term loans EHER 204 218
Working capital loans EEESEN 4,075 1,250
7,106 4,811
Non-current portion FEBNE I o
Secured mortgage loans EEMZIBER 80,491 86,582
Term loans TEHER 2,409 2,595
Working capital loans BEESEN 647 1,922
83,547 91,099
90,653 95,910
Effective floating interest rates BERZEHRER
Secured mortgage loans BEMIZIBER 1.35%-4.95% 1.35%-3.51%
Term loans FEHER 4.55%-4.79% 2.45%-2.97%
Working capital loans BEESEN 2.00%-5.45% 2.00%-2.32%
The borrowings are repayable as follows: fEFEVERER T ¢
Within 1 year or on demand —FARRIZENR 7,106 4,811
Within a period of more than 1 year il —FE I EBARMFER RN
but not exceeding 2 years 3,788 4,803
Within a period of more than 2 years BEMEEIBRAFANHAMEA
but not exceeding 5 years 9,988 23,678
After a period of more than 5 years BB A F rHAME 69,771 62,618
90,653 95,910

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2023 F ¥

203



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %= 20234 12 A31 HiF F/Z

26. BORROWINGS (Continued) 26. &5 (&)
Note: As at 31 December 2023, the borrowings of approximately Mt © 7 20234F 12 A31 8 - & 5 #790,653,000 #1
$$90,653,000 (2022: approximately $$95,910,000) were secured by the g T (2022 4 : 995,910,000 %7 403 JT)
pledge of certain of the Group's (i) property plant and equipment (note TIAREEETFO)WE - BEREE (T
16), (ii) investment properties (note 15), (iii) future rental income earned 16) : (&= (MI5E15) « (i) AEEME
from all of the Group's investment properties, and certain properties WEMENRYE  BELRZEETNET
under property, plant and equipment, and; and (iv) corporate guarantee MERDOREBESKA  RIVEARFR
of the Company and its subsidiaries. HIE AR EREREER -
As at 31 December 2023, the borrowings of the Group were bearing R2023F 12 A31H - AEBENERIZZS
interest at floating rates except for borrowings amounting to FIRETE - HEFE 201,922,000 7 03T (2022
S$1,922,000 (2022: $3,172,000) which were fixed rate borrowings % 13,172,000 K TT) BEBMER  RE
bearing interest at effective interest rate of 3.73% (2022: 2.16%). The B F = 3.73% (20224 : 2.16% ) 7F & A&
floating interest rates were benchmarked to Singapore Interbank SN o SZ B THLART AN IR 1T R SR B
Offered Rate and Singapore Overnight Rate Average (SORA). TN 7oBR R S F) & (SORA) A E%E -
27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HE&A®E
The following table shows the remaining contractual T%%i‘\iﬁiﬁﬂﬂi$%ﬁ5‘ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ
maturities of the Group's lease liabilities at the end of the TEXREA -

reporting period:

Present value Present value

of minimum of minimum Minimum Minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments

RERE RERE
AHORE ARNEE KEEEMR KEBREMK

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2023 2022 2023 2022
2023 2022 F 2023 F 2022 F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
$$'000 S$'000 $$'000 S$'000

FHOBET  THMET  FHIOET  THORT

Within 1 year —FR 3,353 2,446 3,670 2,674
After 1 year and within 2 years —FUEMFEURA 3,218 2,204 3,409 2,362
After 2 years and within 5 years MELERFUA 3,241 4,035 3,324 4,198
Over 5 years RFENE - 161 - 161
9,812 8,846 10,403 9,395
Total minimum lease payments REHENREBSE 10,403 9,395
Less: total future interest expenses i * R RFIEF XL 2% (591) (549)
Present value of lease liabilities HESERE 9,812 8,846
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

28. DEFERRED TAXATION 28. ELERIIE
The following are the deferred tax liabilities/(assets) FRNASBERRANELCHEEE (&
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the E)RESHERAT -
year:

Accelerated
Lease Right-of-use depreciation

liabilities assets  allowances Total

HERE GREEE NEFERE st

S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000

THmgEr  FEMET FEMET FEER

At 1 January 2022 ®2022F1A1H (1,356) 1,339 (30) (47)
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss (FFA) /M BEER (135) 192 (79) (22)
At 31 December 2022 7202212 A31H (1,491) 1,631 (109) (69)
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss (FFA) /M EER (177) 205 (10) 18
At 31 December 2023 #2023%12 318 (1,668) 1,736 (119) (51)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %= 20234 12 A31 HiF F/Z

29. SHARE CAPITAL fi% 2%
Number of
shares Share capital
REEE (LN
HK$'000 S$'000
FHL FEMHE T
Authorised: BE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SAREE0.01 8 T Ay E B AR
At 1 January 2022, 202251418
31 December 2022 and 2022F 12 A31BA R
31 December 2023 2023%12 A31H 10,000,000,000 100,000 17,668
Number of
shares Share capital
RBEE [N
HK$'000 S$'000
THT TR T
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
At 1 January 2022, H2022F1 18 -
31 December 2022 and 2022F 124318 %
31 December 2023 202312 A31H 800,000,000 8,000 1,381

206

There was no change in the share capital of the Company
during the year.

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Company regularly
reviews and manages the capital structure of the Group and
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure
of the Group, the Company may adjust the dividend
payments to shareholders, issue new shares or to obtain new
bank borrowings. The Company is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements. The Company's
overall strategy remains unchanged from 2022.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

30. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

Reserves

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements therein for the current year and prior year
are presented in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

30. f#E&
(a) fR&fE
AEBRENNSBRERKF

BRE—FEHNED EREA
HEEBRLT -

Statement of changes in equity of the (b) AATREZEEHR
Company
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
R RE RitE#E st
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
TN  FEMET  FEET
At 1 January 2022 2022 1A1H 21,708 (4,544) 17,164
Profit and total comprehensive FRRMEEERRERE
income for the year - 86 86
At 31 December 2022 and K2022F12A31B &
1 January 2023 2023%F 1 A1H 21,708 (4,458) 17,250
Loss and total comprehensive FABEREZEEBELES
loss for the year - (674) (674)
At 31 December 2023 ®2023F12 431 H 21,708 (5,132) (16,576)

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had
distributable reserves of approximately S$16,576,000
(2022: S$17,250,000) calculated in accordance with the
Company Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

R2023%12 A31H » "A R A
7 R 5% #8549 16,576,000 %7 50 3 T
(2022 % : 17,250,000 %7 0 3% 7T)
DIRERESEHEAGEE202E
(1961 F FHEIFUED - &ix b k&
FI)ETE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %= 20234 12 A31 HiF F/Z

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 31. AA R HERRE

COMPANY
2023 2022
2023 & 20224
S$'000 S$'000
T Fhn T FEIH T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries BB RRMNKE —* —*
% _*
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE LB B A R FRIA 31,505 29,086
Prepayments and deposits paid ?Eﬁmlﬁﬁﬁﬁhzfﬁ 67 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 31 62
31,603 29,148
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals, other payables and EETEBR HMENRER
deposits received BlHE 661 496
Amounts due to subsidiaries FESTH B A R 5RIB 12,985 10,021
13,646 10,517
Net current assets and net assets RBEEFEREEFRE 17,957 18,631
Capital and reserves BEARRFEE
Share capital & 7 1,381 1,381
Reserves i 16,576 17,250
Total equity B 17,957 18,631
* The balance represents an amount less than S$1,000. * RIS H 1,000 F N T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 32. REHFERIE
As lessor EREEA
Future minimum lease rental receivables under non- REBPREBRRETITRELEE
cancellable operating leases of the Group as at the reporting EMNRREEHERSEBUGBENT

dates are as follows:

2023 2022
2023 & 2022 €
S$'000 S$'000

FHIFEIT  TEMET

Within one year —F K 5,520 4,933
In the second year RE—F 2,641 2,518
In the third year RE=ZF 1,539 1,357
In the fourth year NER S 187 192
9,887 9,000
Operating leases, in which the Group is the lessor, relate to AEEBATBANKCEHERRNEEE
investment properties owned by the Group with fixed lease BENREMERRH RETHENKX
payments and lease terms of between 1 to 4 years. All N-HEBABIEAF - WEMBAITE
operating lease contracts contain market review clauses in HEEELN  AfBKEHESANER
the event that the lessee exercises its option to renew. The EMSEESRR - AHABRLIHEE
lessees do not have an option to purchase the property at the [EmEEEmE -
expiry of the lease period.
33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 33. EARKIE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end RBERAR - NEBE B TERAE :
of the reporting period:
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 FF
S$'000 S$'000
FHmE T  FEMET
Contracted, but not provided for BETHERETIREE
— construction costs of a building — EFEEEA 6,772 10,151

6,772 10,151
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %= 20234 12 A31 HiF F/Z

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. FABEA R 5

In addition to the information disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group has the
following transactions with related parties:

Compensation of key management personnel
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group,

including directors’ remuneration as detailed in note 10
above, is as follows:

BRiRa M HRREME O MEENER
Sh - AEED RBEBTETUTRS ¢
TEEEEAEBNEE

AEEXTREEEASNME (BEL
XHFE10M R EREHB) a0 T -

2023 2022
2023 & 2022 F
S$°000 S$'000

FHEMFEIT  THEROIKT

Directors' fees E== ok 96 87
Salaries and bonuses %ﬁ’i\ KIEAT 1,665 1,350

Contributions to defined contribution R FURIRET IR 3R
retirement plan 89 81
1,850 1,518

The remuneration of directors and key management
personnel is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

35. ACQUISITION OF A PROPERTY THROUGH 35. BBWE-—ENRELRWBYE

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 17 February 2022, CK Chu Holdings Pte. Ltd., a direct
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sales and purchase agreement with Rich Capital Holdings
Limited (“Rich Capital”) to acquire the entire equity interest
of a wholly owned subsidiary of Rich Capital, First Capital Pte.
Ltd. (“First Capital”) at a total consideration of S$14,500,000.
The principal activity of First Capital was real estate
development and it mainly held property interests which
represented costs incurred for a development project for the
future development of an industrial building situated on
freehold land in Singapore. The completion of the acquisition
took place on 5 May 2022 and the Group has the intention for
the site to be redeveloped as the Group’'s headquarters,
central kitchen and food centre. The fair value of the
redevelopment site at the date of acquisition amounted to
S$14,500,000.

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed did not constitute
a business as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations and
therefore, the acquisition was not a business combination
and was accounted for as assets acquisition.

The acquisition had the following effect on the Group's
assets and liabilities on the date of acquisition:

M202262 A178 KRR EHEZEM
B2 8] CK Chu Holdings Pte. Ltd. &2 Rich
Capital Holdings Limited ([ Rich
Capital |) 3] 7 B & 1 3% + LAUEE Rich
Capital, First Capital Pte. Ltd. ([ First
Capital | ) a2 &l ikE REAB
14,500,000 %7 h 4 7T ° First Capital #)
ZEBRAEHERR HIZHEMHE
T 2 (BN R R 2R BA B PO DB Ak A 2
B P T EREYNFREIBETE
FEHRCAR) o WHEEIER2022F 5 H5
HEK  AEBEBEZZISHBER
SEMAHN - PREFERERP L %
EESHRKERBENRAFEAE
14,500,000 7 hR3E 7T, ©

FrUCER & & M A B E XL A EKEER
MRS ENEIREBEHTERN
X% AZBARBIEREBEMHA
EERBEEWRETIIR -

RUEBEHE - ZRREBEAEEBNEE
MBBEENZENT

S$'000

T3 b T

Freehold land KA 14,500
Total consideration paid BfBaRE 14,500
Less: deposit paid in prior year (note 20) B BEFEEE e (HiE20) (725)
Less: amount financed by mortgage loan W RBERNRME SRR (11,600)
Purchase consideration settled in cash DNRe#ENRERE 2,175
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FrkiEmRe MRS EEY -
Cash outflow on acquisition WEEENRS R 2,175
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %= 20234 12 A31 HiF F/Z

36. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 36. HE—BHNEAR
On 3 May 2023, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, M2023F5A3H AR a2 EMBA
Eastern Native Limited entered into a sale and purchase 7l Eastern Native Limited 5] 32 B & #
agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest of a wholly % [ B 77 Goh Ching Huat%c & (3837
owned subsidiary of the Company, FS700 Pte. Ltd. (“FS700") EFEZH)EERARGTE2EWEB QA
at cash consideration of $$6,500,000 in aggregate to the FS700 Pte. Ltd. ([FS700]) #y 2 ZRA%4E -
purchaser, Mr. Goh Ching Huat, an independent third party. REREA 26,500,000 M T - H
The disposal was completed on 23 August 2023 and the EE=HEER2023F8 A 23 %MK © A&
Group lost control over FS700 with effect from the same L K FS7T00 R4S - AR B AR -
date.
The net assets of the disposed subsidiary over which control M 2023F 8 A23H TBARIEHENE I
was lost on 23 August 2023 were as follow: EMBAREEFENT :
S$'000
TN T
Net assets disposed of: EHENEETE:
Property, plant and equipment S 5,066
5,066
Cash consideration ReRE 6,500
Less: commission fee o Re 211
Less: legal fee B EEEA (18)
Net cash consideration FHEESNRE 6,271
Gain on disposal HE e 1,205
S$'000
F I T
Cash inflow on disposal: HERSMA -
Net cash consideration FHReRE 6,271
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

37. REFEIHEMTHE

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
S$'000 S$'000
FHmigox  FEMET
Financial assets EWMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost: T RS R % B B EE -
— Trade and other receivables — B NEAMEWFRIE 526 505
— Deposits paid — BEfNHS 2,419 2,102
— Pledged bank deposits — BERIRITER 1,015 1,015
— Cash and cash equivalents —REeRBREEFEY 7,386 5,946
Financial assets at FVTPL: BRFEGANEnE@EE
— Other financial assets —HthemEE 743 733
— Listed equity securities — iR EES 48 984
12,137 11,285
Financial liabilities cRAE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: BEEK AT B SR EE
— Trade payables — B SR HIE 3,273 2,893
— Accruals, other payables and —EFTER - EMEMNRIER
deposits received BElHE 6,836 4,647
— Borrowings — &3 90,653 95,910
— Lease liabilities —HEAE 9,812 8,846
110,574 112,296
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %= 20234 12 A31 HiF F/Z

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 38. 2 ERAFEER
The Group's financial instruments include trade and other AEESR T AEBIEE S KH M EUGK
receivables, deposits paid, financial assets at FVTPL, pledged H-BfREE - RAFEFABRENS
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, REE BEBROTGR RekRe
accruals, other payables and deposits received, borrowings ZEY BIHENKE - BFEH E
and lease liabilities. The nominal values less any estimated HEMNFKELEWRHE BRLKEES
credit adjustments for financial assets and liabilities with a E-ZEBERIABLR—FHERE
maturity of less than one year are assumed to approximate BEMBEMEEMNGHFTEERAERSE
their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for REAERNFTEMES REBREMS S/
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future BEAFEEZAREE RAR R FHEM
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that CRTERERESHNERMSHERR
is available to the Group and the Company for similar financial RENRESRAFTHBH -
instruments.
The fair value of financial assets at FVTPL is set out below: EATEFAEZNEREEN A TE
BT
Fair value measurement
DFENE
Level 1 Level 2
F—4 FEZHK
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023 § 2022 % 2023 2022 F
S$'000 S$'000 S$$'000 S$'000
FHmET  FEMET  FEMET  FHIOET
Key management personnel ~ £ EBEEAEAZRE
life insurance policies - - 743 733
Listed equity securities RS 48 984 - -

Fair value of the Policies is based on the account value of the
Policies as provided by the insurance company. Fair value of
the listed equity securities is based on the quoted market
value of the listed equity securities.

During the year, there was no transfer into or out of level 1,
level 2 or any other level. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from its
operations and the use of financial instruments. The key
financial risks include credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s
exposure to the above-mentioned financial risks and the
objectives, policies and processes for the management of
these risks.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Group. The major classes of financial assets
of the Group are cash and cash equivalents, pledged
bank deposits, other financial assets and trade and
other receivables. For trade receivables, the Group
adopts the policy of dealing only with customers of
appropriate credit history. For other financial assets, the
Group adopts the policy of dealing only with high credit
quality counterparties.

As the Group does not hold any collateral, the maximum
exposure to credit risk for each class of financial
instruments is the carrying amount of that class of
financial instruments presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group assesses concentration of credit risk by
monitoring the individual profile of its trade receivables
on an ongoing basis.

As at 31 December 2023, approximately 18% (2022:
59%) of the Group's trade receivables were due from
the top five balances.

MHEEREEEBERBE

AEBERAXBEERERERTAM
AET R - T B2 ER a%{Zf‘f
E‘:ﬁ * mi%ﬂ /\A /llbébﬁ{i%\ﬂ A/\

AT % B fe (B B A SR B A o Lt B
BRROFEREEZFARNEER
BERRIZFF o

(a) EERB

FERBEHFIRBITEAYD
EAMmEBERASEEAETKIBXL
WER AEENTECREE
B AR eRREEED - EEE
HRITFR EhemEE -
5 N B Ath B W BB Eff?%ﬁﬂ&
REMmME - KEI%ZWE’JBUE;E
Eéﬁiﬂé\%@ EERBENEFE
CPHEMEBMEEMS 'Z’S
E@%@E’]Eﬁ(“ﬂ%ﬁiﬁi%%
BNEFHETRS -

AN SR Y 45 A (A an
BETRTARINERESER

Z%T/\ﬁﬁ‘%?iﬂi/ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬂﬁﬁi
%EE‘J” BTHEKRMEE-

$EIL35T—?ZEEH HEZ 5 EW
HEBERNBEEFHEERRKEF
F e

R2023%F 12 A31H » AEEEW
AABEFPNE S EKFHIAL18%
(20224 : B59%) °
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AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade receivables

The Group applies simplified approach for
providing for expected credit losses prescribed by
IFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables.
Based on historical experience, majority of trade
receivables were settled within credit term and
the Group received sufficient deposit from these
customers, hence the expected loss rate of
current trade receivables is assessed to be
approximately zero and no loss allowance on trade
receivable was recognised.

A default on receivables occur when the
counterparty fails to make contractual payments
within 90 days of when they fall due. Financial
assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to
engage in a repayment plan with the Group and
the amount due is significantly larger than the
deposit received by the Group. The Group
categorises a receivable for write off when a
debtor fails to make contractual payments greater
than 180 days and the receivables is larger than
the deposit received by the Group. Where
receivables have been written off, the Group
continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due. When
recoveries are made, these are recognised in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(ii)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised costs

In respect of pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents, the credit risk is considered to
be low as the counterparties are reputable banks
incorporated in Singapore with good credit ratings.
The existing counterparties do not have defaults
in the past. Therefore, ECL rate of other financial
assets, pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents is assessed to be close to zero and no
provision was made as at 31 December 2023 and
2022.

Other receivables were mainly receivables from
multi-national companies or listed companies. As
a result, the directors assessed the expected loss
rate of other receivables was immaterial. Thus, no
loss allowance for other receivables was
recognised as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

For deposits paid, management makes periodic
collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of deposits
based on historical settlement records and past
experience. The management committee
members of the Company believe that there is no
material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding balance of deposits.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
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AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate borrowings and
bank balances due to changes of interest rate.

The directors of the Company consider the
Group's exposures in relation to the bank balances
are not significant as interest bearing bank
balances have short maturity period and thus they
are not included in sensitivity analysis.

The Group currently does not have any interest
rate hedging policy. However, management
closely monitors its exposure to future cash flow
interest rate risk as a result of changes in market
interest rates and will consider hedging changes
in market interest rates should the need arise.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management note 39(c).

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 2023, if the interest rate on all
variable-rate borrowings had been 100 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, the Group's profit for the year would
have been decreased/increased by approximately
S$752,000 (2022: S$796,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of each of the
reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for the borrowings in
existence at that date. The 100-basis point
increase or decrease represents management'’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the end of the
next reporting period. The analysis is performed
on the same basis during the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(ii)

. BB EREEERERBEER (&)

Market risk (Continued) (b) TIEERE (&)
Currency risk (i) EH¥ERRK
The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary NEREHRUNZER T
assets (including bank balances) denominated in M EE UGB EN AR
currencies other than functional currency of the EEEBEE (BREEITE
respective group entity at the end of each ) MBRmMEM T -
reporting period are as follows:
2023 2022
2023 £ 2022 F
S$'000 S$'000
F %7 3K T FH#hI T
HKD BT 10 73

The Group currently does not have a foreign
exchange hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange exposure should the
need arise.

R ER B B Al I £ SINE B IR
Ro-ARi AREEEEE
FHMERR Y HRERE
iR E B 5P B ASMNE LR -
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
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AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's
sensitivities to a 10% increase and decrease in
the functional currency of the group against
relevant foreign currency. 10% is the sensitivity
rate which represents management'’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
currency rate. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding HKD denominated monetary
items and adjusted their translation at the end of
the reporting period for a 10% change. A positive
number indicates an increase in profit for the year
if HKD strengthens 10% against S$. For a 10%
weakening of HKD against S$, there would be an
equal but opposite impact on the profit for the
year.

. BB EREEERERBER (&)

W5 E kR ()

(ii)

E¥ER (H)
HBRETH

TREVAREEIDEEEE L
FEREINEE FHE K B2 (B 10% BY
BREE © 10% K8 RXE t &
1%2«%%%%¥WI\ME%H\J%
AR B AT (S - BUKE
a*ﬁ EREHRGEENET
SATEE®BIER  WHFRES
REE10% BB AERLLE -
fisg 78 7T 5 ¥ N T A B
10% - Al EH R RAFE &
R hn - 1578 JT 3 E AN T
R1E10% Al g8 AFER
FIEEEREEROZE -

2023 2022
2023 & 2022 F

S$°000 S$'000

T Fr o T T3 03 T

HKD BT 1 7

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent foreign currency risk as the exposure at
the end of each reporting period do not reflect the
exposure during the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Bt %%

B k2 EE B R REGR ()

Liquidity risk (c) RBELEB
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter méﬂﬁéﬂ RIERNE BN EXE
difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its RIS —SREENH
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or Eﬁ%ﬁ NrzemaEmMPRETH
another financial asset. The Group's approach to EBRHBNER ALEEER
managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, it FELRRNATA BB EER
will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities E—EMERERBESA &R
when due, such as maintaining sufficient cash and cash HIBRaE flugFrsremi
equivalents as disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated e REeEEM (REAVBHRE
financial statements. MIFE22 FTHE EE) o
The table below summaries the maturity profile of the TERBABRBEENARTRERE
Group's financial liabilities based on contractual ErEEeHEENE BB -
undiscounted repayment obligations.
As at 31 December 2023 R2023F12H31H
More than More than
Weighted 1 year 2 years
average  Ondemand but less but less Total
effective or within than than Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1year 2 years 5 years 5years  cash flows amount
NETE  RERE  BEIFE  EB2EE *BBRE
ERA% 15/ PR2E DRBE BB5E TEHE REE
% $$'000 $$'000 §$'000 $$'000 $$'000 $$'000
%  THOEZ FEMET  FEMER  FHEOER FEMRT THMER
Financial liabilities SREE
Trade payables ZHRMAFE - 3213 - - - 3213 3213
Accruals, other payables T &/ « Hib R
and deposits received ~ FBRE YL - 6,836 - - - 6,836 6,836
Borrowings &% 4.18% 1,17 7,139 23,860 99,294 141,410 90,653
Lease liabilities BERE 3.59% 3,670 3,409 3,324 - 10,403 9,812
24,896 10,548 27,184 9294 16192 110574
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %= 20234 12 A31 HiF F/Z

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. i EREEAERBEK (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) RBELRAMR (H)
As at 31 December 2022 2022612 A31 A
Weighted More than More than
average  Ondemand 1 year 2 years Total
effective orwithin - but less than  but less than Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
T REXS BBIFE  BR2FR REBRE
G VIE 15/ AVES PUNES BiR5E nELE FHE
% S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000

%  THIERT  THIET  THMRT  TENRT O THIRT O THIER

Financial liabilities tHaE

Trade payables EC T - 2,893 - - - 2,893 2,893

Accruals, other payables  [E:F & « H{tE(
and deposits received ~ FBRE YIS - 4,647 - - - 4,647 4,647
Borrowings a7 225% 6,271 6,265 27,504 64,166 104,206 9,910
Lease liabilities HERE 3.00% 2,674 2,362 4,198 161 9,395 8,846
16,485 8,627 31,702 64,327 121,141 112,296
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

40. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
throughout the year. The capital structure of the Group
consists of debt, which includes borrowings, as disclosed in
note 26, net of bank balances and cash and equity attributable
to owners of the Group, comprising share capital and retained
earnings. The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure from time to time. As a part of this review, the
management considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the management, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
the issue of new shares and new debts.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a net
debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines net debt as total debt (which includes interest-bearing
loans and borrowings), less cash and cash equivalents.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity. In order
to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares,
return capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell
assets to reduce debt.

The net debt-to-adjusted equity ratio at 31 December 2023
and 2022 was as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

40. EXEE

AEENEARERE LN EREERR
EHEETE BREUTFELEZ
£ ﬁﬁﬂx%i ERARR  AEER
BRERTBRBEEAFTERFBTIE - A5H
K& A28 Tﬁ@%tﬁ‘%(@%ﬁél‘ﬁﬁi%ﬁ
BEREF NBRBTESRERE MAE
E#EEAEGER (BERARRER
) o REE B ETRRR B AR -
EERIHEF - RATEEENER
RARSEERSERRR - RIZEEIE
EHHBER A5SEHEAIHTR
S BITHREGEB FEERBERSRE
e

AEBZREGHCHABERLENE
EEREARARE - Bt NEEBER

FERTE REHR Tﬁ(a%.ﬁrw\m
B RREMREEEY - KLHE

BEAmPTAEDRAR - Eﬁ%%ﬁinﬂﬁtt
R AKEAREHBEINEROKE S
BBTHMERO RRREREELR &
SMEGREILEEENRDES

MR 20234 N 2022 F 12 A 31 BRERH
A ERNLE R ¢

2023 2022

2023 F 2022 FF

S$°'000 S$'000

T Fr o T FE T

Total debts — Bank borrowings ~ f&#&5#E — RITER 90,653 95,910
Less: Cash and bank balances B Re MIRTTH R (7,386) (5,946)
Net debt BB FE 83,267 89,964
Total equity HmiEE 86,418 77,574
Net debt-to-adjusted equity ratio BT /FE ¥ 48 2 E A b K 96.4% 116.0%
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %= 20234 12 A31 HiF F/Z

41.

224

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, particulars of
the subsidiaries are as follows:

41.

o) PN

MN2023%F 12 A31 8 %2022 12 A 31
B WEARFBOT :

Proportion of

ownership
interest held
Place and date of Share capital/ BAENRER AR A
Company incorporation Paid up capital 2023 2022  Principal activities
MEAR SR MR ER B BRE BHER 2023 % 20226 FEEH
Directly held:
EERE:
Entire Courage Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
("BVI")
15 November 2017
Entire Courage Limited EEERHS LAER1ET 100% 100% REZER
((RBEZES))
2017611 A 150
Eastern Native Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
30 January 2018
Eastern Native Limited EEERHS - LAER1ET 100% 100% REZER
201841 A30H
Indirectly held:
BERE
Fu Chan F&B Group Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary S$500,000 100% 100%  The ownership and
10 December 2009 operation of food
centres, and
management of food
and beverage stalls
Fu Chan F&B Group Pte. Ltd. Fhng - TR 100% 100% HERKLEERFD
200912 A 108 500,000 7 N3 7T AR EBESRIER
U Property Holdings Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary S$1,000,000 100% 100%  The ownership and
12 December 2008 operation of food
centres
U Property Holdings Pte. Ltd. N L@k 100% 100% HERKLEERFD
2008 12 A12H 10,000 #f 104 7T
CK Chu Holdings Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary S$270,000 100% 100%  The ownership and
5 May 2005 operation of food
centres, and operation
of food and beverage
stalls
CK Chu Holdings Pte. Ltd. N - i@k 100% 100% HWEREEERFBDL
20056 5H5H 270,000 7 N 7T PAR B R B R AR L
Lady Boss Food Channel Singapore, Ordinary S$1,000,000 100% 100%  The operation of food
Pte. Ltd. 18 March 2015 and beverage stalls
Lady Boss Food Channel N - TimR 100% 100% EEBEREN

Pte. Ltd.

201543 A 18H 1,000,000 #7 AN 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41.

B~ A & 15 ()

Proportion of

ownership
interest held
Place and date of Share capital/ BRENERARRLA
Company incorporation Paid up capital 2023 2022  Principal activities
MERRER SR AR AL 4t B % B HA BA BHER 2023 2022 EXEEH
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BERSE: (8
FC 883 Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary S$10,000 100% 100%  The ownership and
18 March 2015 operation of food
centres, and
management of food
and beverage stalls
FC 883 Pte. Ltd. N - AR 100% 100% HEEREEERAL -
201543 A 18 H 10,000 7 03 7T PAR B BB AL
Fu Chan F&B Pte. Ltd Singapore Ordinary S$300,000 100% 100%  The ownership and
29 January 2004 operation of food
centres
Fu Chan F&B Pte. Ltd N - AR 100% 100% HEERELERFRL
200441 A29H 300,000 # 04 7T
FS 100 Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls
FS 100 Pte. Ltd. N - LAk 100% 100% EEERIEML
201543 A 18H 1IN TT
FS 200 Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls
FS 200 Pte. Ltd. N - ik 100% 100% A8 EERRIENL
201543 A18H 13T T
FS 300 Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls
FS 300 Pte. Ltd. N - AR 100% 100% EEERIEL
201543 A 18 H 187N TT
FS 400 Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls
FS 400 Pte. Ltd. N - LAk 100% 100% EEERIEL
201543 A 18H 1% TT
FS 500 Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls
FS 500 Pte. Ltd. N - ik 100% 100% A8 EERRIEAL
201543 A18H 13T T
FS 600 Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
18 March 2015
FS 600 Pte. Ltd. N - TR 100% 100% IREZER
20153 A 18 H 187N TT
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %= 20234 12 A31 HiF F/Z

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Proportion of

41. B RFHIE (H&)

ownership
interest held
Place and date of Share capital/ BAENERARRLA

Company incorporation Paid up capital 2023 2022  Principal activities

MEARER SRR S it B A BRA " BHER 2023 2022 EEERK

Indirectly held: (Continued)

BESE: (8

FS 700 Pte. Ltd* Singapore Ordinary S$1,000,000 - 100%  The ownership and
18 March 2015 operation of food

centres

FS 700 Pte. Ltd* N - gl 100% 100% HEREEERPL
201543 A 184 1,000,000 %7 AN 7T

FS 800 Pte. Ltd Singapore Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FS 800 Pte. Ltd g - LmAk 100% 100% &8 E IR
201543 A18H 13N T

FS 900 Pte. Ltd Singapore Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FS 900 Pte. Ltd N - EER 100% 100% #EEERIEL
20153 A 18 H 1ETIE T

FS 881 Pte. Ltd Singapore Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FS 881 Pte. Ltd N - gl 100% 100% £ B IR
201543 A 18H 1IN TT

FS 882 Pte. Ltd Singapore Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FS 882 Pte. Ltd g - LmAk 100% 100% 4B RRIEAL
201543 A18H 13N T

FS 884 Pte. Ltd Singapore Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FS 884 Pte. Ltd N - EER 100% 100% #EEERIEL
20153 A 18 H 1ETIE T

FS 885 Pte. Ltd Singapore Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FS 885 Pte. Ltd N - gl 100% 100%  #8EB AR
201543 A 184 1IN TT

FS 886 Pte. Ltd Singapore Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FS 886 Pte. Ltd g - LmAk 100% 100% 48 ERRIEAL
201543 A18H 13N T
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; %= 20234 12 A31 HiFF/Z

41.

42.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41. B A TS (&)

Proportion of

ownership
interest held
Place and date of Share capital/ BRENERARRLA
Company incorporation Paid up capital 2023 2022  Principal activities
MEARER SR AR AL 4t B % B HA BA/BHER 2023 2022%F FEEE
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BEEE : (F)
Food Dynasty Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
5 May 2021 and beverage stalls
Food Dynasty Pte. Ltd. o - TR 100% 100% EEBREN
2021F5A5H 1ETIE T
Da Jia Hao Eating House Singapore Ordinary S$500,000 100% 100%  The operation of food
Pte. Ltd. 2 March 2022 and beverage stalls
Da Jia Hao Eating House Fhnsg - TR 100% 100% EEBERIEN
Pte. Ltd. 202293 A2A 500,000 %7 i1 7T
First Capital Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary S$4,121,350 100% 100%  Property holding
29 March 2018
First Capital Pte. Ltd. N - EimR 100% 100% WEEHS
201843 4298 4,121,350 ¥ hN% 7T
* On 23 August 2023, the entire equity interest of FS 700 Pte. Ltd. was * 202348 A23H ' FS 700 Pte. Ltd. Ay &
disposed to an independent third party at a consideration of 2B A #E B #2 1X {8 6,500,000 1 M3 7T HH & F
S$6,500,000. BUE=F -
All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in Singapore. LR BERBRAR ESEFINHELE -
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding R2023F12 A31 H & 2022412 A31H
as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 or at any SFEREMERE - BENB AR EEM
time during the years. REEBEBHES -
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 42. BB EI1E
There was no significant events after the reporting period for HZE2023F12 A31HILFEHREHH
the year ended 31 December 2023. % BEEBARNEIHELE -
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Five Years Financial Summary
T FHBEE

For the five years ended 31 December 2019, 2020, 2021, 2022 and & & 20194 ~ 2020 4 ~ 20214 + 2022 F &
2023: 2023F 12 A31 BIL AEFE :

RESULTS £

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A3MBLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023 2022 F 20214 2020F 2019
$$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000

THMEIT  THIET  THIET  TEHMET  THIET

Revenue g 55,740 47,290 37,386 34,901 42,004
Profit before tax PR AR 7,919 6,176 5,004 2,467 5,461

Income tax expense FsHAL (609) (502) (436) (277) (303)
Profit for the year FNEH 7,310 5,674 4,568 2,190 5,158

Total profit and comprehensive 4 A% K| &

income for the year PHEWE AT 8,844 5,674 4,568 2,190 5,158
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023 F 2022 4F 20214 20204 20194
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000

FHMKET THIOET  THMET THIET  THMKT

Total assets BERE 198,129 190,815 167,837 147,756 128,560
Total liabilities BERE 111,711 113,241 95,937 80,424 63,418
Total equity B 86,418 77,574 71,900 67,332 65,142
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